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statements, " we are referring to the consolidated financial statements
(including the related notes) of Allianz Aktiengesellschaft (or Allianz AG, and
together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the Allianz Group) as of December
31, 2001 and 2000 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2001, which have been audited by KPMG Deutsche
Treuhand-Gesellschaft AG Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards (or IAS), which differ in certain respects from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). For a
discussion of significant differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP, you should read
Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. All 1999, 1998 and 1997
balances have been restated to reflect the retroactive consolidation of certain
investment funds in accordance with IAS Standing Interpretations Committee (or
SIC) 12. Certain information in the notes to our consolidated financial
statements has been amended on the basis of more recently available information
and accordingly differs in certain respects from the information presented in
the notes to our German annual report for fiscal 2001. Note 45 to our
consolidated financial statements includes a restatement of previous U.S. GAAP
reconciling items for the year ended December 31, 2000. In addition, the amounts
set forth in some of the tables may not add up to the total amounts given in
those tables due to rounding.

References herein to "DM" are to Deutsche marks, references to "$" and
"U.S. dollars" are to United States dollars and references to "E" and "euro" are
to the euro, the single currency established for participants in the third stage
of the European Economic and Monetary Union (or EMU), commencing January 1,
1999. We refer to the countries participating in the third stage of the EMU as
the "euro zone."

Prior to December 31, 1998, we prepared and reported our consolidated
financial statements in DM. With the introduction of the euro on January 1,
1999, we have adopted the euro as our reporting currency. Accordingly, our DM
consolidated financial statements for 1998 have been restated into euro using
the official fixed conversion rate of E1.00 = DM1.95583. Our 1998 restated euro
financial statements depict the same trends as would have been presented if the
financial statements had been continued to be presented in DM. However, the
consolidated financial statements will not be comparable to the euro financial
statements of other companies that previously reported their financial
information in a currency other than DM.

For convenience only (except where noted otherwise), some of the euro
figures have been translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of $0.9442 = E1.00,
the noon buying rate in New York for cable transfers in euros certified by the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York for customs purposes on June 17, 2002. These
translations do not mean that the euro amounts actually represent those U.S.
dollar amounts or could be converted into U.S. dollars at those rates. See "Key
Information -- Exchange Rate Information" for information concerning the noon
buying rates for the DM and the euro from January 1, 1997 through June 17, 2002.

Unless otherwise indicated, when we use the terms "gross premiums," "gross
premiums written" and "gross written premiums," we are referring to premiums
(whether or not earned) for insurance policies written during a specific period,
without deduction for premiums ceded to reinsurers, and when we use the terms
"net premiums," "net premiums written" and "net written premiums," we are
referring to premiums (whether or not earned) for insurance policies written
during a specified period, after deduction for premiums ceded to reinsurers.

Unless otherwise indicated, we have obtained data regarding the relative
size of various national insurance markets from annual reports prepared by
SIGMA, an independent organization which publishes market research data on the
insurance industry. In addition, unless otherwise indicated, insurance market
share data are based on gross premiums written. Data on market share within
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particular countries 1is based on our own internal estimates.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report includes "forward-looking statements" within the meaning
of the safe harbor provisions of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These include statements under "Information on the Company and Operating
and Financial Review and Prospects," "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk" and elsewhere in this annual report relating to, among other
things, our future financial performance, plans and expectations regarding
developments in our business, growth and profitability, and general industry and
business conditions applicable to the Allianz Group. These forward-looking

statements can generally be identified by terminology such as "may," "will,"
"should, " "expects," "plans," "intends," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates,"
"predicts, " "potential," or "continue" or other similar terminology. We have

based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations, assumptions,
estimates and projections about future events. These forward-looking statements
are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors
that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements or those of our
industry to be materially different from or worse than those expressed or
implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors include, without
limitation:

- general economic conditions, including in particular economic conditions
in our core business and core markets;

- performance of financial markets, including emerging markets;

— the frequency and severity of insured loss events;

— mortality and morbidity levels and trends;

- persistency levels;

- interest rate levels;

- currency exchange rates, including the euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate;
— changing levels of competition;

- changes in laws and regulations, including monetary convergence and the
European Monetary Union;

— changes in the policies of central banks and/or foreign governments;

— the impact of our acquisition of Dresdner Bank AG, including related
integration and restructuring issues; and

- general competitive factors, in each case on a local, regional, national
and/or global basis.

PART I
ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS

Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.
ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below are derived from
our consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by KPMG Deutsche
Treuhand-Gesellschaft AG Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft.

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with IAS,
which differ in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. For a description
of the significant differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP and a reconciliation of
certain income statement and balance sheet items to U.S. GAAP, you should read
Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

You should read the information below in conjunction with our consolidated

financial statements and the other financial information we have included
elsewhere in this annual report.

AT OR FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

IAS CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

DATA
Gross premiums written (3)
Property-Casualty................ 39,786 42,137 38,382 36,027 30,868
Life/Health....... ... 19,021 20,145 20,239 18,473 15,882
Consolidation adjustments(4)..... (655) (694) (736) (693) (543)
e o= 58,152 61,588 57,885 53,807 46,207
Premiums earned (net).............. 49,802 52,745 49,907 46,182 39,781
Total income
Property-Casualty................ 46,169 48,897 45,197 42,079 35,687
Life/Health........cuiiiinn.. 32,278 34,186 37,251 32,723 27,319
Banking Operations............... 12,124 12,841 1,722 1,795 1,266
Asset Management Operations...... 2,585 2,738 1,722 693 754
Consolidation adjustments(4)..... (2,554) (2,705) (2,103) (1,471) (1,519)
e o= 90,602 95,957 83,789 75,819 63,507
Net income. .......cuiiiiiiiinnnnnn. 1,532 1,623 3,460 2,317 2,177
FEarnings per share................. 6.29 6.66 14.10 9.46 8.97
Earnings per share, diluted........ 6.29 6.66 14.10 9.46 8.97

U.S. GAAP CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT DATA

Net INCOME. ... iiiiiiiiiiinneennnnn. 4,045 4,284 6,531(5) 2,869 2,185
Net income per share............... 17.90 18.96 28.90(5) 11.70 9.01
3

N/A
N/A
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AT OR FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER

31,

(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

IAS CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total investments(6).......vvuvuuo.. 764,453 809,630 350,895 331,700 300,868
Total assets. ..., 890,310 942,925 439,995 410,690 365,575
Total insurance reservesS........... 282,799 299,512 284,824 268,064 237,663
Total liabilities...........oono... 860,413 911,261 404,392 381,014 340,508
Issued capital and capital

T ST VeSS e vttt ettt teetneeeeeenes 13,945 14,769 7,994 7,811 7,721
Shareholders' equity......ovvvnn... 29,897 31,664 35,603 29,676 25,066
Shareholders' equity per share..... 124 131 145 121 103
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding

BaASIC. ittt ettt e e e 243.6 243.6 245 .4 245.0 242.5

Diluted. ...ttt 243.6 243.6 245.4 245.0 242.5
U.S. GAAP CONSOLIDATED BALANCE

SHEET DATA
Shareholders' equity......ovvenn... 29,937 31,706 35,113(5) 30,003 25,457
Shareholders' equity per share..... 132 140 155(5) 122 104
OTHER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA
Combined ratio (for the period).... 108.8% 108.8% 104.9% 104.5% 100.8%
FEarnings per share, adjusted for

special items(7) «uueieninnnnnnnn N/A N/A 9.72 8.58 N/A
Third-party assets......eeiveennn.. 585,836 620,458 336,424 29,506 22,548
Market capitalization.............. 60,576 64,156 97,813 81,920 77,513
(1) Dividend amounts given in euros have been translated for convenience only

into U.S. dollars at the rate of $0.9442 = E1.00, the noon buying rate in
New York for cable transfers in euros certified by the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York for customs purposes on June 17, 2002. See "Presentation of
Financial and Other Information."

All 1998 and 1997 balances have been restated from Deutsche marks into euros
using the official fixed conversion rate. See "Presentation of Financial and
Other Information" and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

In some countries, health insurance operations are reflected in either or
both of the property-casualty and life/health segments in accordance with
local practice and regulatory considerations.

Represents the elimination of intercompany transactions between Group
companies in different segments.

See Note 45 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our
restatement of previous U.S. GAAP reconciling items.

Includes separate account assets. For additional information on investments,
see "Information on the Company and Operating and Financial Review and
Prospects ——- Asset Management Operations."

For 2000 and 1999, adjusted to exclude special non-recurring income items.
See "Information on the Company and Operating and Financial Review and
Prospects ——- Special Income Adjustments."

208,281
257,367
174,044
238,016

5,717
19,351
83

233.8
235.8

N/A
N/A
99.4%
N/A

17,587
54,752
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4

DIVIDENDS

The following table sets forth the annual dividends paid per ordinary share
and American Depositary Share (or ADS) equivalent for 1997 through 2001. The
table does not reflect the related tax credits available to German taxpayers.

See "Additional Information —-- Taxation -- German Taxation —-- Taxation of
Dividends."
DIVIDEND DIVIDEND PAID
PER ORDINARY PER ADS
SHARE EQUIVALENT
E (1) $(2) E (1) $(2)
S (G 1 T 0.97 0.92 0.097 0.092
I TR 1.12 1.06 0.112 0.106
R 1.25 1.18 0.125 0.118
2000 .t e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ettt e et e 1.50 1.42 0.150 0.142
200 L et e e e e e e e e e e e e e et ettt e e e 1.50 1.42 0.150 0.142

(1) Dividends for 1997 were declared in Deutsche marks. The Deutsche mark
dividend amounts have been converted into euros at the rate of DM1.95583 =
E1.00, the rate of exchange fixed as of January 1, 1999.

(2) Dividend amounts given in euros have been translated for convenience only
into U.S. dollars at the rate of $0.9442 = E1.00, the noon buying rate in
New York for cable transfers in euros certified by the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York for customs purposes on June 17, 2002. See "Presentation of
Financial and Other Information."

(3) Adjusted to reflect a stock split in 1997.

Although the ability to pay future dividends will depend upon our future
earnings, financial condition (including our cash needs), prospects and other
factors, we do not presently anticipate any changes to our current dividend
policy. However, you should not assume that any dividends will actually be paid
or make any assumptions about the amount of dividends which will be paid in any
given year.

EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION

Germany 1s a member of the European Community. Pursuant to the Maastricht
Treaty to which Germany and other members of the European Community are
signatories, the euro is legal tender in those member states of the EMU that
satisfied the convergence criteria set forth in the Maastricht Treaty, including
Germany. The euro replaced the Deutsche mark as the official currency of Germany
on January 1, 1999, after which the Deutsche mark continued to exist solely as a
subdivision of the euro. The Deutsche mark ceased to be legal tender in the
Federal Republic of Germany on January 1, 2002. The conversion rate between the
Deutsche mark and the euro in the period between January 1, 1999 and January 1,
2002 was fixed by the Council of the European Union at DM1.95583 = E1.00.

As of January 1, 1999, we declare all dividends in euros. As a result,
euro/U.S. dollar exchange rate fluctuations will affect the U.S. dollar
equivalent of any cash dividend received by holders of ordinary shares or ADSs.
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The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, information
concerning the noon buying rates for the euro expressed in U.S. dollars per
E1.00. No representation is made that the euro or U.S. dollar amounts referred
to herein could be or could have been converted into U.S. dollars or euros, as
the case may be, at any particular rate or at all.

5

Since the euro did not exist prior to January 1, 1999, we cannot present
actual exchange rates between the euro and the U.S. dollar for earlier periods
in our consolidated financial statements and in the other financial information
discussed in this annual report. To enable you to ascertain how the trends in
our financial results might have appeared had they been expressed in U.S.
dollars, the table below shows the high, low, average and period-end exchange
rates of U.S. dollars per euro for the periods shown. For all periods prior to
the creation of the euro on January 1, 1999, this information has been
calculated using the noon buying rates for the Deutsche mark per $1.00 for each
period, as translated into euro at the official fixed rate of DM1.95583 = E1.00.

PERIOD
HIGH LOW AVERAGE (1)

($ PER E1.00)

S 1.2689 1.0398 1.1244
S 1.2178 1.0548 1.1120
S 1.1812 1.0016 1.0588
2000 . it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1.0335 0.8270 0.9207
200 L . e e e e e e e e e e e e 0.9535 0.8370 0.8909
JD LT 111 0o 0.9044 0.8773 0.8899
2002
JANUALY ¢ e e e e v e e e e ee e e e e e aaeeeeeseeaeeeeeeeeeneeees 0.9031 0.8594 0.8812
Y o ok 6 = 0.8778 0.8613 0.8636
1l ) o 0.8836 0.8652 0.8684
72 e 0.9028 0.8750 0.8904
1 0.9373 0.9022 0.9200
June (until June 17, 2002) ...ttt 0.9473 0.9390 0.9432

(1) Computed using the average of the noon buying rates for Deutsche marks or
euros on the last business day of each month during the relevant annual
period or on the first and last business days of each month during the
relevant monthly period.

On June 17, 2002, the noon buying rate for the euro was $0.9442.

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below before making an
investment decision. The occurrence of any of the following events could
adversely affect our business. If these events occur, the trading price of
Allianz AG's ADSs could decline. Additional risks not currently known to us or
that we now deem immaterial may also adversely affect our business and your
investment.

PERIOD
END

.0871
.1733
.0070
.9388
.8901
.8901

O O O P

.8594
.8658
.8717
.9002
.9339
.9442

O O O O O o
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CHANGES IN PREVAILING INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET FACTORS MAY ADVERSELY
AFFECT OUR INSURANCE AND BANKING RESULTS

Our insurance investment portfolio, excluding separate accounts, consists
primarily of fixed income securities, which represented approximately 59.8% of
our insurance investments at December 31, 2001. We also have a significant
equity portfolio, which represented approximately 26.5% of our insurance
investments at December 31, 2001. Our banking investment portfolio consists
primarily of loans (approximately 57.3%) and fixed-income securities
(approximately 33.0%) .

Changes in prevailing interest rates (including changes in the difference
between the levels of prevailing short-term and long-term interest rates) may
adversely affect our insurance, banking and asset management results. Over the
past several years, movements in both short-and long-term interest rates have
affected the level and timing of recognition of gains and losses on securities
held in our wvarious investment portfolios. Our investment portfolios are heavily
weighted toward euro-denominated fixed-income investments. Accordingly, interest
rate movements in the euro zone will significantly affect the value of our
investment portfolios. As our investment portfolio is also characterized by
large equity stakes in a number of major German companies, including Munchener
Ruckversicherungs—-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft in Munchen (or Munich Re, and
together with its subsidiaries, Munich Re Group) and Beiersdorf AG, as well as
significant equity holdings in France and Italy, fluctuations in equity markets
will impact the market value and liquidity of these holdings. See "Information
on the Company and Operating and Financial Review and Prospects —-- Factors
Affecting Results of Operations —-- Investment Related Factors."

In addition, the results of our banking operations are affected by our
management of interest rate sensitivity. Interest rate sensitivity refers to the
relationship between changes in market interest rates and changes in net
interest income. The composition of our banking assets and liabilities, and any
gap position resulting from that composition, causes our banking operations' net
income to vary with changes in interest rates. Variations in interest rate
sensitivity may also exist within the repricing periods or between the different
currencies in which we hold interest rate positions. A mismatch of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities in any given period
may, in the event of changes in interest rates, have a material effect on the
financial condition or results of operations of our banking business. For
additional information, see "Information on the Company and Operating and
Financial Review and Prospects —-- Selected Statistical Information Relating to
Our Banking Operations."

In addition to interest rates, activity in the capital markets generally
also significantly affects our banking, securities trading and brokerage
activities, which tends to make those activities more volatile than other parts
of our business.

In addition, in our banking business, economic and other developments
affecting borrowers may lead to the need for increased loan loss allowances in
our loan portfolio, which may in turn adversely impact our results of
operations. See "Information on the Company and Operating and Financial Review
and Prospects —-- Selected Statistical Information Relating to Our Banking
Operations -- Risk Elements."

WE OPERATE IN HIGHLY COMPETITIVE INDUSTRIES, INCLUDING IN OUR HOME MARKET

There is substantial competition in Germany and the other countries in

10
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which we do business for the types of insurance, banking, asset management and
other products and services that we provide. Such competition is most pronounced
in our more mature markets of Germany, France, Italy and the United States. In
recent years, however, competition in emerging markets has also increased as
large insurance and other financial services participants from more developed
countries have sought to establish themselves in markets that are perceived to
offer higher growth potential, and as local institutions have become more
sophisticated and have sought alliances, mergers or strategic relationships with
our competitors.

In Germany, which is our largest market for our insurance and banking
operations, there is intense competition for virtually all of our products and
services. In addition, the German insurance and banking markets are mature ones
and ones in which we already have significant market shares in most lines of
business.

Increasing competition in these markets could have a negative effect on our
financial performance if we are unable to match the products and services
offered by our competitors.

CHANGES IN TAX LEGISLATION COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

Under current German tax regulations, payments received at the maturity of
a life insurance policy on which premiums have been paid for at least 12 years
are not taxable, and the life insurance premiums are deductible from the
insured's income in the year paid, subject to certain limitations. In recent
years, the German legislature has from time to time proposed legislation that
would reduce the tax-favored treatment of both premiums and benefit payouts for
these life insurance policies. The enactment of legislation reducing the tax
benefit associated with our German life insurance products could significantly
reduce the attractiveness of life insurance as an investment in Germany. Because
our German life/health business accounts for a significant portion of our net
income (5.5% in 2001), the enactment of any such legislation could adversely
affect our financial results. Similar considerations apply to certain of our
life insurance subsidiaries in other jurisdictions. In the event any such
proposals were to be enacted, we would expect to develop new products that
utilize any remaining tax advantages, but we cannot guarantee that we would be
able to do so successfully.

In addition, from time to time, proposals have been made to repeal the
provisions of the recently enacted German Tax Reform discussed below under
"Additional Information -- Taxation —-- German Taxation" that exempted from
German tax certain capital gains on the disposal of corporate shareholdings. In
the event such proposals were to be enacted into law, our ability to dispose of
our shareholdings profitably might be significantly affected.

OUR FINANCIAL RESULTS MAY BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THE OCCURRENCE OF
CATASTROPHES

Portions of our property and casualty insurance cover losses from
unpredictable events such as hurricanes, windstorms, hailstorms, earthquakes,
fires, industrial explosions, freezes, riots, floods, terrorist attacks (such as
the September 11, 2001 attack on the World Trade Center in the United States)
and other man-made or natural disasters. While we monitor our overall exposure
to catastrophic events in each geographic region, each of our subsidiaries
independently determines its own underwriting limits related to insurance
coverage for losses from catastrophic events. As a result, although we generally
seek to reduce our exposure to these events through the purchase of reinsurance,
claims or catastrophes could have a significant adverse effect on our operating
results and financial condition. In addition, if catastrophes affecting
properties insured by us occur with greater frequency or severity than has
historically been the case, related claims could have a greater adverse effect
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on our financial performance than in previous years.

Catastrophes and other unpredictable events such as the terrorist attack of
September 11, 2001 can also lead to an abrupt interruption of our operations,
which can cause substantial losses. Such losses can relate to property,
financial assets, trading positions and also to key employees. If our business
continuity plans do not address such events or cannot be implemented under the
circumstances, such losses may increase.

BECAUSE MANY OF OUR SUBSIDIARIES OPERATE IN A CURRENCY OTHER THAN EUROS, ADVERSE
CHANGES IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES RELATIVE TO THE EURO COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT
OUR REPORTED EARNINGS AND CASH FLOW

Prior to January 1, 1998, our financial statements were published in
Deutsche marks. Between January 1, 1998 and January 1, 1999, our financial
statements were published in Deutsche marks with euro conversions. Since January
1, 1999, our financial statements have been prepared exclusively in euros.
However, a significant portion of our revenues and expenses from our
subsidiaries outside the euro zone, including in the United States, Switzerland
and the United Kingdom, originates in currencies other than the euro, and we
expect this to be increasingly true as we expand our business into growing
non-euro zone markets. For the year ended December 31, 2001, approximately 30.4%
of our gross premiums written originated in currencies other than euros. As a
result, while the revenues and expenses of any particular non-euro zone
subsidiary within the Allianz Group are generally recorded in the same currency,
changes in the exchange rates used to translate foreign currencies into euros
may adversely affect our reported results. In addition, our obligations and our
dividends are generally payable in euros. As a result, adverse changes in
exchange rates used to translate the currencies in which our non-euro zone
subsidiaries pay us dividends may adversely affect the cash flow available to us
to pay dividends and other obligations. We do not generally engage in hedging
transactions to reduce our exposure to foreign exchange risk.

ITEMS 4. - 5. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY AND OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
AND PROSPECTS

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements. We prepare our consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IAS, which differ in certain significant respects
from U.S. GAAP. For a description of the significant differences between IAS and
U.S. GAAP and a reconciliation of certain income statement and balance sheet
items to U.S. GAAP, you should read Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements. Unless otherwise indicated, the financial information we have
included in this annual report is presented on a consolidated basis under IAS.

INTRODUCTION

Allianz AG is a stock corporation organized in the Federal Republic of
Germany under the German Stock Corporation Act. It was incorporated as Allianz
Versicherungs—-Aktiengesellschaft in Berlin, Germany on February 5, 1890. It is
registered in the Commercial Register in Munich, Germany under the entry number
HR B 7158. Our registered office is located at Koniginstrasse 28, 80802 Munich,
Germany, telephone (49) (89) 3800-0. Allianz AG is the ultimate parent company of
the Allianz Group.

The Allianz Group is one of the world's leading financial services
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providers, offering insurance, banking and asset management products and
services through property-casualty, life/health, banking and asset management
business segments. We are the largest insurance group in the world based on
gross premiums written in 2001. We are the leading German property-casualty and
life/health insurance company, with estimated market shares of approximately
18.7% and 14.4%, respectively, based on gross premiums written in 2001. We also
have leading market positions in a number of other countries, including France,
Italy, the United Kingdom, Switzerland and Spain. We are the largest German
financial institution, based on market capitalization at December 31, 2001. We
believe that we are well capitalized relative to our competitors. We have a
rating of A++ from A.M. Best, its highest rating, and AA+ from Standard &
Poor's. Our investment portfolio includes a number of significant equity
participations, primarily in major German companies, including both financial
institutions and industrial enterprises.

We were founded in 1890 in Berlin, Germany, and since that time we have
become the largest German insurer. Through our international expansion strategy,
we have sought to bring into the Allianz Group companies that are
well-positioned in their domestic markets and that have leading positions in
particular business lines and attractive earnings prospects. In the last several
years, our non-German insurance business has grown substantially in importance.
Gross premiums written by our non-German business represent approximately 62.0%
of our total gross premiums written. We now operate in more than 70 countries
worldwide and have leading market positions in many of them.

In 1998, building on over a century's experience in managing our extensive
insurance investment portfolio, we established financial services as our third
core business segment. In 2001, following our acquisition of Dresdner Bank AG
(or Dresdner Bank), we reorganized our financial services segment into separate
asset management and banking segments. In our asset management segment, the
acquisitions of Dresdner Bank on July 23, 2001 and Nicholas-Applegate Capital
Management (or Nicholas-Applegate) on January 31, 2001 increased our third-party
assets under management by E228 billion and E36 billion, respectively, as of the
respective dates of the acquisitions and made us the second-largest asset
manager in the world. In our banking segment, which is now our fourth core
business segment, our acquisition of Dresdner Bank made us the third-largest
bank in Germany and the eleventh-largest bank in
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Europe and provided us with significant new bank distribution channels for our
property-casualty, life/health and asset management products and services.

Our German property-casualty and life/health insurance businesses are
managed by subsidiaries located primarily in Munich and Stuttgart. Our
non-German insurance businesses are locally managed, generally through "flagship
subsidiary" operations located in France, Italy, the United Kingdom,
Switzerland, Spain and the United States, which are our largest non-German
markets. In contrast, each of our specialty lines of credit insurance and travel
and assistance insurance is managed and operates on a global basis. Our asset
management segment also operates on a worldwide basis, with key management
centers in Munich, Hong Kong, Paris, Milan, Westport, Connecticut, and San Diego
and Newport Beach, California. Our banking segment operates through the
approximately 1,150 German and non-German branch offices of Dresdner Bank and
various subsidiaries, with significant operations in Germany, the United
Kingdom, other European countries and the United States. For a listing of our
significant subsidiaries, see Note 46 to our consolidated financial statements.

Our strategy is to achieve profitable growth across our four business

segments for the benefit of our shareholders, policyholders and employees. We
believe that our size, financial strength and worldwide reach are key

13



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

competitive strengths which will permit us to participate in the ongoing
consolidation of the financial services industry and maintain our position as an
industry leader. We offer our products through multiple distribution channels
including agents and brokers and, in many markets, bancassurance and e-commerce.
In our mature markets of Germany, the rest of western Europe and the United
States, we believe demographic trends will particularly favor our life/health
and asset management businesses in the coming years. We intend to capitalize on
cross—selling opportunities between our banking and pension provision businesses
for corporate customers and to take advantage of additional potential synergies
between our life/health, asset management and banking operations. We also intend
to continue to expand in the emerging markets of Asia, eastern Europe and South
America. We actively review potential acquisitions and strategic alliances to
complement our existing businesses worldwide.

The acquisition and integration of Dresdner Bank follows our decision to
enlarge the Allianz Group's scope of activities and to reorient the company
accordingly. With this strategic move, we anticipate future market developments,
positioning ourselves at an early stage as an integrated financial services
provider. We believe this will enable us to shape this growth market and
continue our profitable growth.

Our strategic objectives and our priorities reflect our commitment to
making full use of the tremendous business opportunities brought about by the
ongoing transformation of our markets. In this process, we are guided by the
following five long-term business principles:

- We believe that we can best serve our shareholders by giving priority to
our clients.

- We realize that our continued success is based on our reputation, our
acceptance by society and our ability to attract and retain the best
people.

— We foster the entrepreneurial spirit of our local group companies while
providing the leverage of a global institution.

- We recognize that a sustainable performance requires primary focus on
operational excellence and organic growth, supported by profitable
acquisitions.

- We aim to be among the top five competitors in the markets in which we
choose to participate.

These principles lead us to the five strategic priorities listed below. They
reflect a new strategic vision of the changing realities in the international
financial services market: we see ourselves as a global financial services

provider with activities in insurance, banking and asset management.
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Our five strategic priorities are:

- optimizing the Economic Value Added (EVA) of our Group, based on
risk—-adequate capital requirements and sustainable growth targets;

- exploiting high-growth market opportunities by leveraging our traditional
risk management expertise;

- strengthening our leading position in life and health insurance and in

asset management, especially in private and corporate retirement
insurance plans;
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- increasing our asset gathering capabilities by building customer
specific, multichannel distribution platforms; and

- expanding our investments and capital market expertise.

We are convinced that these principles and priorities will serve as a
suitable compass to guide us in our efforts to cope with and fully exploit
future changes in market conditions to the benefit of our clients, shareholders
and employees.

At December 31, 2001, we employed 179,946 persons in our insurance, banking
and asset management businesses worldwide, of whom 92,357 were based outside
Germany. Through interdisciplinary and multi-jurisdictional training and
advancement programs, we seek to develop and promote a corporate culture that
emphasizes technical expertise, dedication to client service and an
international outlook.

Our headquarters are located in Munich, Germany. In addition, we have
subsidiary, branch, representative and similar offices worldwide. We own
substantially all of the land and buildings which are used in the normal course
of our business in Europe and lease office space in various locations throughout
the world. We also have part of our investment portfolio invested in land and
buildings. We believe that our facilities are adequate for our present needs in
all material respects.
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The following table shows the relative contributions of our
property-casualty, life/health, banking and asset management segments and
related geographic and other sub-segments to our gross premiums written, total
income and net income in 2001, 2000 and 1999. The table also shows the impact of
consolidation adjustments, amortization of goodwill and minority interests.
Consistent with our general practice, gross premiums written and total income by
geographic region are presented before consolidation adjustments representing
the elimination of transactions between Group companies in different geographic
regions and different segments, and net income by geographic region is presented
before those consolidation adjustments, amortization of goodwill and minority
interests.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER

(E IN MILLIONS)

TOTAL
INCOME

16,966
20,011
5,866
1,630
2,036

(1,312)

NET
INCOM

2001
GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS TOTAL NET PREMIUMS
WRITTEN (1) INCOME INCOME WRITTEN (1)
Property-Casualty
GEYIMANY « v v v v e oo e e e e et eeaeeeeeeeannns 12,644 18,382 3,773 11,948
Rest 0f EUXOPE. .t vttt i i iie e e eeeenn 19,606 20,680 848 17,302
2 R 2 6,822 6,837 (1,030) 6,300
Rest of World....vvviiiiiiennnnn. 2,401 1,787 39 1,886
Specialty Lines.......oiitiienneenn.. 2,321 2,303 94 2,267
Consolidation adjustments(2)........ (1,657) (1,092) (265) (1,321)
Subtotal......ooiiiinninnnnnn. 42,137 48,897 3,459 38,382

45,197
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Amortization of goodwill............ -= - (349) -
Minority interests.................. - - (746) -
Total Property-Casualty........... 42,137 48,897 2,364 38,382
Life/Health
GEYIMANY « v v v v e e e e e e e e e eeaeeeeeeeannns 11,660 19,809 127 11,681
Rest 0f EUXOPE. .t vttt it iie e eeeeenn 5,486 10,524 381 5,751
Rest of World......... ... 3,010 3,856 (49) 2,818
Consolidation adjustments(2)........ (11) (3) —— (11)
Subtotal...... ...l 20,145 34,186 459 20,239
Amortization of goodwill............ - - (146) -
Minority interests.............c.o... -= - (84) -
Total Life/Health................. 20,145 34,186 229 20,239
Banking (3)
OperationsS. vttt it iie et et - 12,841 303 -
Amortization of goodwill............ - - (70) -
Minority interests.................. - - (453) -
Total Banking..........coeviveeo... - 12,841 (220) -
Asset Management (3)
Operations. c vt ittt e ie et et - 2,738 77 -
Amortization of goodwill............ - - (243) -
Minority interests.................. - - (182) -
Total Asset Management.......... —— 2,738 (348) ——
Subtotal. ... .t e - 98,662 2,025 58,621
Consolidation adjustments(4)......... (694) (2,705) (402) (736)
Total.. vttt 61,588 95, 957 1,623 57,885

13

(1) Represents premiums written for both direct business and reinsurance assumed
between Group companies in different countries and segments, as well as from
third parties. Our gross premiums written in respect of reinsurance assumed
from Group companies are eliminated in consolidation.

(2) Represents elimination of intercompany transactions between Group companies
in different geographic regions.

(3) Reflects the inclusion of Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements as of July 23, 2001.

(4) Represents elimination of intercompany transactions between Group companies
in different segments.
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FACTORS AFFECTING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our results of operations are affected by demographics (particularly with
respect to life insurance) and by a variety of market conditions, including

economic cycles, insurance industry cycles (particularly with respect to
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property-casualty insurance) and fluctuations in interest rates. We believe that
the impact of these factors will continue to affect our results of operations.
For the year ended December 31, 2001, approximately 38.0% of our gross premiums
were derived from our German operations. Our German net income includes
investment income and realized capital gains on the substantial equity portfolio
held at Allianz AG, which is part of our German property-casualty segment. As a
result, economic, demographic and market developments in Germany have materially
impacted and can be expected to continue to materially impact our results. In
addition, fluctuations in exchange rates in non-euro zone countries in which we
do business affect our euro-denominated reported results. See "-- Exchange
Rates."

GENERAL MARKET CONDITIONS

Property—-Casualty. Conditions in the property-casualty insurance markets
in which we operate are generally characterized by periods of price competition,
fluctuations in underwriting results and the occurrence of unpredictable
weather-related and other catastrophe losses. In recent years, the commercial
and industrial property-casualty markets in which we operate have also been
characterized by generally lower customer demand and a growing trend towards
higher retention levels and the use of self-insurance mechanisms by insureds.
During this same period in Europe, our automobile insurance business lines have
been characterized by increased competition and generally falling rates,
although we have succeeded in achieving rate increases in several of our primary
markets in 2001. In late 2001 and early 2002, there were indications that rates
had begun to stabilize in the commercial and industrial and several other of our
main property-casualty insurance lines.

In addition, the underwriting results of our property-casualty operations
are significantly influenced by estimates of property-casualty loss reserves,
which are an accumulation of the estimated amounts necessary to settle all
outstanding claims as of a particular reporting date. In recent years, our U.S.
property-casualty loss reserves have shown cumulative deficiencies, primarily as
a result of claims related to environmental and asbestos exposures. As our most
significant equity investee is Munich Re, the world's largest reinsurer, to the
extent loss reserve development (favorable or unfavorable) impacts Munich Re's
results, it will be reflected in our results on an equity basis. In recent
years, we understand from publicly available information concerning Munich Re
that Munich Re has had high catastrophe losses, most recently from the terrorist
attack of September 11, 2001, but also in 1999 in connection with environmental
and asbestos-related claims at its American Re subsidiary, and that it continued
in 2001 to strengthen reserves for earlier claims years in the United States.
Following the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001, A.M. Best reaffirmed its A
++ rating for the Munich Re Group. Any significant further reserve strengthening
at Munich Re could, however, adversely impact Munich Re's results, and reduce
our pro rata share thereof accordingly. See "-- Property-Casualty Insurance
Reserves" for a discussion of our property-casualty reserves on a consolidated
Group basis under IAS, and on an individual country basis under local accounting
rules.

Life/Health. Demographic studies suggest that over the next decade there
will be growth in our principal life insurance markets of Germany, France, Italy
and the rest of Europe and the United States in the number of individuals who
enter the age group that we believe is most likely to purchase
retirement-oriented life insurance products. In addition, in a number of our
European markets, including Germany, retirement, medical and other social
benefits previously provided by the government have been or are expected to be
curtailed in the coming years. We believe that these trends will increase
opportunities for private sector providers of life insurance, health,

15

17



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

pension and other social benefits-related insurance products. We believe that
our distribution networks, the quality and diversity of our products and our
investment management expertise in each of these markets position us to benefit
from such developments.

Banking. Conditions in the banking market in which we operate,
particularly in Europe, are generally characterized by intense competition and
low profit margins. In 2001, the downturn in global equity markets, declining
transaction volumes and increasing levels of default by both corporate and
individual borrowers combined to make the year a difficult one for our banking
segment. The terrorist attack of September 11, 2001 exacerbated these economic
and market difficulties. Nonetheless, the sale of life insurance and retirement
savings products through our bank branches increased in 2001, particularly in
our core markets of Germany, Italy and France. We believe that bancassurance
will be an increasingly important distribution channel for all of our business
segments in the years to come.

Asset Management. Prior to 2001, our asset management segment had
generally benefited from favorable market conditions, including falling interest
rates and generally strong capital markets conditions in Europe and the United
States, marked by intermittent periods of extreme volatility. In 2001, the
downturn in the global equity markets, together with the terrorist attack of
September 11, 2001, had a significant negative impact on our asset management
operations, resulting in widespread price declines in equity securities and
transaction volumes and increased uncertainty on the part of many third-party
investors. We cannot predict how long the downturn in the capital markets will
last or what its long-term effect on investor confidence will be. While the
assets under management in our asset management segment include a significant
amount of funds related to affiliated Allianz Group insurance operations, a
growing portion of our assets under management, particularly following our
acquisitions of the PIMCO Group (or PIMCO) in May 2000, Nicholas-Applegate in
January 2001 and Dresdner Bank in July 2001, represents third-party funds. These
funds are subject to withdrawal in the event our investment performance is not
competitive with other asset management firms. As a result, fee income from the
asset management business might decline if the level of our third-party assets
under management were to decline due to investment performance or otherwise.
Results of our asset management activities may also be affected by share prices,
share valuation and market volatility.

INVESTMENT RELATED FACTORS

Our insurance investment portfolio, excluding separate accounts, consists
primarily of fixed income securities, which represented approximately 59.8% of
our insurance investments at December 31, 2001. We also have a significant
equity portfolio, which represented approximately 26.5% of our insurance
investments at December 31, 2001. Our banking investment portfolio consists
primarily of loans (approximately 57.3%) and fixed-income securities
(approximately 33.0%). For a discussion of the investment portfolios of our
banking operations, see "-- Selected Statistical Information Relating to Our
Banking Operations."

Changes in prevailing interest rates (including changes in the difference
between the levels of prevailing short-term and long-term rates) can affect our
insurance, banking and asset management results. Over the past several years,
movements in both short- and long-term interest rates have affected the level
and timing of recognition of gains and losses on securities held in our various
investment portfolios. Our investment portfolios are heavily weighted toward
euro-denominated fixed-income investments. Accordingly, interest rate movements
in the euro zone will significantly affect the value of our investment
portfolios. As our investment portfolio is also characterized by large equity
stakes in a number of major German companies, including Munich Re and
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Beiersdorf, as well as significant equity holdings in France and Italy,
fluctuations in equity markets will impact the market value and liquidity of
these holdings.

The short-term impact of interest rate fluctuations on our life insurance
business is reduced in part by products designed to partly or entirely transfer
our exposure to interest rate
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movements to the policyholder. Examples of these products include profit-sharing
individual policies (which may have guaranteed rates) and segregated fund
pension plans in our group business. In general, profit sharing may serve to
reduce the impact of interest rate fluctuations on our profit by transferring a
portion of total profits or excess interest margins to policyholders. While
product design reduces our interest rate sensitivity, changes in interest rates
will impact this business to the extent they result in changes to interest
income and to the extent they affect the levels of new product sales or
surrenders and withdrawals of business in force. In addition, longer-term
sustained declines in interest rates, or increases in the longevity profile of
our insureds, may adversely impact the profitability of our life business. In
general, reductions in our investment income below the rates assumed in our
product pricing would reduce the profit margins on our in-force life insurance
business.

Results of our asset management activities may also be affected by interest
rates, since management fees are generally based on the value of assets under
management, which fluctuate with changes in the level of interest rates.

In May 2000, we entered into a non-binding letter of intent with Munich Re
to reduce our cross-shareholdings in each other by December 31, 2003 and to
restructure our shareholdings in certain jointly owned subsidiaries and
affiliates by June 30, 2002, or by another date as mutually agreed. In January
2002, pursuant to an agreement entered into with Munich Re in April 2001 in
connection with our acquisition of Dresdner Bank, we disposed of substantially
all of our shareholding in HypoVereinsbank to Munich Re and acquired Munich Re's
shareholding in Allianz Lebensversicherungs-AG. See "Major Shareholders and
Related Party Transactions."

EXCHANGE RATES

We publish our consolidated financial statements in euros. A significant
portion of our revenues and expenses from our subsidiaries outside the euro
zone, including in the United States, Switzerland and the United Kingdom,
originates in currencies other than the euro currencies. As a result, we have a
financial reporting translation exposure attributable to fluctuations in the
values of these currencies against the euro. The impact of these fluctuations in
exchange rates is mitigated by the fact that our non-euro revenues and related
expenses, as well as assets and liabilities, are generally denominated in the
same currencies. See "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk" for a discussion of our management of foreign exchange rate-related risks
and Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements for certain historical
exchange rate information.

CONSOLIDATION DIFFERENCES

Our reported results in 2001 were significantly affected by the
consolidation of Dresdner Bank and Nicholas-Applegate as of July 23, 2001 and
January 31, 2001, respectively. For further information, see Note 3 to our
consolidated financial statements. The acquisition of Dresdner Bank also
significantly impacted our consolidated Group and segment reporting. For a

19



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

discussion of accounting and reporting developments, see "-- Accounting
Differences".

The effects of our adoption of SIC 12 in 2000 are discussed under
"-— Accounting Differences" below.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We have identified the accounting policies that are critical to our
business operations and the understanding of its results of operations. These
critical accounting policies are those which involve the most complex or
subjective decisions or assessments, and relate to insurance reserves, loan loss
allowances, and the determination of the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities, including impairment charges. In each case, the determination of
these items is
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fundamental to our financial condition and results of operations, and requires
management to make complex judgments based on information and financial data
that may change in future periods. As a result, determinations regarding these
items necessarily involve the use of assumptions and subjective judgments as to
future events and are subject to change, and the use of different assumptions or
data could produce materially different results.

INSURANCE RESERVES

Our insurance reserves represent estimates of future payouts that we will
make in respect of property-casualty and life/health insurance claims, including
expenses relating to such claims. Such estimates are made on a case-by-case
basis, based on the facts known to us at the time reserves are established, and
are periodically adjusted to recognize the estimated ultimate cost of a claim.
In addition, we establish so-called "IBNR" reserves in our property-casualty
business to recognize the estimated cost of losses that have occurred but about
which we do not yet have notice. When actual claims experience differs from our
previous estimates, the resulting difference will generally be reflected in our
reported results for the period of the change in estimate. In each case, the
establishment of our insurance reserves is an inherently uncertain process,
involving assumptions as to factors such as court decisions, changes in laws,
social, economic and demographic trends, inflation and other factors affecting
claim costs, and, in our life/health insurance business, assumptions concerning
mortality and morbidity trends. In recent years, our property-casualty insurance
reserves in the U.S. have been significantly impacted by claims relating to
asbestos and environmental exposures. For a further discussion of our
property-casualty insurance reserves, see "-- Property-Casualty Insurance
Reserves."

LOAN LOSS ALLOWANCES

Our loan loss allowances represent management's estimate of the probable
credit losses in our loan portfolio. Allowances are established on a
case-by-case basis, are updated over time, and are described at greater length
under "-- Selected Statistical Information Relating to Our Banking Operations."
Judgments concerning the timing and level of our loan loss allowances are based
on numerous estimates and judgments, including determinations concerning
borrower creditworthiness, contractual loan terms and available judicial and
other remedies. Allowances for counterparty risk are established against
individual exposures and are subject to periodic management review. Specific
loan loss allowances are recorded if it is probable that the borrower will not
repay principal and interest according to the contractually agreed terms.
Individually impaired loans are measured on the basis of the present value of
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expected cash flows and take into consideration the borrower's financial
condition, the contractual terms of the loan and the value of collateral if any.

General loss allowances are established to provide for incurred but
unidentified losses that are inherent in the loan portfolio at the relevant
balance sheet date. The general loan loss allowance is reviewed in the light of
general economic conditions, the size and diversity of the portfolio and
historical default rates.

Country risk allowances are established for transfer risk, which is a
measure of the likely ability of a borrower in a certain country to repay its
foreign currency-denominated debt in light of the impact of currency
devaluations, macroeconomic or political developments in that country. Country
risk allowances are based on country ratings that incorporate current and
historical economic, political and other data to categorize countries by risk
profile.

When we determine that a loan is uncollectible, the loan is charged off
against any existing specific loss allowance or directly recognized as expense
in the income statement. Changes in judgments and analyses we utilize may lead
to changes over time in the level and timing of the allowances we establish and
related charge-offs, which may in turn materially impact the results of our
banking segment.
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FAIR VALUES AND IMPAIRMENTS

A portion of our assets and liabilities is recorded at fair value,
including trading assets and liabilities, and securities available for sale.
Fair value determinations for financial assets and liabilities are based
generally on listed market prices or broker or dealer price quotations. If
prices are not readily determinable or if liquidating our positions is
reasonably expected to affect market prices, fair value is based on either
internal valuation models or management's estimate of amounts that could be
realized under current market conditions, assuming an orderly liquidation over a
reasonable period of time. Fair values of certain financial instruments,
including OTC derivative instruments, are determined using pricing models that
consider, among other factors, contractual and market prices, correlations, time
value, credit, yield curve volatility factors and/or prepayment rates of the
underlying positions. The use of different pricing models and assumptions could
lead to materially different estimates of fair value.

Financial assets are reviewed regularly for impairments, and valuation
write-downs to fair value are charged to income if a permanent dimunition in
value occurs. Determinations concerning permanent dimunition involve judgments
concerning market conditions, issuers' financial conditions and other factors.

For a further discussion of the application of these and other accounting
policies, see Notes 4, 42 and 43 to our consolidated financial statements.

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Off-balance sheet arrangements that we enter into in our investment and
banking activities include securitization and other transactions involving
non-consolidated financing vehicles, credit lines and loan commitments.
Off-balance-sheet arrangements we enter into in our insurance business also
include letter of credit (LOC) transactions where we provide LOC coverage for
all or part of our obligations to insureds or other customers, or where similar
coverage is provided to us by reinsurers or other counterparties, in each case
in accordance with applicable credit or regulatory requirements.
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Off-balance sheet transactions may be carried out with or through a variety
of unconsolidated, special- or limited-purpose entities (SPEs). In our insurance
and reinsurance businesses, we have entered into reinsurance transactions with
SPEs which provide us with long-term reinsurance coverage, and were funded
through the issuance of so-called "catastrophe bonds" to third-party investors.
In our banking business, we have established SPEs in order to provide
administrative services, engage in underwriting activities, enter into
derivative transactions, provide liquidity and overdraft facilities and
guarantees, securitize financial assets we hold, reduce credit risks on our loan
portfolios, and provide alternative financing structures and investment products
for our customers. Material exposures related to the transactions are recorded
or disclosed in our consolidated financial statements. Risks associated with
establishing SPEs and transactions entered into with SPEs are reviewed in the
banking operations risk management process.

ACCOUNTING DIFFERENCES

On January 1, 2001, we adopted IAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement, and IAS 40, Investment property. IAS 39 sets forth requirements
for the recognition in financial statements and valuation of the financial
assets and liabilities of an enterprise, including the reporting of hedging
instruments, and relating to additional disclosure. Under this standard, all
financial assets and liabilities, including all derivatives, are initially
recognized on the balance sheet at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, all
financial assets are re-measured to fair value, with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities listed in the standard. This standard does not apply to
rights and obligations arising under insurance contracts. The effect of the
first-time
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recognition under IAS 39 of the market values of derivatives that have until now
not been shown in the balance sheet have been recorded in the beginning balance
of shareholders' equity. This reduced revenue reserves by E153 million.

IAS 40 covers investment property independent of the main activity of the
enterprise concerned. Investment property is real estate held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation. IAS 40 does not apply to real estate held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
The standard allows an enterprise to choose either a fair value model or a cost
model for valuation purposes. We have chosen the acquisition cost method, which
is consistent with our previous accounting policy. First-time application of IAS
40 has resulted only in changes in presentation.

With the first-time consolidation of the Dresdner Bank Group, we have
changed the structure of the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated
income statement. The purpose is to provide appropriate information for both the
insurance and banking activities within the Group. Some headings in the
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income statement have been combined.
To maintain transparency and clarity, the relevant information is presented in
detail in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

We have also expanded our segment reporting. In accordance with our
internal organizational structure and group controlling, the segment formerly
entitled financial services was replaced with two new segments, banking and
asset management, alongside our existing insurance segments of property-casualty
and life/health.

In addition, our property-casualty financial information by geographic
region has been adjusted to reflect specialty lines results separately, where in
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previous years specialty lines results were included in the results of the
geographic regions. Intra-segment consolidation adjustments impacted by this
change in reporting were also adjusted.

Amounts in the consolidated financial statements were reported for the
first time in E million without a decimal place.

All figures from fiscal year 2000 and 1999 have been restated to reflect
the foregoing changes, in order to permit comparison between years.

In addition, our adoption of SIC 12 in 2000 with retrospective application
to prior years resulted in consolidation of certain investment funds for prior
years. As a result, our IAS net income for 1999 increased by approximately E39
million compared to the amounts we previously recorded for this year. For the
year ended December 31, 2000, our IAS net income decreased by approximately E17
million. In addition, in 2000, our accounting for investments in certain
associates accounted for by the equity method was changed, from recording equity
results on a current basis to recording such results on a lag of no more than
six months. The change in lag period was necessitated by reporting deadlines of
the Allianz Group. Furthermore, in 2000, goodwill was reclassified to present
goodwill in the appropriate segment for each subsidiary, rather than being
included primarily in the property-casualty insurance segment. IAS 36,
Impairment of Assets, IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, and IAS 38, Intangible Assets, were adopted by the Group on January 1,
2000. The impact of the adoption of these standards was immaterial.

For more information on accounting changes, see Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SPECIAL INCOME ADJUSTMENTS
Our consolidated results of operations discussed below include the effects

of certain special adjustments recorded in 2000 and 1999. The following table
presents the effect on our net income of these special adjustments:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

=5 =TI —— 1,075 383
GoOodWill WritedoWn . @ v v et ittt ittt e ettt ettt et et eae e —— —— (128)
HoloCaust ProvVIisSion. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt eaeeeeeees —— —— (42)

Total adjustment S . @ vt ittt ittt et e e ettt e eeeeee e - 1,075 213

The adjustments to income taxes in 2000 and 1999 included the release of
deferred taxes, primarily in Germany, resulting from a decrease in statutory tax
rates. In 2000, the statutory tax rate in Germany was reduced from 40% to 25%,
effective for 2001. Under IAS, deferred tax assets and liabilities were revalued
in the current year, leading to non-recurring net income effects. In 1999,
statutory tax rates in Germany were also reduced, but to a lesser extent.

The following table presents a summary of net income, adjusted to eliminate
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the effect of these special items:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

Net income as reported under IAS. .. ...ttt ttennnneennnn 1,623 3,460 2,317
Special adjustments. ...ttt it e e e e —— (1,075) (213)
Net income as adjusted.......oi ittt iininnneeeennnenens 1,623 2,385 2,104

Excluding the impact of these items, net income decreased by 31.9% in 2001
compared to 2000 and increased by 13.4% in 2000 compared to 1999. The effect of
these special adjustments on our total company and segment results is also
discussed where applicable under "Discussion of Operations by Business Segment"
below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Our total income increased E12,168 million, or 14.5%, to E95,957 million in
2001 from E83,789 million in 2000, due primarily to the acquisition of Dresdner
Bank in July 2001, together with increases in property-casualty insurance,
offset in part by a decrease in life/health insurance. Despite the increase in
total income, our earnings from ordinary activities before taxation decreased by
E3,086 million, or 62.8%, to E1,827 million in 2001 from E4,913 million in 2000,
reflecting primarily the effects of the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001
in the United States and weakness in the capital markets. On a consolidated
Group basis, the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001 resulted in net claims
costs of approximately E1.5 billion. As a result of the weakness in the capital
markets, earnings were also negatively affected by E1.6 billion of investment
write-downs. We had a consolidated tax benefit of E840 million in 2001 and a
consolidated tax expense of E176 million in 2000, representing overall effective
tax rates of (52.1)% and 2.8% respectively, compared to statutory rates for our
primary German and other operating subsidiaries that ranged from 10.0% to 43.0%,
and averaged 19.2%. The consolidated tax benefit in 2001 was due to a
substantial amount of tax losses resulting primarily from claims
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related to the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack in the United States,
together with a significant amount of tax-exempt realized gains on investments.

Net income decreased E1,837 million, or 53.1%, to E1,623 million in 2001,
compared to E3,460 million in 2000, reflecting primarily the impact of the
special adjustment to income taxes in 2000, the effects of the terrorist attack
of September 11, 2001 in the United States and weakness in the capital markets,
offset in part by the tax benefit discussed above.

The following table sets forth the percentage changes for 2001 over 2000 in
our total income, total expenses and net income by segment, which are discussed
in greater detail below, and for the Group as a whole. Results in our banking
and asset management segments reflected primarily to the acquisition of Dresdner
Bank in July 2001. Percentage changes for 2001 over 2000 for our banking
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segment, which we established as a separate segment in 2001, are based on the
results for 2000 of the banking operations of the Allianz Group, which we
reported in 2000 and prior years together with asset management as part of our
financial services segment. See "-- Asset Management Operations" and "-- Banking
Operations."

% CHANGE 2001/2000

TOTAL INCOME TOTAL EXPENSES NET INCOME
Property-Casualty. ... iinennennnnn 8.2 % 12.6 % (27.5)%
Life/Health. ...ttt it iii e i (8.2)% (5.2)% (63.4)%
BanKing. oottt ittt ettt e e 645.7 % 689.4 % (317.8)%
Asset Management ... .....eieeneeeeennnneens 59.0 % 83.2 % (300.0)%
Consolidated GroUP ..« v e vttt eeeeeeneeennn 14.5 % 19.3 % (53.1)%

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Our total income increased E7,970 million, or 10.5%, to E83,789 million in
2000 from E75,819 million in 1999, with significant contributions from each of
our business segments. Our earnings from ordinary activities before taxation
increased E109 million, or 2.3%, to E4,913 million in 2000 compared to E4,804
million in 1999. Our consolidated taxes of E176 million in 2000 and E1,513
million in 1999 represented overall effective tax rates of 2.8% and 30.9%,
respectively, compared to statutory rates for our primary German and other
operating subsidiaries that ranged from 11.0% to 44.6%, and averaged 37.8%. The
difference between statutory and effective rates in 2000 was due primarily to
municipal trade tax and similar taxes, tax-exempt income and income arising from
the release of deferred taxes on account of reductions in statutory tax rates.
As indicated in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, the reduction
in 2001 in German statutory tax rates results in a tax benefit for U.S. GAAP
purposes which in 2000 accounted for a significant portion of the difference
between our IAS and U.S. GAAP net income. Under IAS, the release of deferred tax
liabilities due to the effect of tax rate changes on investments available for
sale is recorded directly to equity.

Net income increased E1,143 million, or 49.3%, to E3,460 million in 2000
compared to E2,317 million in 1999, reflecting the improved earnings before
taxation and decreased effective tax rates noted above. Our property-casualty
insurance business was the main driver of improved earnings in 2000, in
particular due to the impact of the release of deferred taxes resulting from the
reduction in statutory tax rates.
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The following table sets forth the percentage changes for 2000 over 1999 in
our total income, total expenses and net income by segment, which are discussed
in greater detail below, and for the Group as a whole. Percentage changes for
2000 over 1999 for our banking segment, which we established as a separate
segment in 2001, are based on the results for 1999 of the banking operations of
the Allianz Group, which we reported in 2000 and prior years together with asset
management as part of our financial services segment. See "-- Asset Management
Operations" and "-- Banking Operations." Results in our asset management segment
reflected significant growth in 2000, which was due primarily to the acquisition
of PIMCO in May 2000. Percentage changes for 2000 over 1999 in our asset
management segment, which was established as a separate segment in 1997, may not
be meaningful due to the relatively small size and start-up nature of this
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segment in 1999.

% CHANGE 2000/1999

TOTAL INCOME TOTAL EXPENSES NET INCOME
Property-Casualty. ... iinennnnnnnn 7.4 % 7.4 % 61.9 %
Life/Health. . ittt it ie i 13.8 % 13.1 % 59.4 %
Banking. ...ttt e e e (4.0)% (8.2)% 236.7 %
Asset Management .. .....oeieeneeeeennnennens 148.5 % 186.7 % (478.3)%
Consolidated GroUP. .« .o e ettt eeeenneeennn 10.5 % 11.1 % 49.3 %

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Total assets increased by E502,930 million, or 114.3%, to E942,925 million
at December 31, 2001, from E439,995 million at December 31, 2000, primarily as a
result of our acquisition of Dresdner Bank in July 2001. The Group's own
investments grew by E456,813 million, or 139.2%, to E784,938 million in 2001
from E328,125 million in 2000, while separate account assets increased E1,922
million, or 8.4%, to E24,692 million at December 31, 2001, from E22,770 million
at December 31, 2000. Insurance investments grew by E19,066 million, or 5.7%, to
E354,135 million in 2001 from E335,069 million in 2000.

Our shareholders' equity decreased by 11.1% to E31,664 million at December
31, 2001 compared to E35,603 million at December 31, 2000. This decrease
resulted primarily from a decrease in net unrealized gains of E5,210 million in
2001.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Total assets increased by E29,305 million, or 7.1%, at December 31, 2000 to
E439,995 million, from E410,690 million at December 31, 1999 as a result of both
internal growth and acquisitions. The Group's own investments grew by E15,534
million, or 5.0%, to E328,125 million in 2000 from E312,591 million in 1999,
while investments held on account and for the risk of life policyholders
increased E3,661 million, or 19.2%, to E22,770 million at December 31, 2000 from
E19,109 million at December 31, 1999.

Our shareholders' equity increased by 20.0% to E35,603 million at December
31, 2000 compared to E29,676 million at December 31, 1999. This substantial
increase resulted primarily from retained profit of E3,154 million and net
unrealized investment gains of E1, 745 million.
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DISCUSSION OF OPERATIONS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
INSURANCE OPERATIONS

We provide property-casualty and life/health products and services on an
individual and group basis in more than 70 countries worldwide. Except for our
specialty line insurance operations, our insurance operations are centered
around our flagship subsidiary operations. In our property-casualty business, we
provide automobile, homeowners, travel and other personal lines products and are
a leading provider of commercial and industrial coverages to business
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enterprises of all sizes, including many of the world's largest companies. Our
life/health insurance businesses provide endowment, annuity and term insurance
products and a wide range of health, disability and related coverages to
individual insureds, as well as group life, group health and pension products to
employers. In addition to strong local positions, we have established leading
positions in certain specialty lines on a global basis, including credit
insurance and travel and assistance insurance.

Our products are marketed in Germany primarily under the "Allianz" brand
name. In other countries we generally operate through our subsidiary insurers'
brand names, which are identified as part of the Allianz Group. We believe that
our brand name is one of the best-known and most highly respected in the German
marketplace, combining a reputation for excellent customer service with an image
of superior financial strength. In 1999, we launched a global promotional
campaign to further establish "Allianz" brand recognition worldwide.

Our philosophy is to provide considerable latitude to our operating
entities in product design, underwriting, distribution, marketing and operations
while providing various levels of centralized support in such areas as financial
and strategic planning, investment management, knowledge transfer, accounting
and reinsurance to our subsidiaries from our headgquarters in Munich. We refer to
this combination of centralized strategic management and local business autonomy
as a "multi-local" approach to our global insurance business. We believe that
this gives our subsidiary operations the flexibility to best respond to local
market conditions and allows us to implement strategic goals and create
incentives for our employees on a country-by-country basis.
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PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain financial information for our
property-casualty operations for the years indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

Gross premiums Written. ...ttt ittt ettt et aeeeeeennn 42,137 38,382
Premiums earned (Net) (L) « v v ittt it ie ettt ettt eeaneeaeeens 34,428 31,529
Interest and similar 1NCOME. .. i ittt ittt ittt ettt eeeaeeanns 5,068 5,568
Income from affiliated enterprises, joint ventures and
associated enterpPrises . ittt it e e e e e e e 889 1,833
Other income from Investments........oiiiin it eneeneenneens 4,307 4,259
Trading 1NCOME . & v ittt it et e e e ettt e et ettt eaeeeeeeeeeaaaens 1,451 (10)
Fee and commission income, and income from service
PRl e I v 1 e == 1,425 940
Other INCOmME. & @ittt ittt et e et e e ettt ettt et et e eaeeaeeens 1,329 1,078
Total INCOME . v ittt ettt et e ettt e et ettt e eeeeeeeaeean 48,897 45,197
Insurance benefits(net) (2) « v ittt ittt et et e ee e (28,200) (25,413)
Interest and sSimilar EXPENSES . v v i v vttt teeeeeeeennneeeeeeeenns (1,323) (1,1306)
Other expenses for investmentsS. .......i ittt eennnnnnnn (2,888) (1,913)
LoAn 10SS AllOWaANC . i v i vttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt (4) —=
Acquisition costs and administrative expenses(3)............ (10,042) (9,1006)
Amortization of goodwill. ... ...ttt e (349) (277)

36,027
29,783
5,169

1,113
3,733
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(O ul o TS oD @ o 1= = (3,682) (3,453)

I ol B D g o1 o = = (46,488) (41,298)
FEarnings from ordinary activities before taxation........... 2,409 3,899
T AR S e v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et aeeeeee e eaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaeees 701 5
Minority interests in earnings....... ..ot imi et eennnnns (740) (642)
J S A 1a Yo 1 2,364 3,262
Special 1ncome effeCts. . ittt ittt e e e e —— (1,037)
Adjusted Net INCOME. ..t ittt ittt it e et ettt e aeeeeeeeeeaeenens 2,364 2,225

(1) Net of reinsurance ceded of E6,669 million, E6,488 million and E5, 880
million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(2) Includes loss and loss adjustment expenses of E27,919 million, E24,566
million, and E23,065 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(3) Includes net underwriting costs of E9,543 million, E8,548 million, and

E8,062 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. Our gross premiums written from property-casualty
operations in 2001 increased by E3,755 million, or 9.8%, to E42,137 million from
E38,382 million in 2000. Eliminating the effect of exchange rate movements,
which increased 2001 gross premiums written by E28 million, gross premiums
written increased by 9.7%. This increase came as a result of increases in all of
our geographic segments, particularly in Rest of Europe, due to growth in France
and Italy, and in Germany as discussed below.
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Premiums Earned (Net). On a Group-wide basis, property-casualty net
premiums earned in 2001 and 2000 reflected premiums ceded to reinsurers of
E6,669 million and E6,488 million, respectively, resulting in overall retention
levels of approximately 83.8% in 2001 and 82.9% in 2000. Net premiums earned
increased by E2,899 million, or 9.2%, to E34,428 million in 2001 from E31,529
million in 2000, paralleling the 9.8% increase in gross premiums written.

Trading Income. Trading income from our property-casualty operations
increased E1,461 million, to E1,451 million in 2001 from a loss of E10 million
in 2000, due primarily to E1,437 million in gains generated by Allianz AG from
derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied.
These gains relate to derivative financial instruments embedded in exchangeable
bonds issued and from forward contracts that are used to hedge investments, but
that do not qualify for hedge accounting. For additional information, see Note
42 to our consolidated financial statements.

(Net). Net insurance benefits for our worldwide

which consist of claims paid, changes in reserves
for loss and loss adjustment expenses, changes in other reserves and expenses of
premium refunds, increased by E2,787 million, or 11.0%, to E28,200 million in
2001 from E25,413 million in 2000. A significant portion of the increase was
attributable to the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack in the United States,

Insurance Benefits
property-casualty business,
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which negatively impacted net claims in the property-casualty lines by
approximately E1.5 billion in 2001, primarily in the United States, and to a
lesser extent, in our reinsurance operations in Germany and other countries. The
remainder of the increase in net insurance benefits related to increased premium
volume.

The following table sets forth net loss, expense and combined ratio
information for our property-casualty operations by geographic region for the
years 2001 and 2000:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
REST OF REST OF SPECIALTY
GERMANY EUROPE NAFTA WORLD LINES
Loss ratio(l) cue e e e e e e ittt ieeennnns 76.2% 80.3% 99.9% 72.8% 66.5%
Expense ratio(2) ... einnnnnn. 26.8% 26.2% 29.2% 32.9% 39.5%
Combined ratio.. ..ot eenennnnn. 103.0% 106.5% 129.1% 105.7% 106.0%
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
REST OF REST OF SPECIALTY
GERMANY EUROPE NAFTA WORLD LINES
Loss ratio(l) cu e e e e e et ettt ieeeennnns 73.5% 80.8% 87.9% 75.5% 53.1%
Expense ratio(2) ...t einennnn. 24.2% 27.1% 29.6% 30.0% 36.3%
Combined ratio.....ee et eenennnnn. 97.7% 107.9% 117.8% 105.5% 89.4%

(1) Represents ratio of total loss and loss adjustment expenses to net earned
premium.

(2) Represents ratio of net underwriting costs to net earned premium.

The overall increase in the Group combined ratio to 108.8% in 2001 from
104.9% in 2000 reflects deteriorating loss ratios in the NAFTA zone, Germany and
our specialty lines, primarily due to increased net claims as a result of the
September 11, 2001 terrorist attack and, in the case of specialty lines,
unfavorable economic conditions, offset in part by improved loss ratios in Rest
of Europe and Rest of World. Excluding the effect of the claims relating to the
September 11, 2001 terrorist attack in the United States, the combined ratio
would have decreased slightly to 104.4% in 2001 from 104.9% in 2000. The Group
expense ratio worsened slightly to 27.7% in 2001 from 27.0% in 2000, due
primarily to expenses incurred in our German Property-Casualty Group and at
Allianz AG, the results of which are included in our property-casualty segment,
in connection with the build-out of our information technology systems and
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marketing and sales force development. Also contributing to the increased
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expense ratio were expenses incurred at Allianz AG relating to the integration
of Dresdner Bank.

Acquisition Costs and Administrative Expenses. Acquisition costs and
administrative expenses consist primarily of payments and changes in deferred
acquisition costs, administrative expenses, and net underwriting costs. Net
underwriting costs of E9,543 million in 2001 increased E995 million, or 11.6%,
over 2000 levels of E8,548 million, which slightly exceeded our property-—
casualty premium growth rate of 9.8% due primarily to expenses incurred in
connection with information technology, marketing and sales force development
and the integration of Dresdner Bank information technology systems.

Net Income. Net income from property-casualty insurance operations in 2001
decreased by E898 million, or 27.5%, to E2,364 million in 2001 compared with
E3,262 million in 2000. The decrease was driven primarily by the special
adjustment to income taxes, which benefitted our results in 2000, increased net
claims resulting from the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack and reduced
investment results, reflecting weakness in the capital markets. These were
offset in part by a tax benefit resulting from a substantial amount of tax
losses attributable primarily to claims related to the September 11, 2001
terrorist attack in the United States, together with a significant amount of
tax-exempt realized gains on investments resulting in large part from forward
sales and other transactions that were entered into in 2001 but concluded in
2002. See "Additional Information -- Taxation -- German Taxation."

On a Group-wide basis, amortization of goodwill was E349 million in 2001,
an increase of E72 million, or 26.0%, from E277 million in 2000, largely as a
result of amortization of goodwill on acquisitions made in Australia and the
Netherlands. Minority interest increased to E746 million in 2001 from E642
million in 2000.

Our consolidated results of operations in 2000 included the effects of
certain special adjustments to income taxes. There were no special adjustments
to our consolidated results of operations in 2001. See "-- Special Income
Adjustments." Excluding the impact of these items in 2000, net income would have
increased by E139 million, or 6.2%, to E2,364 million in 2001, from E2,225
million in 2000.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Our gross premiums written from property-casualty
operations in 2000 increased by E2,355 million, or 6.5%, to E38,382 million from
E36,027 million in 1999. Eliminating the effect of exchange rate movements,
gross premiums written increased by 4.8%. This increase came largely as a result
of growth in Germany and Rest of World as discussed below.

Premiums Earned (Net). On a Group-wide basis, property-casualty net
premiums earned in 2000 and 1999 reflected premiums ceded to reinsurers of
E6,488 million and E5,880 million, respectively, resulting in overall retention
levels of approximately 82.9% in 2000 and 83.5% in 1999. Net premiums earned
increased by E1,746 million, or 5.9%, to E31,529 million in 2000 from E29, 783
million in 1999, paralleling the 6.5% increase in gross premiums written.

Insurance Benefits (Net). Net insurance benefits for our worldwide
property-casualty business, which consists of claims paid, changes in reserves
for loss and loss adjustment expenses, changes in other reserves and expenses of
premium refunds, increased by E1,458 million, or 6.1%, to E25,413 million in
2000 from E23,955 million in 1999, consistent with the growth of 6.5% in gross
premiums in this segment in 2000. Excluding the effects of exchange-rate
fluctuations (E503 million), net insurance benefits would have increased by 4.0%
to E24,910 million in 2000 from E23,955 million in 1999.
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The following table sets forth net loss, expense and combined ratio
information for our property-casualty operations by geographic area for the
years 2000 and 1999:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

REST OF REST OF SPECIALTY
GERMANY EUROPE NAFTA WORLD LINES
Loss ratio....... ..o .. 73.5% 80.8% 87.9% 75.5% 53.1%
Expense ratio.........ccovii... 24.2% 27.1% 29.6% 30.0% 36.3%
Combined ratio................. 97.7% 107.9% 117.8% 105.5% 89.4%

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REST OF REST OF SPECIALTY
GERMANY EUROPE NAFTA WORLD LINES
Loss ratio....... ... i, 72.8% 81.6% 80.5% 81.6% 55.9%
Expense ratio.........ccoviv... 24.4% 27.6% 26.6% 28.8% 39.6%
Combined ratio................. 97.2% 109.2% 107.1% 110.4% 95.5%

The overall increase in the Group combined ratio to 104.9% in 2000 from
104.5% in 1999 reflected an increase in the loss ratio to 77.9% from 77.4%,
primarily due to loss expenses caused by the late-1999 storms "Lothar" and
"Martin" and increased workers' compensation claims in the United States.
Improving loss ratios in Rest of Europe and Rest of World were offset by
increases in Germany and the NAFTA zone. The Group expense ratio improved
slightly to 27.0%, with improving expense ratios in Germany, Rest of Europe and
Specialty Lines being offset by increases in the NAFTA zone and Rest of World.

Acquisition Costs and Administrative Expenses. Acquisition costs and
administrative expenses consist primarily of payments and changes in deferred
acquisition costs, administrative expenses, and net underwriting costs. Net
underwriting costs of E8,548 million in 2000 increased E486 million, or 6.0%,
over 1999 levels of E8,062 million, which was in line with our property-
casualty premium growth rate of 6.5%.

Net Income. Net income from property-casualty insurance operations in 2000

increased by E1,247 million, or 61.9%, to E3,262 million in 2000 compared with
E2,015 million in 1999. The increase was driven primarily by a release of

deferred taxes resulting from reduced statutory tax rates, primarily in Germany.

On a Group-wide basis, amortization of goodwill was E277 million in 2000,
decrease of E111 million, or 28.6%, from E388 million in 1999, largely as a
result of a significant goodwill writedown of E128 million in 1999 related to
Allianz Australia Ltd. Minority interest increased to E642 million in 2000 from
E475 million in 1999.
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Our consolidated results of operations include the effects of certain
special adjustments recorded in 2000 and 1999, including adjustments to income
taxes of E1,037 in 2000 and E302 million in 1999. These adjustments to income
taxes included the release of deferred taxes, primarily in Germany, resulting
from a decrease in statutory tax rates. In 2000, the statutory tax rate in
Germany was reduced from 40% to 25%, effective for 2001. Under IAS, deferred tax
assets and liabilities were revalued in the current year, leading to
non-recurring net income effects. In 1999, statutory tax rates in Germany were
also reduced, but to a lesser extent. In addition, in 1999, we recorded the
goodwill writedown of E128 million related to Allianz Australia Ltd. discussed
above and a Holocaust provision of E42 million. Excluding the impact of these
items, net income would have increased by E342 million, or 18.2%, to E2,225
million in 2000, from E1,883 million in 1999. The effect of these special
adjustments on our geographic segment results is further discussed where
applicable under "Discussion of Property-Casualty Operations by Geographic
Region" below.
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DISCUSSION OF PROPERTY-CASUALTY OPERATIONS BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION

The following table sets forth our property-casualty gross premiums written
and net income by geographic region. Consistent with our general practice, gross
premiums written by geographic region is presented before consolidation
adjustments representing the elimination of transactions between Group companies
in different geographic regions and different segments, and net income by
geographic region is presented before those consolidation adjustments,
amortization of goodwill and minority interests.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCC

(E IN MILLIONS)

GETMANY « o e et v vt e e e e eneeeeeeseeeeennneens 12,644 3,773 11,948 3,320 11,437 1,89
Rest Of EBUTOPE . v ittt ittt it teeeeeeaeeens 19,6006 8438 17,302 1,285 16,315 79
N Tt i e e e ettt ettt et e e eeeaaeeeeeeeennnns 6,822 (1,030) 6,300 (86) 5,384 31
Rest of World. ... i i i i ittt eennnnnenns 2,401 39 1,886 5 1,559 (9
Specialty LineS. .. ieee e eennnnns 2,321 94 2,267 227 2,115 16
Consolidation adjustments............... (1,657) (265) (1,321) (570) (783) (18

SUbtOotal. v ittt ettt e e e e e 42,137 3,459 38,382 4,181 36,027 2,87
Amortization of goodwill................ - (349) - (277) - (38
Minority interests........c.oiiiiiiii.. —— (740) —— (642) —— (47

o X o O 42,137 2,364 38,382 3,262 36,027 2,01

GERMANY

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Germany 1is the world's third-largest property-casualty insurance market,
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based on gross premiums written in 2000. We were the largest provider of
property-casualty insurance in Germany, with an estimated market share of 18.7%,
as measured by gross premiums written in 2001. Germany is our most important
market for property-casualty insurance. As a percentage of our total
property-casualty gross premiums written worldwide, Germany accounted for 28.9%
in 2001, 30.1% in 2000 and 31.1% in 1999. This decrease in percentage primarily
reflects the increased levels of gross premiums written from our operations in
countries other than Germany.

We conduct our property-casualty insurance operations in Germany primarily
through Sachversicherungsgruppe Deutschland (or the German Property-Casualty
Group), which handles all our lines of property-casualty insurance in Germany
other than credit insurance, and Allianz AG, the parent company of the Group,
which acts as the clearing house for the Group's reinsurance needs, including
acting as primary reinsurer for other Group companies and procuring third-party
reinsurance for the Group.

GERMAN PROPERTY-CASUALTY GROUP

The German Property-Casualty Group comprises a number of different
operating entities, some of which offer a full range of property-casualty lines
and others of which provide specialized coverages:

— Allianz Versicherungs—-AG (or Allianz Versicherung), which is the German
Property-Casualty Group's primary full-line property-casualty insurer;

- Frankfurter Versicherungs-AG, a full-line property-casualty insurer based
in Frankfurt;
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- Bayerische Versicherungsbank—-AG, a full-line property-casualty insurer
based in Munich;

— Vereinte Versicherung AG, a full-line provider of property-casualty
insurance;

— Vereinte Rechtsschutzversicherung-AG, a specialist provider of legal
expense insurance;

— Allianz Globus MAT Versicherung-AG (or Allianz Globus MAT), a specialist
provider of MAT insurance;

— Kraft Versicherungs—-AG, a specialist provider of automobile insurance;
and

— Vereinte Spezial Versicherung-AG, a specialist provider of automobile
insurance.

Our interests in some of these subsidiaries will be substantially
restructured pursuant to our letter of intent with Munich Re. See "Major
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions."

PRODUCTS

The operating companies that make up the German Property-Casualty Group
together offer a comprehensive range of property-casualty insurance products and
related services to customers in Germany. The German Property-Casualty Group's
principal product lines are automobile liability and other automobile insurance,
fire and property insurance, personal accident insurance, liability insurance,
legal expense insurance, and transport and aviation insurance.
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The German Property-Casualty Group's policy terms and conditions largely
conform to those offered by other insurers in the German market. While the
German Property-Casualty Group does seek to develop new policy types, given its
position as the market leader in the German property-casualty insurance market,
any competitive advantage gained by the introduction of new policy types tends
to be short-lived, as competitors introduce equivalent forms of coverage.

In all of our German business lines, policy persistency is an important
factor in our profitability. Accordingly, we seek to ensure that our
policyholders maintain their policies in force with us for long periods of time.
Based on German industry statistics, we believe that our persistency rates are
generally higher than those of most other German companies. In the
property-casualty area, we have found that customers with multiple policies with
us generally keep their policies in force for longer periods of time.
Accordingly, the German Property-Casualty Group provides its customers with
substantial discounts to the extent they hold multiple Allianz insurance
policies. We estimate that currently approximately 60% of the German Property-
Casualty Group's German personal lines customers have more than one Allianz
policy in force.

While our insurance operations in Germany generally operate on a
decentralized basis through separate operating entities, many of our products in
Germany are distributed through common or overlapping distribution systems. The
importance of these distribution channels varies by type of business. For the
German Property-Casualty Group's personal and commercial lines, the network of
full-time tied agents is our most important distribution channel. For industrial
lines, the brokerage channel predominates. In connection with our acquisition of
Dresdner Bank on July 23, 2001, we expect to place approximately 1,000 insurance
specialists to sell both life insurance products and property-casualty insurance
products at Dresdner Bank branches throughout Germany, of whom more than 700 had
been placed at December 31, 2001. The relative importance of each of these
distribution channels also varies by region and by product mix.

30
The following sets forth certain key data concerning our German insurance

distribution systems as they related to property-casualty insurance at and for
the year ended December 31, 2001:

% OF 2001
PROPERTY-CASUALTY

NUMBER (1) PREMIUMS
Full-time tied agent S . @it ittt ittt et ettt eaeeeeeenen 11,970 66.1
Part-time tied agentsS. ..ttt ittt ittt ettt aeeeeeeen 43,201 6.8
= a3 kTN 7,878 14.2
2 0 2,541 (2) 2.8
[ ] 5 o 1Sl (1 T —— 10.1
e X 100.0

(1) Represents the total number in Germany for all Allianz Group segments.
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(2) Represents the number of German branches at Dresdner Bank (803), and at two
unaffiliated banks, Volks-und Raiffeisenbanken (1,730) and Industrie
Kredit-Bank (8), with which we have distribution agreements covering our
property-casualty and life/health insurance products.

(3) Includes all Allianz Group employees in Germany, who are able to sell
Allianz policies.

In our German property-casualty insurance business, we distribute our
products primarily through a network of self-employed, full-time tied agents. We
believe that our network of tied agents is the largest full-time insurance sales
force in Europe. These agents, who have an average of more than ten years'
experience selling Allianz products, receive a full range of support from the
Allianz Group, from initial support in establishing an office and a portfolio to
pension benefits based upon the volume and product mix of their portfolios.
Apart from pension provisions, agent compensation is based primarily on volume,
although we also utilize a number of incentive schemes to encourage sales of
strategically more important policy types. Our full-time tied agents follow
centralized underwriting and pricing guidelines, allowing us to carefully
segment and monitor our German book of business.

ALLIANZ AG

Allianz AG, the parent company of the Group, acts as the reinsurance
clearinghouse for our German property-casualty operations, as well as other
Group companies. In addition, Allianz AG assumes a relatively small amount of
reinsurance from non-Group companies.

Like most insurers, the Allianz Group manages its overall exposure to
single risks or events through the purchase of reinsurance coverage both on a
treaty basis, under which risks are ceded to a reinsurer on specific blocks of
business where the underlying risks meet certain predetermined criteria, and on
a facultative basis, under which the reinsurer's prior approval is required on
each risk ceded. We place reinsurance with insurance companies based on
evaluation of the financial security of the reinsurer, terms of coverage and
price. The retention levels applicable to Allianz Group's insurance business are
established by risk category and determined by individual subsidiaries and
business units, subject to overall guidelines established at the Group level in
Munich. Generally, the Group establishes lists of approved reinsurers as well as
risk-retention guidelines on a per—-event and per-risk basis, and seeks to
coordinate the activities of its subsidiary insurers to avoid concentration of
risk with particular reinsurers and to ensure that the aggregate risk retentions
of Group companies are within Group guidelines. While each subsidiary is able to
place reinsurance directly with reinsurers other than Allianz AG, Allianz AG has
a preferred partnership with respect to reinsurance cessions of its
subsidiaries. For the
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years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, Allianz AG assumed 41.5%, 41.8%
and 42.8%, respectively, of all reinsurance ceded by Group companies.

While the Group remains liable as a primary insurer notwithstanding the
ceding of reinsurance to third parties, our evaluation criteria, which include
the claims-paying and debt ratings, capital and surplus levels, and marketplace
reputation of its reinsurers, are such that we believe any risks of
collectibility to which we are exposed are minimal, and historically Group
companies have not experienced difficulty in collecting from their reinsurers.
Munich Re is Allianz AG's primary outside reinsurer. For the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, Munich Re Group assumed E2,400 million, E2,300
million and E2,300 million in reinsurance premiums from the Allianz Group,
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representing 30.6%, 30.2% and 32.7%, respectively, of the Allianz Group's total
reinsurance premiums ceded. See Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. The following table sets forth premiums ceded by Allianz Group to
Munich Re Group and other reinsurers for the years indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Premiums ceded, gross

Munich Re GroUP .« o v vttt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeenn 2,400 30.6 2,300 30.2 2,300
[ oL 5,438 69.4 5,327 69.8 4,749
o o 7,838 100.0 7,627 100.0 7,049

Allianz AG acts as the primary reinsurer of our German property-casualty
subsidiaries, other than HERMES, for which Munich Re is the primary reinsurer.
Allianz AG assumes reinsurance on an intra-Group basis from such subsidiaries
and centralizes the placement of outgoing reinsurance with third-party carriers.
In the life/health area, Allianz AG and Munich Re each assume 50% of the
reinsurance ceded by Allianz Lebensversicherungs—-AG, the main operating company
for our German life insurance operations. Outside of Germany, Allianz AG acts as
a reinsurer of Group subsidiaries, with a preferred partnership on all business
ceded, and provides centralized advice to subsidiaries on structuring their own
reinsurance programs, establishing lists of permitted reinsurers, and monitoring
aggregate exposures to catastrophes and other events.

The following table sets forth the reinsurance assumed by Allianz AG by
gross premiums written for the years shown:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

From German Property-Casualty Group subsidiaries............ 3,024 3,176 3,131
From German life/health subsidiaries........uueeeeneenneennn. 539 567 555
From HERME S . & ittt it e e et ettt te e ettt eeeeeeeeeeaaaaaeenes 87 77 53
From non-German suUbsidiariesS......uu it tneeneeneenneens 1,190 937 723

SuUbtotal ..ttt e e e e e e 4,840 4,757 4,462
From NoN—GroUP COMPANIES . v v ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeeaneeeeenns 847 830 718

i 5,687 5,587 5,180

The Allianz Group writes a limited amount of third-party reinsurance, with
premiums totaling E847 million in 2001, E830 million in 2000 and E718 million in
1999. Other than Munich Re Group, which represented E511 million, E606 million
and E531 million, or 60.3%, 73.0% and 74.0%,
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respectively, of Allianz AG's third-party assumed reinsurance in 2001, 2000 and
1999, no single third party accounted for any significant amount of reinsurance
assumed in such years.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following tables show key financial data for our German
property-casualty operations. Gross premiums written by operating company are
presented before consolidation adjustments representing the elimination of
transactions between Group companies in different countries and different
segments, and net income by operating company is presented before those
consolidation adjustments, amortization of goodwill and minority interests.

GERMANY —-- PROPERTY-CASUALTY: KEY DATA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCC
(E IN MILLIONS)
German Property-Casualty Group.......... 10,075 1,660 9,576 1,377 9,420 75
Allianz AG. . v ittt et ittt et 5,687 2,516 5,587 2,293 5,180 1,47
Consolidation items. ... ... (3,118) (404) (3,215) (350) (3,163) (33
Total. i e e e 12,644 3,773 11,948 3,320 11,437 1,89
The following table shows the composition of the German Property-Casualty
Group's gross premiums written by product line for each of the years shown:
GERMAN PROPERTY-CASUALTY GROUP: GROSS PREMIUMS WRITTEN BY LINE OF BUSINESS (1)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
E % E % E %
(E IN MILLIONS)
Automobile liability.....oeiiiiiiiiniinnennnnn. 2,330 23.9 2,229 23.8 2,161 23.4
Fire and property (2) « v e ittt ittt et e eeeeeeens 1,514 15.5 1,454 15.5 1,519 16.4
Other automobile...... ...t 1,468 15.0 1,394 14.9 1,368 14.8
Personal accident . ...ttt et teeeeneenenn 1,401 14.4 1,385 14.8 1,370 14.8
Liabildty . ettt e e e e e e e 1,293 13.3 1,243 13.3 1,217 13.1
[T 1 B 54 o o 1= 382 3.9 379 4.0 367 4.0
Transport and aviation............iiiieennnn. 259 2.7 229 2.4 231 2.5
Other (3) vttt e et e e e e e e e e e e e 1,102 11.3 1,051 11.3 1,019 11.0
o= 9,749 100.0 9,364 100.0 9,252 100.0
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(1) Does not reflect business assumed through reinsurance operations in the
amount of E326 million in 2001, of E212 million in 2000 and E168 million in
1999.

(2) Includes fire, household goods, building and other property insurance.

(3) Includes multi-line policies with individual customers in the former German
Democratic Republic that were acquired through the acquisition of Deutsche
Versicherungs—-AG, as well as commercial multi-line property insurance.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. Property-casualty gross premiums written in 2001
were E12,644 million, an increase of E696 million, or 5.8%, from 2000 levels of
E11,948 million, due primarily to growth in our automobile liability, other
automobile, fire and property and liability lines, as well as in reinsurance.

Automobile liability and other automobile gross premiums written in Germany
increased by E175 million, or 4.8%, to E3,798 million in 2001 from E3,623
million in 2000, due primarily to a general rise in rates in the German market.
The number of vehicles insured decreased slightly to 9.17 million in 2001 from
9.24 million in 2000. Fire and property gross premiums written in Germany
increased by E60 million, or 4.1%, to E1,514 million in 2001 from E1,454 million
in 2000, primarily as a result of the purchase of a block of business from
another insurance company. Liability gross premiums written increased by E50
million, or 4.0%, to E1,293 million in 2001 from E1,243 million in 2000,
primarily as a result of increased demand for coverage of industrial and
commercial risks. Reinsurance assumed by the German Property-Casualty Group
increased by E114 million, or 53.8%, to E326 million in 2001 from E212 million
in 2000, due to increased aviation and transportation reinsurance business
written by Allianz and ceded in part through various pooling arrangements.
Premiums in our other lines of insurance showed slight increases from 2000
levels.

Reinsurance assumed by Allianz AG increased by E100 million, or 1.8%, to
E5,687 million in 2001 from E5,587 million in 2000, due primarily to increased
gross premiums written from expanded reinsurance relationships, predominantly
with Allianz Group companies outside of Germany, offset by the reduction of an
internal quota share cession from the German Property-Casualty Group to Allianz
AG, which had a calculated premium impact of E204 million.

Net Income. In Germany, property-casualty net income increased by E453
million, or 13.6%, to E3,773 million in 2001 from E3,320 million in 2000. Net
income in 2000 reflected special adjustments to income taxes before minority
interests of E1,017 million. Excluding the impact of these adjustments, German
property-casualty net income would have increased by E1,470 million, or 63.8%,
to E3,773 million in 2001 from E2,303 million in 2000. The increase was due
primarily to increased investment results, including the E1,437 million of
trading income discussed above, offset in part by higher claims resulting from
the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack, amounting to E273 million in net
reinsurance claims at Allianz AG and E67 million in net claims in the German
Property-Casualty Group. Total net insurance benefits in Germany increased by
E249 million, or 3.2%, to E8,105 million in 2001 from E7,856 million in 2000.
The loss ratio increased to 76.2% in 2001 from 73.5% in 2000 as a result of the
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increased claims. The increase in the loss ratio resulting from the September
11, 2001 terrorist attack was offset in part by improvements in claim frequency,
and a decrease in natural disasters affecting our German property-casualty
results. The expense ratio increased to 26.8% in 2001 from 24.2% in 2000, due
primarily to expenses incurred in connection with the build-out of our
information technology systems and marketing and sales force development. Also
contributing to the increased expense ratio were expenses incurred at Allianz AG
relating to the integration of Dresdner Bank.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Property-casualty gross premiums written in 2000
were E11,948 million, an increase of E511 million, or 4.5%, from 1999 levels of
E11,437 million, due primarily to higher premiums in the automobile, personal
accident, liability, other property-casualty lines and reinsurance assumed, and
in the reinsurance business of Allianz AG. Premium increases in these lines more
than offset lower premiums in the fire and property lines.

Automobile liability and other automobile gross premiums written in Germany
increased by E94 million, or 2.7%, to E3,623 million in 2000 from E3,529 million
in 1999, due primarily to a growing number of vehicles insured and a general
rise in rates in the German market. The
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number of vehicles insured increased slightly to 9.24 million in 2000 from 9.19
million in 1999. Fire and property gross premiums written in Germany decreased
by E65 million, or 4.3%, to E1,454 million in 2000 from E1,519 million in 1999,
as a result of continuing increased competition and reduced rates in the
broker-driven markets for large industrial and commercial customers. The
continuation of our selective underwriting policies and the still increasing
willingness of commercial insureds to insure their own risks through captive
insurance arrangements or alternative risk transfer mechanisms also contributed
to reduced premiums in 2000. Liability gross premiums written increased by E26
million, or 2.1%, to E1,243 million in 2000 from E1,217 million in 1999, as a
result of growing demand for D&O coverage by our commercial clients. Premiums in
our personal accident, other property-casualty lines, reinsurance assumed and
credit insurance showed a slight increase from 1999 levels.

Reinsurance assumed by Allianz AG increased by E407 million, or 7.9%, to
E5,587 million in 2000 from E5,180 million in 1999, due primarily to increased
premiums from Allianz Group companies, reflecting expanded reinsurance
relationships and consistent with the higher gross premiums written of the
Group.

Net income. In Germany, property-casualty net income increased by E1,422
million, or 74.9%, to E3,320 million in 2000 from E1,898 million in 1999. This
reflected primarily reduced income tax expenses, which decreased by E1,229
million to a benefit of E276 million in 2000 from an expense of E953 million in
1999, due primarily to a release of deferred taxes resulting from a decrease in
the statutory tax rate. Additionally, investment income increased in 2000 over
1999. Reduced income taxes and increased investment income were offset in part
by increased net insurance benefits, which rose by E324 million, or 4.3%, to
E7,856 million in 2000, from E7,532 million in 1999 with a corresponding
increase in the loss ratio to 73.5% in 2000 from 72.8% in 1999. The increase in
net insurance benefits reflects additional catastrophe losses in 2000,
particularly in relation to late claims reported for the late-December 1999
storms "Lothar" and "Martin." The losses from these storms were far higher than
initially expected, and were underestimated by the market as a whole. This was
offset somewhat by improved experience in the auto liability line. The expense
ratio decreased slightly in 2000 to 24.2% due to the comparatively greater
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increase in premiums.
REST OF EUROPE
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Rest of Europe is, in the aggregate, our largest market for
property-casualty insurance. As a percentage of our total property-casualty
gross premiums written worldwide, the Rest of Europe accounted for 44.8% in
2001, 43.6% 2000 and 44.3% in 1999.

We conduct our property-casualty insurance operations in the Rest of Europe
through five main groups of operating companies in France, Italy, the United
Kingdom, Switzerland and Spain. In the remainder of the Rest of Europe, we
operate through approximately 35 Allianz subsidiaries in more than 17 other
European countries. The property-casualty insurance products we offer in the
Rest of Europe are in each case generally similar to those we offer in Germany.

France. France is the world's fifth-largest property-casualty insurance
market, based on gross premiums written in 2000. We conduct our
property-casualty insurance operations in France through the companies of the
AGF Group. The AGF Group is the third-largest property-casualty insurance
provider in France, with an estimated market share of 12.3%, as measured by
gross premiums written in 2001. The primary property-casualty insurance products
which we offer in France are automobile, personal property, commercial, fire and
injury insurance. We distribute our property-casualty products and services in
France primarily through a network of general agents and brokers. We also
utilize specialized employee sales staff and bancassurance and other direct
sales channels.
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Italy. Italy is the world's sixth-largest property-casualty insurance
market, based on gross premiums written in 2000. We conduct our
property-casualty insurance operations in Italy primarily through Lloyd
Adriatico and the RAS Group, which we refer to together with our other Italian
subsidiaries as our "Italian Subsidiaries." Taken together, the Italian
Subsidiaries are the second-largest property-casualty insurer in the Italian
market, with an estimated combined market share of 15.2%, as measured by gross
premiums written in 2001. Lloyd Adriatico operates in all property-casualty
lines, having developed a particular expertise in automobile insurance, while
RAS Group underwrites primarily automobile insurance together with various other
types of property-casualty insurance for both personal and commercial business
throughout Italy. As of December 31, 2001, we held 51.1% of the share capital of
RAS Group, with the remainder being publicly traded in Italy, and 99.7% of the
share capital of Lloyd Adriatico. The Italian Subsidiaries distribute our
property-casualty products and services primarily through an extensive network
of general agents and on a limited basis through Internet and telephone-based
direct sales channels.

United Kingdom. The United Kingdom is the world's fourth-largest
property-casualty insurance market, based on gross premiums written in 2000. We
were the sixth-largest provider of property-casualty insurance in the United
Kingdom, with an estimated market share of 4.5% in 2001, as measured by gross
premiums written in 2001. We operate our property-casualty insurance business in
the United Kingdom primarily through our wholly owned subsidiary Cornhill
Insurance Public Limited Company (or Cornhill). The primary property-casualty
insurance products that Cornhill offers in the United Kingdom are generally
similar to those offered by the German Property-Casualty Group in Germany. In
addition, we sell a number of specialty products in the United Kingdom,
including extended warranty and pet insurance. We distribute our
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property-casualty products and services in the United Kingdom through a range of
distribution channels, including brokers and retailers, as well as the Internet,
telephone and other direct sales methods.

Switzerland. Switzerland is the world's twelfth-largest property-casualty
insurance market, based on gross premiums written in 2000. We were the
third-largest provider of property-casualty insurance in Switzerland, with an
estimated market share of 11.4%, as measured by gross premiums written in 2001,
not including travel insurance. We conduct our property-casualty insurance
operations in Switzerland primarily through the Allianz Suisse companies,
comprising the former ELVIA Versicherungs-AG group of companies, the Berner
Versicherungs-Group and Allianz Versicherung (Schweiz) AG. Together with AGF
Phenix, we refer to these companies as our "Swiss Subsidiaries". The Swiss
Subsidiaries handle our lines of property-casualty insurance in Switzerland
other than travel insurance. In addition, our wholly owned subsidiary Allianz
Risk Transfer (or ART) sells conventional reinsurance as well as a variety of
alternative risk transfer products for corporate customers worldwide. Our travel
insurance subsidiary Mondial Assistance Group operates and is managed on a
global basis and is discussed separately (see "-- Specialty Lines"). The Swiss
Subsidiaries and ART distribute our products and services through a wide range
of tied and general agents, and also through brokers, bancassurance and other
direct channels.

Spain. Spain is the world's eighth-largest property-casualty market, based
on gross premiums written in 2000. We were the second-largest provider of
property-casualty insurance in Spain, with an estimated market share of 6.6% in
2001, as measured by gross premiums written in 2001. We serve the Spanish
property-casualty insurance market through Allianz Compania de Seguros (Allianz
Spain), which was created in 1999 following the merger of Allianz-RAS Seguros y
Reaseguros, ELVIASEG S.A., and the two former AGF companies Union y Fenix and
Athena Seguros. Allianz Spain has headquarters in Madrid and Barcelona, with
regional offices throughout the country. Allianz Spain offers a wide variety of
traditional personal and commercial property-casualty insurance products, with
an emphasis on automobile insurance. Allianz Spain distributes its products
through agents, brokers and direct distribution channels.
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Netherlands. The Netherlands is the world's ninth-largest
property-casualty insurance market, based on gross premiums written in 2000. Our
most important subsidiaries in the Netherlands are Royal Nederland
Verzekeringsgroep and Zwolsche Algemeene Holding, which we acquired in late
2000. Our most important products are automobile and fire insurance. We are the
second-largest automobile insurer and the largest insurer in the industrial
client sector. Our Netherlands subsidiaries distribute their products through
independent agents and brokers.

Austria. Allianz Elementar offers a broad range of property-casualty and
health insurance products to individual and group customers in Austria. Allianz
Elementar is the largest Austrian property-casualty insurer, based on gross
premiums written in 2000, and the leading insurer for industrial business in
Austria. We distribute our property-casualty products in Austria primarily
through employee agents, tied agents and brokers.

Ireland. Our subsidiary Allianz Irish Life Holdings offers a wide variety
of traditional property-casualty insurance products, including mainly automobile
and commercial/industrial lines. Allianz Irish Life Holdings distributes its
products primarily through brokers and to a lesser extent through agents and
banks.

Belgium. We conduct our property-casualty insurance business in Belgium
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primarily through AGF Belgium Insurance and Cobac. Our primary emphasis is on
industrial insurance, in which we are among the market leaders. We also have a
significant position in the market in automobile insurance. We distribute our
property-casualty products in Belgium mainly through brokers.

Other. In addition, we have property-casualty insurance operations in
Hungary, Portugal, Luxembourg, Greece, the Czech Republic and Poland. We also
acquired majority holdings in existing insurance companies in Croatia and
Bulgaria in 1998 and consolidated these acquisitions into our results in 1999
and 2000, respectively. We are also represented in the Slovak Republic, Denmark,
Sweden, Romania and Russia, and are among the top five insurers in many of these
markets. The primary products sold in these countries are mandatory third-party
liability coverages and related additional coverage. We expect further increases
in property-casualty gross premiums written as we work to build up our sales
organization and exploit other synergies in our insurance operations in the rest
of Europe.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows key financial data for our Rest of Europe
property-casualty operations. Consistent with our general practice, gross
premiums written by geographic region are presented before consolidation
adjustments representing the elimination of transactions between Group companies
in different countries and different segments, and net income by geographic
region is presented before those consolidation adjustments, amortization of
goodwill and minority interests.

REST OF EUROPE —-—- PROPERTY-CASUALTY: KEY DATA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN

(E IN MILLIONS)

ot o oY 5,392 31 4,745 451 4,585
0 it 4,585 487 4,264 258 4,071
United Kingdom. . ..o i ettt tneennnnnneens 2,507 94 2,108 49 1,950
Switzerland. . ...ttt enneeeeeeeeenn 1,750 155 1,650 249 1,583
1S3 < 5 o O 1,278 32 1,073 69 1,058
NetherlandsS. ...ttt e e e eeeeeeeeeeennnns 873 284 557 438 523
2N G E= T i O 844 16 831 (50) 810
Treland. .o oot ettt ettt ettt 738 (4) 563 19 493
BelgiUm. oo ittt et e ettt ettt 391 8 393 (37) 373
(0w oL 1,410 98 1,284 118 993
Consolidation adjustments............... (162) (353) (166) (279) (124)

o o O 19,6006 848 17,302 1,285 16,315

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
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Gross Premiums Written. In Rest of Europe, property-casualty gross
premiums written increased by E2,304 million, or 13.3%, to E19,606 million in
2001 from E17,302 million in 2000. This increase reflected growth in gross
premiums written in all of our primary property-casualty markets in Rest of
Europe, especially France, the United Kingdom and Italy, due primarily to rate
increases in a number of lines.

Net Income. Property-casualty net income in Rest of Europe decreased by
E437 million, or 34.0%, to E848 million in 2001 from E1,285 million in 2000,
primarily as a result of sharply decreased net income in France, due primarily
to reduced investment results and increased reinsurance costs, offset in part by
increased investment results in Italy. Also contributing to the decrease in Rest
of Europe was a broad decline in investment results in other countries due to
weakness in the capital markets. Net insurance benefits in Rest of Europe rose
by E822 million, or 6.9%, to E12,798 million in 2001 from E11,976 million in
2000, which was slightly less than the 8.8% increase in net premiums earned,
which increased to E16,106 million in 2001 from E14,797 million in 2000. The
loss ratio in Rest of Europe decreased slightly to 80.3% in 2001 from 80.8% in
2000, reflecting decreases in France, Italy, United Kingdom and Spain, offset in
part by increases in Switzerland and Other Rest of Europe. The expense ratio
declined slightly to 26.2% in 2001 from 27.1% in 2000.
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The following table sets forth net loss, expense and combined ratio

information for our property-casualty operations in the Rest of Europe by
geographic area for the years 2001 and 2000:

OTHER

TOTAL

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
UNITED
FRANCE ITALY KINGDOM SWITZERLAND SPAIN
Loss ratio.....coiiiiiiiiiii. 83.0% 76.7% 73.2% 79.1% 78.7%
Expense ratio............cov... 29.3% 22.5% 31.0% 26.9% 21.2%
Combined ratio................... 112.3% 99.2% 104.2% 106.0% 99.9%
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
UNITED
FRANCE ITALY KINGDOM SWITZERLAND SPAIN
Loss ratio......coooiiiiiai., 85.8% 77.8% 82.7% 71.3% 81.1%
Expense ratio........ccovviiee... 28.3% 21.6% 33.4% 30.9% 23.8%
Combined ratio.................. 114.1% 99.4% 116.1% 102.2% 104.9%

France. In France, property-casualty gross premiums written increased by
E647 million, or 13.6%, to E5,392 million in 2001 from E4,745 million in 2000,
reflecting rate increases in all lines of business. In the commercial and
industrial lines, the increase in gross premiums written was also due to new
large industrial business and the increase of AGF MAT's share in aviation pools.
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In the individual lines, our distribution arrangement with Credit Lyonnais Bank
also contributed to the increase.

Net income decreased by E420 million, or 93.1%, to E31 million in 2001 from
E451 million in 2000. The decrease resulted primarily from sharply reduced
investment results as a result of the weak capital markets. We also experienced
an increase in net insurance benefits, due to a greater volume of losses,
especially in the second half of the year in our large industrial accounts, as
well as a rise in the cost of reinsurance resulting from a change in market
conditions for general industrial risks, particularly for non-proportional
windstorm covered risks. Our loss ratio in France nonetheless improved to 83.0%
in 2001 from 85.8% in 2000, largely reflecting increased premiums, the
significant claims recorded in 2000 in relation to the late December 1999 storms
"Lothar" and "Martin", a reduction in the frequency of automobile claims, and a
decrease in the average claim payments in our private insurance business. Net
insurance benefits included E17 million related to the September 11, 2001
terrorist attack.

Italy. 1In Italy, property-casualty gross premiums written were E4,585
million in 2001, an increase of E321 million, or 7.5%, from E4,264 million in
2000, primarily due to increased automobile premiums. Automobile premiums
increased by E238 million, or 8.8%, in 2001, reflecting the overall rate
increases in the Italian market following a twelve-month statutory rate freeze
on third-party liability policies which expired in March 2001. We also had an
increase in the number of vehicles insured and an increase in rates on
automobile policies other than third party liability. We saw moderate increases
in our other main lines of business, including fire and personal property,
general liability, health and personal accident.

Net income increased by E229 million, or 88.8%, to E487 million in 2001
from E258 million in 2000, due primarily to improved underwriting results and
increased investment results, offset in part by expenses incurred to improve the
organizational structure and information technology systems of the RAS group.
The loss ratio decreased slightly to 76.7% in 2001 from 77.8% in 2000,
reflecting a more selective underwriting policy.

United Kingdom. In the United Kingdom, property-casualty gross premiums
written increased by E399 million, or 18.9%, to E2,507 million in 2001 from
E2,108 million in 2000, primarily as a result of increased rates in the
automobile and property lines, reflecting the claims

39

experience of UK insurers generally, as well as volume increases in commercial
lines and pet insurance.

Net income increased by E45 million, or 91.8% to E94 million in 2001 from
E49 million in 2000, reflecting primarily improved underwriting results due to
increased rates in the automobile and property lines. Net insurance benefits
decreased by E26 million, or 2.0%, to E1,300 million in 2001 from E1,326 million
in 2000, reflecting a more selective underwriting policy. The loss ratio
improved to 73.2% in 2001 from 82.7% in 2000, reflecting the increase in gross
premiums written and the decrease in net insurance benefits.

Switzerland. In Switzerland, property-casualty gross premiums written
increased by E100 million, or 6.1%, to E1,750 million in 2001 from E1,650
million in 2000. Of this increase, E46 million was due to the one time effect of
a change in our method of recording assumed reinsurance premiums. In previous
years, such premiums were recorded on a one-year lag basis. In 2001, we began
recording such premiums on a current-year basis, with the result that two years'
premiums were recorded in 2001. An additional E56 million was attributable to
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the positive effects of exchange rate movements.

Net income decreased by E94 million, or 37.8%, to E155 million in 2001 from
E249 million in 2000, reflecting a decrease in investment results. The loss
ratio deteriorated to 79.1% in 2001 from 71.3% in 2000, despite a low level of
natural catastrophes, due to a change in accounting methods whereby
approximately E40 million previously allocated to underwriting costs are now
included under net insurance benefits. This change in turn improved the expense
ratio to 26.9% in 2001 from 30.9% in 2000. We also experienced increased
reinsurance claims at ART, including E17 million related to the September 11,
2001 terrorist attack.

Spain. In Spain, property-casualty gross premiums written increased by
E205 million, or 19.1%, to E1,278 million in 2001 from E1,073 million in 2000,
reflecting increased sales in all lines of business, particularly automobile
lines, where premium increased 21.8%. The increased sales resulted from the
reorganization of the distribution system to better incentivize agents and to
increase productivity.

Net income decreased by E37 million, or 53.6%, to E32 million in 2001 from
E69 million in 2000, despite improved underwriting results in the automobile
line. The decrease reflected primarily the effect of a tax adjustment in 2000,
which increased net income in 2000 by E37 million, as well as decreased
investment results in 2001. The loss ratio improved to 78.7% in 2001 from 81.1%
in 2000, due to more selective underwriting policies introduced in recent years,
which led to a reduction in claims frequency, particularly in the automobile
line. The expense ratio also improved to 21.2% in 2001 from 23.8% in 2000, due
to cost savings resulting from the successful integration of our Spanish
subsidiaries into Allianz Spain.

Other. Property-casualty gross premiums written in Rest of Europe
countries other than France, Italy, Switzerland, the United Kingdom and Spain
(which we refer to as Other Rest of Europe) increased by E628 million, or 17.3%,
to E4,256 million in 2001 from E3,628 million in 2000, primarily as a result of
growth in the Netherlands and Ireland. Net income in Other Rest of Europe
decreased by E86 million, or 17.6%, to E402 million in 2001 from E488 million in
2000, primarily as a result of deteriorating underwriting results and increased
interest expense in the Netherlands.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Property-casualty gross premiums written in Rest
of Europe increased by E987 million, or 6.0%, to E17,302 million in 2000 from
E16,315 million in 1999. This increase was due primarily to growth in France,
Italy and the United Kingdom. Our Rest of Europe property-casualty operations
generally experienced a solidification of rates in 2000, particularly in the
automobile line.
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Net income. In Rest of Europe, net income increased by E495 million, or
62.7%, to E1,285 million in 2000 from E790 million in 1999, primarily due to
increased net income in France and Switzerland, offset in part by decreased net
income in Austria and the Netherlands. Net insurance benefits increased by E578
million, or 5.1%, to E11,976 million in 2000 from E11,398 million in 1999,
consistent with the increase of 6.0% in gross premiums written in Rest of
Europe. The loss ratio decreased slightly to 80.8% in 2000 from 81.6% in 1999.

The following table sets forth net loss, expense and combined ratio

information for our property-casualty operations in the Rest of Europe by
geographic area for the years 2000 and 1999:
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

UNITED
FRANCE ITALY KINGDOM SWITZERLAND SPAIN OTHER

Loss ratio............ ... ... .. 85.8% 77.8% 82.7% 71.3% 81.1% 82.0%
Expense ratio.................. 28.3% 21.6% 33.4% 30.9% 23.8% 28.4%
Combined ratio................. 114.1% 99.4% 116.1% 102.2% 104.9% 110.4%

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

UNITED
FRANCE ITALY KINGDOM SWITZERLAND SPAIN OTHER

Loss ratio........ ..o .. 81.4% 80.2% 81.7% 77.0% 89.7% 83.4%

Expense ratio...........covuo... 28.9% 22.8% 32.9% 27.9% 25.0% 29.9%

Combined ratio................. 110.4% 103.0% 114.6% 104.9% 114.7% 113.3%
France. In France, property-casualty gross premiums written increased by

E160 million, or 3.5%, to E4,745 million in 2000 from E4,585 million in 1999.
Following several years of flat sales, French property-casualty gross premiums
increased in 2000 due mainly to a rise in rates, particularly in commercial
lines, large accounts and aviation. In the individual market segment, gross
premiums written increased by 1.5% following several years of decreases. The
positive trend resulted from household sales increases and the increased demand
for auto and fleet products. Compared to 1999, every distribution channel
contributed to the increase. The AGF Group strategy to develop partnerships in
multi-distribution channels has also been successful, particularly a
distribution arrangement with Credit Lyonnais Bank, which contributed to an
increase in gross premiums written of 21.6% (E54 million) in 2000.

Net income increased by E67 million, or 17.4%, to E451 million in 2000 from
E384 million in 1999, primarily due to reduced expenses reflecting the greater
efficiencies achieved in 2000 following the additional costs incurred in 1999,
together with reduced taxes due primarily to increased tax—exempt income. These
increases were offset by the E186 million pretax impact of the late-December
1999 storms "Lothar" and "Martin". Net insurance benefits increased by E212
million, or 6.9%, to E3,275 million in 2000 from E3,063 million in 1999. The
loss ratio increased to 85.8% in 2000 from 81.4% in 1999, due primarily to
losses and claim management costs resulting from winter storms "Lothar" and
"Martin" and increased reinsurance costs, and to a lesser extent, an increase in
current year claims in damages. As noted above, losses from winter storms
"Lothar" and "Martin" were far higher than initially expected, and were
underestimated by the market as a whole. The expense ratio decreased in 2000 due
to the comparatively greater increase in premiums.

Italy. In Italy, property-casualty gross premiums written were E4,264
million in 2000, an increase of E193 million, or 4.7%, from E4,071 million in
1999. Automobile premiums increased by E186 million, or 7.4%, to E2,704 million
in 2000 from E2,518 million in 1999. This reflects primarily a premium increase
of 8.2% in automobile business other than third party liability premiums, which
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increased by only 5.1% due to a statutory freeze in tariffs for a period of
twelve months beginning in March 2000. Fire and personal property premiums
increased by E3 million, or 1.2%,
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in line with market trends. Health premiums increased by E19 million, or 12.7%,
due primarily to a single large group policy written in 2000. General liability
premiums increased by E23 million, or 7.7%, due to increasing sales of all-risk
products for families and small businesses.

Net income increased by E19 million, or 7.9%, to E258 million in 2000 from
E239 million in 1999 due to an increase in underwriting results and investment
income, which exceeded the growth in taxes of E98 million from 1999 levels.
Taxes in 1999 reflect the release of deferred taxes resulting from a reduction
in statutory tax rates. The freeze on automobile policy tariffs had a negative
impact on net income due to lower premiums and is expected to have a negative
effect in the next few years as well. The results were also negatively impacted
by a charge taken in respect of a fine imposed by the Italian antitrust
authority in 2000. See "-- Regulation and Supervision -- Insurance -- Italy." In
addition, net insurance benefits increased by E73 million, or 2.5%, to E3,049
million in 2000 from E2,976 million in 1999. This reflects the combined effect
of an increase in the severity of motor vehicle claims, primarily due to a
further increase of personal injury costs, partially offset by a reduction in
claim frequency due to the adoption of a more selective underwriting policy in
the last few years. The loss ratio decreased to 77.8% in 2000 from 80.2% in
1999, because the growth in premiums exceeded the increase in claims. The
expense ratio decreased to 21.6% in 2000 from 22.8% in 1999 due to the
comparatively greater increase in premiums and cost savings resulting from the
merger of several RAS subsidiaries in 1999.

United Kingdom. In the United Kingdom, property-casualty gross premiums
written increased by E158 million, or 8.1%, to E2,108 million in 2000 from
E1,950 million in 1999, reflecting primarily increased rates in the automobile
and property lines reflecting the claims experience of UK insurers generally.

Net income decreased by E8 million, or 14.0%, to E49 million in 2000 from
E57 million in 1999, reflecting primarily the decreased underwriting results at
Cornhill, offset in part by increased investment results. The net income of
Cornhill decreased by E39 million to a loss of E11 million in 2000 from income
of E28 million in 1999, due to losses in the industrial lines. Net insurance
benefits increased by E96 million, or 7.8%, to E1,326 million in 2000 from
E1,230 million in 1999 as the loss ratio deteriorated slightly to 82.7% in 2000
from 81.7% in 1999.

Switzerland. In Switzerland, property-casualty gross premiums written
increased by E67 million, or 4.2%, to E1,650 million in 2000 from E1,583 million
in 1999, due primarily to an increase in ART reinsurance assumed, reflecting
both increased sales of conventional insurance and alternative risk transfer
solutions, as well as an increase in direct business, in particular in the
automobile line. These increases were offset by a E44 million decrease in
premiums resulting from Joint Re, a reinsurance subsidiary which was put into
runoff in 2000.

Net income increased by E109 million, or 77.9%, to E249 million in 2000
from E140 million in 1999, reflecting improved results in our ART business, an
increase in investment income and capital gains, and a decline in net insurance
benefits to E1,134 million in 2000 from E1,150 million in 1999, a decrease of
E16 million, or 1.4%. Overall, the loss ratio decreased to 71.3% in 2000 from
77.0% in 1999, reflecting primarily a lower, but still high level of natural
catastrophes, together with positive development in our ART business.
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Spain. In Spain, property-casualty gross premiums written increased by E15
million, or 1.4% to E1,073 million in 2000 from E1,058 million in 1999,
primarily due to increased automobile premium rates, consistent with market
trends in general. These increases were necessitated by rising loss expenses.
The increase was partially offset by a reduction in the number of automobile
policies in force. Premiums in our personal lines were unchanged from 1999,
while premiums in our industrial lines increased moderately, primarily due to
the introduction of a new multi-risk product.
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Net income increased by E83 million to E69 million in 2000 from a loss of
E1l4 million in 1999, primarily as a result of improved underwriting results in
the automobile line, together with higher investment income. The loss ratio
improved to 81.1% in 2000 from 89.7% in 1999, due to the rate increases in the
automobile line, portfolio cleansing and more selective underwriting. The
expense ratio also improved, reflecting personnel reductions and synergy effects
achieved in the past year.

Other. Property-casualty gross premiums written in Rest of Europe
countries other than France, Italy, Switzerland, the United Kingdom and Spain
(which we refer to as Other Rest of Europe) increased by E436 million, or 13.7%,
to E3,628 million in 2000 from E3,192 million in 1999, primarily as a result of
increases in premiums in Belgium, the Netherlands, Ireland and other European
countries. Net income decreased E81 million, or 14.2%, to E488 million in 2000
from E569 million in 1999, due primarily to losses in Austria reflecting the
one-time restructuring change of the Allianz Group in Austria and increased
interest expense in the Netherlands. The loss ratio decreased to 82.0% in 2000
from 83.4% in 1999, primarily due to improved underwriting results in the
Netherlands and Ireland.

NAFTA
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Our property-casualty insurance markets in the NAFTA zone are the United
States, Canada and Mexico. As a percentage of our total property-casualty gross
premiums written worldwide, the NAFTA zone accounted for 15.6%, 15.9%, and 14.6%
in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

United States. The United States is the world's largest property-casualty
insurance market, based on gross premiums written in 2000. Our property-casualty
operations in the United States are organized under the umbrellas of Allianz of
America, Inc. and Allianz Insurance Co. Allianz of America comprises a group of
companies writing a wide variety of property-casualty lines of business. We have
been present in the United States since 1977, when we established Allianz
Insurance Co., a leading provider of commercial insurance to major corporate
customers, as one of our first U.S. subsidiaries. In 1991, we acquired Fireman's
Fund Insurance Company, a leading personal and commercial lines
property-casualty insurance company founded in 1864. Our operations in the
United States accounted for 90.2% of our gross written property-casualty
insurance premiums in the NAFTA zone in 2001.

The primary property-casualty products which we offer in the United States
are generally similar to those offered by the German Property-Casualty Group in
Germany. We also write specialized commercial lines coverages, including crop
insurance and other agricultural products, umbrella and high-excess casualty
programs, marine insurance and surety insurance. In addition, we offer workers'
compensation policies that cover businesses for job-related injuries to or
disability or death of their employees, without regard to fault.
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Other.

We also conduct property-casualty operations in Canada and Mexico.

Our property-casualty products are generally similar to those we offer and sell
in the United States.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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The following table shows key financial data for our NAFTA zone

property-casualty operations.

Consistent with our general practice,

gross

premiums written by geographic region are presented before consolidation
adjustments representing the elimination of transactions between Group companies
in different countries and different segments,

region is presented before those consolidation adjustments,

goodwill and minority interests.

United States....
Canada...........
Mexico...........

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Gross Premiums Written.
or 8.3%,
due primarily to increases in the United States.
United States increased E504 million,
E5,667 million in 2000.
gross premiums written increased by 5.3%,
at Fireman's Fund. On a constant currency basis,

E522 million,

million),

and net income by

NAFTA —-- PROPERTY-CASUALTY: KEY DATA

YEAR ENDED

geographic

amortization of

DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN
(E IN MILLIONS)

6,171 (986) 5,667 (100) 4,865
539 (40) 516 (1) 460
135 (4) 137 15 88
(23) - (20) - (29)

6,822 (1,030) 6,300 (86) 5,384

2000

2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Gross premiums written in the NAFTA zone increased
to E6,822 million in 2001 from E6,300 million in 2000,
Gross premiums written in the

or 8.9% to E6,171 million in 2001 from

Excluding the effect of exchange rate movements

primarily re

(E201
flecting growth

gross premiums written for

commercial and automobile lines in the United States increased by 6.6% and

13.35%,

and crop lines of business.
compensation at Fireman's Fund,
to this line of business in 2001.

workers'

respectively,
Premium increases also reflect growth from new business in the liability,
These increases were offset by a decrease in
which continued to reduce its exposure

On a constant currency basis,

compensation gross written premiums decreased by 19.6%.

Net Income.

due primarily to decreases in the United States.
property-casualty operations in the United States decreased by E886 million,

In the NAFTA zone,

as a result of rate increases due to the hardening market.

marine

our workers'

net income decreased sharply by E944
million to a loss of E1,030 million in 2001 from a loss of E86 million in 2000,

Net income from

to

NET
INCOME
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a loss of E986 million in 2001 from a loss of E100 million in 2000, due
primarily to the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack in the United States and
weakness in the U.S. capital markets. The loss ratio in the NAFTA zone increased
to 99.9% in 2001 from 87.9% in 2000, largely due to net claims of E642 million
at Allianz Insurance Co. and E55 million at Fireman's Fund related to the
September 11, 2001 terrorist attack.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written in the NAFTA zone increased
E916 million, or 17.0%, to E6,300 million in 2000 from E5,384 million in 1999,
due primarily to increases in the United States. Gross premiums written in the
United States increased by E802 million, or 16.5%, to E5,667 million in 2000
from E4,865 in 1999. Excluding the effect of exchange rate movements (E697
million), gross premiums written increased by 2.2%, primarily reflecting the
moderate
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growth experienced by Fireman's Fund. On a constant currency basis, United
States gross premiums written for our commercial business increased by 7.1%.
This was the result of increased rates as prices began to harden in 2000. In our
workers' compensation line, poor results from adverse loss development,
affecting the entire market, prompted a sharp reduction in our premiums as
Fireman's Fund reduced its exposure to this line of business. On a constant
currency basis, our workers' compensation gross written premiums in the United
States decreased by 19.7%. Automobile premiums were relatively stable when
compared to 1999 with a slight growth of approximately 1.3% on a constant
currency basis. Our personal property line of business grew by approximately
6.7% in constant currency due to organic growth in affluent personal insurance
and acquisitions of books of business.

Net income. In the NAFTA zone, net income decreased by E396 million, or
127.7%, to a loss of E86 million in 2000 from income of E310 million in 1999,
due primarily to adverse underwriting results in the United States. Net
insurance benefits increased by E583 million, or 18.6%, to E3,721 million in
2000 from E3,138 million in 1999, largely reflecting the effects of changes in
exchange rates. The loss ratio increased to 87.9% in 2000 from 80.5% in 1999 and
was largely affected by the adverse development of the workers' compensation
line of business at Fireman's Fund, which constitutes a relatively large portion
of our commercial lines business in the NAFTA zone. In addition, our affluent
segment also experienced increased losses due to unusually high water-and
weather-related claims, in addition to the payout of one severe property loss.
Losses in other segments also contributed to the deterioration of Fireman's
Fund's claims results.

REST OF WORLD

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The primary property-casualty insurance markets in which we operate in the
Rest of World are Asia-Pacific and South America. As a percentage of our total
property-casualty gross premiums written worldwide, Rest of World accounted for
5.5%, 4.8%, and 4.2% in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Asia-Pacific

Australia. Australia is the world's eleventh-largest property-casualty
market, based on gross premiums written in 2000. Through Allianz Australia

Group, we serve the markets of Australia, New Zealand and Papua New Guinea.
Allianz Australia Group's insurance operations comprise exclusively
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property-casualty insurance products and services. We are the largest workers'
compensation insurer in Australia, based on gross premiums written in 2001, and
a leading provider of rehabilitation and occupational health, safety and
environment services. In Australia, we insure approximately one in five of the
nation's employees. We also operate in certain niche areas including premium
financing and pleasure craft insurance. We market our products through brokers,
which are the major distribution channels for commercial business in Australia,
as well as non-tied agents (including automobile dealers, accountants and banks)
and directly to the customer. Allianz Australia Group had gross premiums written
of E1,048 million in 2001.

Taiwan. We conduct our property-casualty operations in Taiwan through our
subsidiary Allianz President General. Allianz President General, together with
Allianz President Life Insurance, is part of the joint venture we established in
June 1999 with Uni-President Group, which is one of Taiwan's leading business
groups with diversified interests ranging from banking to commercial
manufacturing. The company offers a wide range of property-casualty insurance
products such as automobile, engineering and construction insurance through
agents, brokers, the Internet and approximately 2,500 7-Eleven stores throughout
Taiwan. Allianz President General generated property-casualty insurance gross
premiums written of E89 million in 2001.
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Malaysia. In October 2001, we increased to over 90% our ownership of the
issued capital of Malaysia British Assurance Berhard (MBA), the second-largest
property-casualty insurer in Malaysia. MBA generated gross written premiums of
E126 million for the year 2001, E48 million of which has been consolidated in
our financial results.

Other. We also market property-casualty insurance products and services
through our subsidiaries in Japan, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Laos, Singapore and
Vietnam, and through signed joint venture agreements with Bajaj Auto, a large
manufacturing company in India and the CP Group, a large conglomerate in
Thailand.

South America

Brazil. We conduct our property-casualty operations in Brazil through our
subsidiary AGF Seguros. With gross premiums written of E355 million in 2001, AGF
Seguros 1s our largest property-casualty operation in South America and the
sixth-largest property-casualty insurance provider in Brazil. The company writes
primarily automobile insurance, together with fire, transportation and other
lines. Distribution is primarily through brokers.

Colombia. In Colombia, we operate through our subsidiary Colseguros. Gross
premiums written in Colombia were E267 million in 2001. We are the largest
property-casualty insurance provider in Colombia and are particularly strong in
the industrial risks business. Distribution is primarily through agents. Brokers
also play an important role in the commercial lines business.

Other. In addition to the markets described above, we sell
property-casualty products in Argentina, Venezuela and Chile.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows key financial data for our Rest of World
property-casualty operations. Consistent with our general practice, gross
premiums written by geographic region are presented before consolidation
adjustments representing the elimination of transactions between Group companies
in different countries and different segments, and net income by geographic
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region is presented before those consolidation adjustments, amortization of
goodwill and minority interests.

REST OF WORLD —-- PROPERTY-CASUALTY: KEY DATA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCC

(E IN MILLIONS)

Asia-PacificC. ..ttt it ii e 1,344 11 784 31 715 (12
SoULth AMEricCa. .o v et ittt et 962 29 891 (34) 697
(0w oL 95 (1) 211 8 147

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written in Rest of World increased
by E515 million, or 27.3%, to E2,401 million in 2001 from E1,886 million in
2000. The increase was primarily attributable to our Australian operations,
which acquired a significant block of business in 2001.

Net Income. In Rest of World, net income increased by E34 million, to E39
million in 2001 from E5 million in 2000, due primarily to increased income in
South America from our Brazilian
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and Colombian operations. These increases were offset in part by decreased
income in Asia-Pacific. The loss ratio decreased to 72.8% in 2001 from 75.5% in
2000, reflecting more favorable underwriting results in South America, partially
offset by deteriorating underwriting results in our Australian operations in
Asia-Pacific.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written in Rest of World increased
E327 million, or 21.0%, to E1,886 million in 2000 from E1,559 million in 1999.
The increase was primarily attributable to the first-time consolidation of our
acquisition at the end of 1999 of Columbiana De Inversion in Colombia, which
increased gross written premiums by E165 million.

Net Income. In Rest of World, net income increased by E103 million to Eb5
million in 2000 from a loss of E98 million in 1999, due primarily to our
operations in Australia. Net income from our Australian operations increased by
E148 million to E35 million in 2000 from a loss of E113 million in 1999,
reflecting primarily growth in gross premiums written and improved underwriting
results.

SPECIALTY LINES
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

In addition to our multi-local approach to our global insurance business,
under which our non-German insurance businesses are locally managed, generally
through regional flagship subsidiaries, we manage our specialty lines of
credit/trade insurance and travel/assistance insurance on a worldwide basis.
Each of our specialty lines is a global leader, including credit insurance
through our subsidiaries EULER and HERMES, which together make us the largest
credit insurer in the world, and travel/assistance insurance, where we are also
one of the world's largest insurers.

Credit Insurance. Through our French subsidiary, EULER, and our German
subsidiary, HERMES, we are the largest credit insurer in the world, with an
estimated world market share of 36.0%, based on gross premiums written in 2001.
Through EULER and HERMES, we are either the largest or the second-largest credit
insurer in 17 of the 29 markets in which we operate. Our credit operations
generated gross premiums written of E1,589 million in 2001, E1,611 million in
2000 and E1,534 million in 1999.

EULER is the global leader in credit insurance in terms of gross premiums
written and one of the European market leaders in factoring. EULER's credit
insurance operations are rated AA+ by Standard & Poor's, the highest rating
given to a credit insurer.

HERMES 1is the leading credit insurer in Germany, with an estimated domestic
market share of approximately 41.6% at December 31, 2001, based on gross
premiums written. HERMES cedes a large portion of its gross premiums written to
reinsurers, primarily Munich Re. The percentage of gross premiums written ceded
in reinsurance was 67.4% in 2001, 69.4% in 2000 and 69.0% in 1999, of which
22.9%, 20.3% and 15.8%, respectively, was ceded to Allianz AG and 32.2%, 32.2%
and 34.1%, respectively, was ceded to Munich Re.

EULER and HERMES provide customers around the world with a wide range of
credit insurance and related products and services, including commercial credit
insurance and reinsurance. In addition, EULER offers factoring services, while
HERMES offers guarantee insurance, fidelity insurance and consumer credit
insurance and participates in, and derives fee income from, the German federal
government's export credit guarantee program.
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In March 2002, the operations of EULER and HERMES, which complement each
other in terms of product mix and geographical penetration, were consolidated
into a new corporate entity called EULER & HERMES S.A., further strengthening
our presence in the marketplace.

Travel and Assistance Insurance. We are one of the world's largest
providers of travel and assistance insurance. Our travel and assistance
insurance operations generated gross premiums written of E732 million in 2001,
E656 million in 2000 and E581 million in 1999. We believe that internal growth
and recent acquisitions in our travel and assistance business will enable us to
strengthen our leading market position and achieve enhanced efficiencies in this
dynamic market.

With a view toward establishing long-term partnerships, our travel and
assistance business provides business-to-business services to clients in the
travel, insurance, automobile and banking industries. Our travel and assistance
business offers its partners a wide range of services in the areas of mobility
and travel (travel insurance and assistance, vehicle assistance), home
assistance (assistance in the event of damage to property, for example),
person-related assistance (babysitting services, hotlines, unemployment
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services, assistance to dependent or elderly persons, and other services) as
well as customer services (customer relations services, hotlines, and legal and
financial information by telephone).

We provide travel and assistance insurance primarily through the Mondial
Assistance Group (previously called the Elmonda Group), which was founded in
1999 and is owned equally by our subsidiaries AGF and RAS. Mondial Assistance is
present in 26 countries, through branch offices and subsidiaries, and works with
a network of partners worldwide. All of the companies of Mondial Assistance can
call upon the services and support of Mondial Assistance's headquarters in
Zurich and Paris in the areas of travel and assistance products, corporate
marketing and sales, finance, audit and consulting, and information systems.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows key financial data for our specialty insurance
operations. Consistent with our general practice, gross premiums written by
geographic region are presented before consolidation adjustments representing
the elimination of transactions between Group companies in different countries
and different segments, and net income by geographic region is presented before
those consolidation adjustments, amortization of goodwill and minority
interests.

SPECIALTY INSURANCE: KEY DATA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN
(E IN MILLIONS)
Credit ...ttt et et ettt e 1,589 91 1,611 203 1,534
Travel and assistance...........ccueueu... 732 3 656 24 581
2,321 94 2,267 227 2,115

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written in our specialty lines
increased E54 million, or 2.4%, to E2,321 million in 2001 from E2,267 million in
2000, reflecting an increase in the travel and assistance lines, offset in part
by a decrease in the credit lines. The increase in travel and assistance
premiums is attributable to internal growth, together with targeted
acquisitions. The decrease in the credit lines was due to a change in the method
of reporting service fees for
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EULER. Prior to 2001, these fees were included as part of gross premiums
written. Beginning in 2001, these fees, which amounted to El144 million and E122
million in 2001 and 2000, respectively, were excluded from gross premiums
written consistent with the treatment of such fees by HERMES. Excluding the
impact of this change, gross premiums written would have increased by El122
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million, or 7.6%, in 2001 compared to 2000, primarily due to internal growth.

Net Income. In our specialty lines, net income decreased by E133 million,
or 58.6%, to E94 million in 2001 from E227 million in 2000, due primarily to
reduced net income in the credit line, resulting from an increased number of
large claims as a result of unfavorable economic conditions. Net income in our
travel and assistance lines also decreased due to lower investment results and
higher expenses for assistance services. The loss ratio increased to 66.5% in
2001 from 53.1% in 2000, largely due to the increased claims in the credit line.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written in our specialty lines
increased E152 million, or 7.2%, to E2,267 million in 2000 from E2,115 million
in 1999, reflecting increases in both the credit and the travel and assistance
lines. Increased premium in the credit lines resulted primarily from internal
growth. In the travel and assistance lines, E9 million of the increase was
attributable to the first time consolidation of the results of World Access in
2000, and the remainder was attributable to internal growth.

Net Income. In our specialty lines, net income increased by E66 million,
or 41.0%, to E227 million in 2000 from E161 million in 1999, due primarily to
increased income in our credit business, resulting from improved underwriting
results. The loss ratio decreased to 53.1% in 2000 from 55.9% in 1999 and was
largely affected by improvement in the quality of risk selection in our credit
lines.

LIFE/HEALTH INSURANCE OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain financial information for our
life/health insurance operations for the years indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Gross premiums wWritten (1) ...ttt it ettt eeeeeeeen 20,145 20,239 18,473
Premiums earned (Net) (2) v v vttt ittt et ettt et e teteteeenenn 18,317 18,378 16,399
Interest and similar 1NCOME. .. v ittt ittt ittt ettt eeeaeeannn 10,765 10,152 9,889
Income from affiliated enterprises joint ventures and

associated enterpPrises . @ittt it e e e e e e 525 693 625
Other income from Investments........iii ittt eneeneenneens 3,562 6,667 4,702
Trading 1NCOME . & v ittt ittt e e e ettt e et ettt eaeeeeeeeeeaaenns (117) (49) ——
Fee and commission income, and income from service

F= @ w0 ol O 268 271 159
Other INCOmME. & @ittt ittt et e et e et e ettt ettt e et eaeeaeeens 866 1,139 949

Total dNCOME . v ittt it it et ettt e ettt et te et et eaeeaeeens 34,186 37,251 32,723
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
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2001 2000 1999
(E IN MILLIONS)

Insurance benefits (NeL) ... vttt ittt ittt et e e et et (21,979) (26, 354) (24,376)
Interest and sSimilar EXPENSES . c v i v vttt teeeeeeeenneeeeeeeenns (492) (148) (119)
Other expenses for investmentsS. .......ii ittt ennnnnnnnn (5,537) (3,004) (1,876)
LoAn 10SS AllOWaANC . i v it ittt e ettt et ettt ettt teeeeeeeeeas (4) —= —=
Acquisition costs and administrative expenses............... (4,259) (3,927) (3,119)
Amortization of goodwill. ... ...ttt e (140) (137) (104)
(O ol TS a4 @ o 1= = (1,357) (2,055) (1,899)

TOLAl XN S S e v i e et e ettt ae e e e eeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeneanns (33,774) (35,625) (31,493)
FEarnings from ordinary activities before taxation........... 412 1,626 1,230
B =T (99) (343) (347)
Minority interests in earnings....... ..ot iiiieeeeeennnnns (84) (658) (491)
A LS A 1o ¥ @) 111 229 625 392
Special 1ncome effeCts. . ittt ettt e e e e —— 16 (82)
Adjusted Net INCOME. .. i ittt ittt ittt et ettt et ae e eeneenns 229 641 310

(1) Under IAS reporting standards,

gross written premiums include fee income

generated from unit-linked and other investment-oriented products, but do

not include the full amount of statutory premiums written on these products.

On a statutory premium basis, total premiums written were E33,687 million,

E31,025 million and E25,247 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
(2) Net of reinsurance ceded of E1,169 million, E1,139 million and E1,169
million, in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written of our life/health

operations in 2001 decreased by E94 million, to E20,145 million in 2001 from
E20,239 million in 2000. Disregarding the effects of exchange rate movements,
which reduced 2001 life/health gross premiums written by E85 million, gross
premiums written would have decreased by E9 million. A large portion of the
decrease is explained by the sale of a large group policy in France in 2000,
which increased gross premiums written in that year by approximately E800
million. Excluding the impact of this sale, together with the impact of foreign
exchange movements, gross premiums written would have increased by E791 million,
or 3.9%, in 2001, due to increases in Rest of Europe and Rest of World. On a
statutory premium basis, gross premiums written increased by E2,662 million,
8.6%, to E33,687 million in 2001 from E31,025 million in 2000, reflecting the
general trend towards investment-oriented insurance products in Rest of Europe
and the United States.

or

Premiums Earned (Net). On a Group-wide basis, life/health net premiums
earned in 2001 and 2000 reflected premiums ceded to reinsurers of E1,169 million
and E1,139 million, respectively, resulting in overall retention levels of
approximately 94.0% in 2001 and 94.2% in 2000. Net premiums decreased slightly
by E61 million to E18,317 million in 2001 from E18,378 million in 2000,
consistent with the slight decrease in gross premiums written in this period.
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Insurance Benefits (Net). Net insurance benefits for our worldwide
life/health business consist of benefits paid, changes in aggregate policy
reserves, and expenses of premium refunds to policyholders. Net life/health
insurance benefits decreased by E4,375 million, or 16.6%, to
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E21,979 million in 2001 from E26,354 million in 2000, primarily as a result of
reduced income from investments in 2001. The reduction in income from
investments in turn resulted in reduced policyholder participation benefits,
which are included in benefits paid and changes in aggregate policy reserves.

Acquisition Costs and Administrative Expenses. Acquisition costs and
administrative expenses which consist primarily of payments and changes in
deferred acquisition costs, administrative expenses, and net underwriting costs,
increased by E332 million, or 8.5%, to E4,259 million in 2001 from E3, 927
million in 2000, due primarily to increased underwriting costs resulting from
the continued expansion of our investment-oriented products. Under IAS, these
costs are expensed as incurred, even though significantly less than the amount
of statutory premium is recognized as revenue.

Net Income. Net income from life/health insurance decreased by E396
million, or 63.4%, to E229 million in 2001 from E625 million in 2000, primarily
as a result of reduced income from investments, particularly in Germany and Rest
of Europe. See "-- Asset Management Operations —-- Investment Income" for a
discussion of investment results for life/health insurance investments.

On a Group-wide basis, amortization of goodwill in our life/health lines
increased to E146 million in 2001 from E137 million in 2000, while minority
interest decreased to E84 million in 2001 from E658 million in 2000. The
decrease in minority interests resulted primarily from decreased earnings.

The consolidated results of our life/health operations in 2000 included the
effects of certain special adjustments to income taxes. There were no special
adjustments to our consolidated results of operations in 2001. Excluding the
impact of these items in 2000, net income would have decreased by E412 million,
or 64.3%, to E229 million in 2001 from E641 million in 2000.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written of our life/health
operations in 2000 increased by E1,766 million, or 9.6%, to E20,239 million in
2000 from E18,473 million in 1999. Disregarding the effects of exchange rate
movements, which increased 2000 life/health gross premiums written by E181
million, gross premiums written increased by E1,585 million, or 8.6%, largely as
a result of premium growth in Rest of Europe and Rest of World.

Net Premiums. On a Group-wide basis, net life/health premiums written in
2000 and 1999 reflected premiums ceded to reinsurers of E1,139 million and
E1,169 million, respectively, resulting in overall retention levels of
approximately 94.2% in 2000 and 93.3% in 1999. Net premiums increased by E1,979
million, or 12.1%, to E18,378 million in 2000 from E16,399 million in 1999,
which was slightly greater than the 9.6% increase in gross premiums written in
this period.

Insurance Benefits (Net). Net insurance benefits for our worldwide
life/health business consist of benefits paid, changes in aggregate policy
reserves, and expenses of premium refunds to policyholders. Net life/health
policy benefits increased by E1,978 million, or 8.1%, to E26,354 million in 2000
from E24,376 million in 1999, reflecting primarily increased income from
investments in 2000. The increase in income from investments resulted in turn in
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increased policyvholder participation benefits, which are included in benefits
paid and changes in aggregate policy reserves.

Acquisition Costs and Administrative Expenses. Acquisition costs and
administrative expenses, which consist primarily of payments and changes in
deferred acquisition costs, administrative expenses, and net underwriting costs
increased by E808 million, or 25.9%, to E3,927 million in 2000 from E3,119
million in 1999 due primarily to increased underwriting costs as a result of the
continued expansion of our investment-oriented products. Under IAS, these

51

costs are expensed as incurred, even though significantly less than the amount
of statutory premium is recognized as revenue.

Net Income. Net income from life/health insurance increased by E233
million, or 59.4%, to E625 million in 2000 from E392 million in 1999, due to
increases in Germany and Rest of Europe, primarily as a result of increased
income from investments, offset in part by a decrease in Rest of World,
primarily due to decreases in South Korea, where we incurred restructuring and
portfolio optimization expenses in 2000. See "Asset Management
Operations —-- Investment Income" for a discussion of investment results for
life/health insurance investments.

On a Group-wide basis, amortization of goodwill and minority interests in
life/health lines increased 33.6%, to E795 million in 2000 from E595 million in
1999. Of such amount, amortization of goodwill increased to E137 million in 2000
from E104 million in 1999, while minority interest increased to E658 million in
2000 from E491 million in 1999.

Our consolidated results of operations include the effects of certain
special adjustments to income taxes, including an expense of E16 million in 2000
and a benefit of E82 million in 1999. These adjustments to income taxes included
the release of deferred taxes, primarily in Germany, resulting from a decrease
in statutory tax rates. In 2000, the statutory tax rate in Germany was reduced
from 40% to 25%, effective for 2001. Under IAS, deferred tax assets and
liabilities were revalued in 2000, leading to non-recurring net income effects.
In 1999, statutory tax rates in Germany were also reduced, but to a lesser
extent. Excluding the impact of these items, net income would have increased by
E331 million, or 106.8%, to E641 million in 2000 from E310 million in 1999. The
effect of these special adjustments on our geographic segment results is further
discussed where applicable under "-- Discussion of Life/Health Operations by
Geographic Region" below.
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DISCUSSION OF LIFE/HEALTH OPERATIONS BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION

The following table sets forth our gross life/health premiums written and
net income by geographic region for the years indicated. Consistent with our
general practice, gross premiums written by geographic region are presented
before consolidation adjustments representing the elimination of transactions
between Group companies in different geographic regions and different segments,
and net income by geographic region is presented after tax and before those
consolidation adjustments, amortization of goodwill and minority interests.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
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2001 2000
GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME

Germany
Life . i e e e e 8,969 65 9,094 514
Health. ... ittt i i 2,691 48 2,587 56
Consolidation adjustments............. - 14 - 13
Total. .ttt e e e 11,660 127 11,681 583
Rest O0f EUXOPE. . i ittt i ii ittt 5,486 381 5,751 910
Rest of World...... ..o iiiiiiiinnnnn. 3,010 (49) 2,818 (71)
Consolidation adjustments............... (11) —— (11) (2)
Subtotal....... ..o, 20,145 459 20,239 1,420
Amortization of goodwill................ - (146) - (137)
Minority interests........c.oiiiiiiiii.. - (84) - (658)
Total. .t e e 20,145 229 20,239 625

GROSS

PREMIUMS
WRITTEN

A significant portion of our life/health operations in Rest of Europe and
Rest of World consists of sales of unit-linked products. Only the fee income
generated from the sale of such products is included in gross premiums written
under IAS.

GERMANY
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We were the largest provider of life insurance and the third-largest
provider of health insurance in Germany, with estimated market shares of 15.2%
and 12.5%, respectively, as measured by gross premiums written in 2001. Germany
is by far our most important market for life/health insurance. As a percentage
of our total life/health gross premiums written worldwide, Germany accounted for
57.8% in 2001, 57.7% in 2000 and 61.6% in 1999. On a statutory premium basis,
Germany accounted for 34.6% of our total life/health gross premiums written in
2001.

We conduct our life/health insurance operations in Germany through:

— Allianz Lebensversicherungs—-AG (or Allianz Leben), the main operating
company for our German life insurance operations. At December 31, 2001,
we owned 50.5% of Allianz Leben. In January 2002, pursuant to an
agreement announced in April 2001, we purchased an additional 40.6% of
Allianz Leben's outstanding shares from Munich Re, thereby increasing our
shareholding in Allianz Leben to 91.1%, with the balance of the
outstanding shares in Allianz Leben publicly traded in Germany. See
"Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions";
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— Deutsche Lebensversicherungs-AG, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz

Leben, which is our vehicle for selling standardized, low-cost term
insurance and unit-linked annuities in Germany; and
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— Vereinte Lebensversicherung AG (or Vereinte Leben), which sells Allianz
Leben products under its own brand name.

— Vereinte Krankenversicherung AG (or Vereinte Health), our health
insurance subsidiary.

Our life/health insurance operations in Germany employed 10,366 people at
the end of 2001, 9,995 people at the end of 2000 and 10,279 people at the end of
1999.

DISTRIBUTION

Our distribution channels for our life/health products in Germany are
similar to those used for our property-casualty products. Many of our products
in Germany are distributed through common or overlapping distribution systems.
In our German life/health insurance businesses, we distribute our products
primarily through a network of self-employed, full-time tied agents. For our
individual life, health and mutual fund products, the network of full-time tied
agents is our most important distribution channel. Brokers are also an important
channel for the distribution of Allianz Leben's and Vereinte Health's group life
and health products. The bank distribution channel is utilized primarily in our
life insurance business. We distribute our life insurance products through
Dresdner Bank, and under contractual arrangements with Volks-und
Raiffeisenbanken, and a network of cooperative banks in southern Germany, as
well as through IKB, a German industrial credit bank. In connection with our
acquisition of Dresdner Bank on July 23, 2001, we expect to place approximately
1,000 insurance specialists to sell both life insurance products and
property-casualty insurance products at Dresdner Bank branches throughout
Germany, of whom more than 700 had been placed at December 31, 2001. We
terminated our previous distribution agreements with HypoVereinsbank upon our
acquisition of Dresdner Bank. See "Major Shareholders and Related Party
Transactions."

The following sets forth certain key data concerning our distribution
systems as they relate to life and health insurance at and for the year ended
December 31, 2001:

% OF 2001
LIFE HEALTH
NUMBER (1) PREMIUMS PREMIUMS
Full-time tied agent S . @ittt ittt ittt ettt 11,970 61.0 82.1
Part-time tied agentsS. ..ttt ittt ittt et ieee et eeaeenns 43,201 6.0 6.6
= a3 T 7,878 9.5 6.3
2 0 2,541 (2) 17.7 -
(050 o L i I T - 5.8 5.0
1 = P 100.0 100.0

(1) Represents the total number in Germany for all Allianz Group segments.
(2) Represents the number of German branches at Dresdner Bank, (803), and at two

unaffiliated banks, Volks- und Raiffeisenbanken (1,730) and Industrie
Kredit-Bank (8), with which we have distribution agreements covering our
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property-casualty and life/health insurance products.

(3) Includes all Allianz Group employees in Germany, who are able to sell
Allianz policies.
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LIFE INSURANCE

Life insurance is the most popular form of savings for old age in Germany.
With the demographic shift toward an aging German population, we see increasing
opportunities for our life insurance business as private sector products are
used to supplement decreasing levels of state provisions. In addition, the
demand for insurance against financial loss resulting from occupational
disability has grown rapidly in Germany in recent years as the German statutory
social insurance system has provided declining levels of support. In 2001,
approximately 60% of our new policies included supplementary occupational
disability insurance products.

On January 1, 2002, a new law (the Altersvermogensgesetz) took effect,
providing incentives for private retirement plans and company pension funds
beginning in 2002. The new law, which was enacted by the German legislature in
May 2001, provides for direct state subsidies or, in certain circumstances,
tax—-free premium payments, and it requires that life-long benefit payments be
guaranteed. The benefit payments will be subject to income tax. The German life
insurance industry is expected to be the main beneficiary of the new law. In
July 2001, we started selling through Allianz Leben and Vereinte Leben specially
designed products that satisfy the legal requirements of the
Altersvermogensgesetz, primarily that the sum of premium payments be fixed at
the beginning of the benefit payment period.

In the life insurance area, our policy surrender rates were 3.6% in 2001,
3.6% in 2000 and 3.4% in 1999, compared to German industry-wide rates of 4.6%,
4.5% and 4.4%, respectively. We believe that this is in large part due to our
widely recognized and well respected brand name, our position as a market leader
in most German insurance lines, our reputation for superior customer service and
our financial strength. We also pay close attention to promoting follow-on
business, which involves persuading policyholders to reinvest funds. This
typically takes the form of using the benefits paid out on an endowment policy
as the single premium for an immediate annuity that ensures a guaranteed income
for the rest of the policyholder's life, or investing in a fund managed by our
asset management subsidiary ADAM. See "-- Asset Management Operations." The
proportion of funds paid by our German life insurance operations that were
reinvested in other Allianz products amounted to 14% in 2001, 12% in 2000 and
15% in 1999.

PRODUCTS

Our German life insurance companies offer a comprehensive and unified range
of life insurance and life insurance-related products on both an individual and
group basis. The main classes of coverage offered are: endowment life insurance,
annuity policies, term life insurance, unit-linked annuities, and other life
insurance-related forms of cover, which are provided as riders to other policies
and on a stand-alone basis. Allianz Leben also assumes reinsurance of each of
these individual and group life insurance products.

Endowment life. An endowment policy is a form of life insurance under
which a capital benefit is paid out either on the policyholder's death or upon
maturity of the policy. Our endowment life products for the German market
include policies both with unchanging levels of premiums and guaranteed benefits
and with premiums and guaranteed benefits that rise automatically in accordance
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with various indexes of earnings levels in Germany.

Amounts payable at maturity of an endowment policy include a "guaranteed
benefit," an amount established by reference to a legally mandated maximum
guaranteed technical interest rate on actuarial reserves. This interest rate is
currently 3.25% per year for policies issued on or after July 1, 2000, having
declined from 4% per year. The future profit participation credited to
policyholders is not guaranteed. The total amount payable at the maturity of a
policy, which is calculated based on the total expected profit participation, is
the principal basis of competition between German life insurance providers.
Under current German law, the policyholder must be credited with at least 90% of
each year's statutory profits. In the current competitive environment, however,
the rate of profit participation exceeds this statutory minimum and is subject
to periodic
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adjustment by insurers in light of competitive conditions prevailing from time
to time. In conformity with prevailing market conditions, we currently credit
94% to 95% of each year's profits to policyholders.

Annuity policies. An annuity policy is a form of life insurance product
under which the insured receives a series of periodic payments over the course
of his or her remaining life. Annuities may either be deferred, meaning that the
insured starts receiving payments only after the expiration of a specified term,
or immediate, in which case the payment stream starts immediately. Benefits
under annuity policies, like those under endowment policies, include both
guaranteed benefit and profit participation elements.

Term life. In addition to endowment and annuity policies, we also provide
a small amount of term life insurance, primarily standardized low-cost term life
insurance product aimed at individual customers.

Other life-insurance related products. We also provide a wide range of
other life insurance-related products as riders to individual and group
customers.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the components of life insurance gross
premiums written in Germany for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
NEW RECURRING NEW RECURRING
BUSINESS PREMIUMS TOTAL BUSINESS PREMIUMS TOTAL

Individual policies

Endowment.........ouoiiiiininennn. 208 4,501 4,709 378 4,524 4,902
Annuities........ i 1,176 1,320 2,496 1,145 1,363 2,508
S 16 73 89 14 68 82
Subtotal....... ... 1,400 5,894 7,294 1,537 5,955 7,492
Group policies......ciiiiennn. 617 1,058 1,675 591 1,011 1,602
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. In Germany, life insurance premiums decreased E125
million, or 1.4%, to E8,969 million in 2001 from E9,094 million in 2000, due
primarily to a decrease in premiums on individual policies.

Individual life insurance policies, which include endowment, term and
annuity policies, accounted for 81.3% of our gross life insurance premiums
written in Germany in 2001. Gross premiums written on individual life insurance
decreased by 2.6%, to E7,294 million in 2001 from E7,492 million in 2000, due
primarily to a large number of endowment policies either maturing or reaching
the end of their premium payment period. New individual business decreased to
E1,400 million in 2001 from E1,537 million in 2000. The decrease in new
individual business was attributable primarily to a shift in the focus of our
full-time tied agent distribution channel toward the sale of new
Altersvermogensgesetz policies, most of which, although sold in 2001, have
premium payments which begin on January 1, 2002.

Group life insurance gross premiums written increased E73 million, or 4.6%,
to E1,675 million in 2001 from E1,602 in 2000, due to the growth of new
business.
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Net Income. In Germany, net income from life insurance operations
decreased by E449 million, or 87.4%, to E65 million in 2001 from E514 million in
2000. Excluding the impact of a release of deferred taxes in 2000 resulting from
a change in German statutory tax rates, net income would have decreased by E402
million, or 86.1%, to E65 million in 2001 from E467 million in 2000, due
primarily to reduced investment results in 2001, attributable to weakness in the
capital markets.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. In Germany, which represented 57.6% of our total
life/health insurance gross premiums written in 2000, life premiums increased
E178 million, or 2.0%, to E9,094 million in 2000, from E8,916 million in 1999,
due primarily to increases in annuity and group policy premiums, reflecting the
increased popularity of those products as a supplement to retirement coverage
offered by the German state pension scheme, as well as recurring premiums from
the significant amount of new business written in 1999 resulting from the
proposed tax legislation discussed below.

Individual life insurance policies, which include endowment, term and
annuity policies, accounted for 82.4% of our gross life insurance premiums in
Germany in 2000. Gross premiums written on individual life insurance increased
by 1.1% over 1999 levels to E7,492 million in 2000, due primarily to continued
growth in annuity policies. New individual business decreased by E621 million,
or 28.8%, to E1,537 million in 2000 from E2,158 million in 1999. This decrease
is in part the result of the significant level of 1999 premiums, due to proposed
tax legislation which would have decreased the potential tax benefits of future
insurance purchases. In addition, new business sales of both endowment policies
and annuities decreased in 2000 as customers waited to see how insurance
products would be impacted by current government discussions on potential tax
benefits to private retirement plans. Recurring premiums for both endowment
policies and annuities increased due to the significant business written in 1999
and prior years.
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Gross premiums written on endowment policies, which accounted for 65.4% of
total individual premiums in 2000, decreased by E164 million, or 3.2%, to E4,902
million in 2000 from E5,066 million in 1999. Recurring premium income on
endowment policies grew by E306 million, or 7.3%, while new premium income
decreased by E470 million, or 55.4% due to the significant business written in
1999 and some customers' "wait-and-see" approach in 2000 as discussed above.

Annuity gross premiums written increased by E240 million, or 10.6%, to
E2,508 million in 2000 from E2,268 million in 1999, due mainly to reinvestment
in annuity products as older endowment policies matured. The increase was also
driven by growth in recurring premiums, which increased by E393 million, or
40.5%, to E1,363 million in 2000 from E970 million in 1999, reflecting the
significant business written in 1999. New business declined by E153 million, or
11.8%, to E1,145 million in 2000 from E1,298 million in 1999, similar to the
trend in our endowment line.

Gross premiums written on term policies increased by E6 million, or 7.9%,
to E82 million in 2000 from E76 million in 1999. New business rose slightly in
2000, while recurring premiums rose by E4 million, or 6.3%, over 1999 levels.

Group life insurance gross premiums written increased by E96 million, or
6.4%, to E1,602 million in 2000 from E1,506 million in 1999. Recurring premiums
increased by E192 million, or 23.4%, to E1,011 million in 2000 from E819 million
in 1999 due to the significant business written in 1999 and prior years. New
business decreased by E96 million, or 14.0%, to E591 million in 2000 from E687
million in 1999 due to customers awaiting the impact of the proposed legislation
discussed above, which was offset in part by one large group contract written in
2000.

Net Income. In Germany, net income from life insurance operations
increased by E280 million, or 119.7%, to E514 million in 2000 from E234 million
in 1999. This was due primarily to increased investment income, a higher
shareholder participation rate and the release of deferred taxes pursuant to a
decrease in statutory tax rates.
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HEALTH INSURANCE

Vereinte Health is the third-largest private health insurer in Germany,
with approximately 2.3 million customers and an estimated market share of
approximately 12.5% in 2001. Vereinte Health has strong ties to the German
medical profession, and with approximately E600 million in gross premiums
written from physicians in 2001, it is the largest health insurer for physicians
in Germany. Vereinte Health is also a market leader in providing group health
insurance for corporations and associations.

The German statutory healthcare system operates as a mandatory system for
persons with incomes below a specified threshold and allows persons with incomes
above the threshold to voluntarily opt out of the statutory system and use the
private healthcare system. Currently, the German healthcare system is dominated
by the German statutory schemes, which together cover approximately 90% of all
insureds, while private providers of health insurance, including Vereinte
Health, compete for the remainder.

PRODUCTS
Vereinte Health provides a wide range of health insurance products,

including full private healthcare coverage for the self-employed, salaried
employees and civil servants; supplementary insurance for people insured under
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statutory health insurance plans; daily sickness allowance for the self-employed
and salaried employees; hospital daily allowance; compulsory long-term care
insurance and supplementary care insurance; and foreign travel medical expenses
insurance.

Like our endowment and other life insurance products, our health insurance
products include mandatory profit-sharing features, whereby we return 80% of the
statutory profit on our health business, after the payment of claims and claims
costs, the establishment of reserves and payment of taxes, to policyholders
annually, generally in the form of premium subsidies or rebates. Since the
beginning of 2000, we have also been required by law to return 90% of surplus
from capital investments to our policyholders. As with our endowment policies,
the actual level of profit sharing we provide our policyholders is, for
competitive reasons, in excess of the statutory minimum and has been over 90% of
statutory profits in recent years.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the components of health insurance gross
premiums written in Germany for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999:

YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,

Individual pPoOlicCieS ..ttt ittt ettt e et 2,054 1,979 1,927
GroUP POLiCieS . i ittt ittt ettt et e ettt ettt et 637 608 586
o= 2,691 2,587 2,513
Medical exXpense INSUTLANCE . .. vt vttt eeeeeeeneeeeeeeennanenens 1,853 1,754 1,698
Other personal supplementary INSULANCE. .. .. teeennnnneennn 370 358 345
Compulsory long-term care 1nSUranCe...... ..o eeeeonnneeeenns 230 238 236
Other health InsUranCe. ... ..ttt ittt e ettt e 238 237 234
1 o= 2,691 2,587 2,513
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. Health insurance premiums in Germany increased
E104 million, or 4.1%, to E2,691 million in 2001 from E2,587 million in 2000.
This increase was due primarily to increases in new business, especially in
medical and other personal supplementary lines, as well as increased rates and a
decrease in cancellations from the previous year.

Gross premiums written on medical expense insurance, which accounted for
68.9% of health insurance premiums in Germany in 2001, increased by E99 million,
or 5.6% to E1,853 million in 2001 from E1,754 million in 2000. Gross premiums
written on other personal supplementary insurance increased by E12 million, or
3.4% to E370 million in 2001 from E358 million in 2000. Both increases were
attributable to a growth in new business and a decrease in cancellations.
Compulsory long-term care insurance decreased by E8 million, or 3.4%, from E238
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million in 2000 to E230 million in 2001, reflecting a reduction in the
industry-wide tariff for compulsory long-term care insurance. Gross premiums
written on other health insurance in Germany increased by El million to E238
million in 2001.

Net Income. In Germany, net income from health insurance operations
decreased by E8 million, or 14.3%, to E48 million in 2001 from E56 million in
2000. This was due primarily to decreased investment results, offset in part by
an increase in the amount of deferred taxes released in 2001 compared to 2000.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Health insurance premiums in Germany increased E74
million, or 2.9%, to E2,587 million in 2000 from E2,513 million in 1999. This
increase was due in large part to increases in new business, particularly in
medical and personal lines, and a decrease in cancellations from the previous
year. Due to moderate tariff increases, the increase in health premiums was
slightly below the market growth.

Gross premiums written on medical expense insurance, which accounted for
67.8% of health insurance premiums in Germany in 2000, increased by E56 million,
or 3.3%, to E1,754 million in 2000 from E1,698 million in 1999. Gross premiums
written on other personal supplementary insurance increased by E13 million, or
3.8%, to E358 million in 2000 from E345 million in 1999. Both increases were
attributable to a growth in new business and a decrease in cancellations.
Compulsory long-term care insurance increased by E2 million, or 0.8%, from E236
million in 1999 to E238 million in 2000. Gross premiums written on other health
insurance in Germany increased by E3 million, or 1.3%, over 1999 levels to E237
million in 2000.

Net Income. In Germany, net income from health insurance operations
decreased by E2 million, or 3.4%, to E56 million in 2000 from E58 million in
1999, due primarily to decreased income from investments, offset in part by
reduced income tax expenses resulting from the release of deferred taxes
pursuant to a decrease in the German statutory tax rate.

REST OF EUROPE
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Rest of Europe is our second-largest market for life/health insurance.
As a percentage of our total life/health gross premiums written worldwide, the
Rest of Europe accounted for 27.2% in 2001, 28.4% in 2000 and 26.6% in 1999.

We conduct our life/health insurance operations in the Rest of Europe
through four main groups of operating companies in France, Italy, Spain and
Switzerland. The life products we write in our various Rest of Europe markets
are written on both an individual and group basis and include traditional term
and annuity products, unit-linked products and endowment and pension
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products. The design and features of these products vary by country, depending
on local tax laws, product regulation and market conditions, and are designed to
pay death benefits, optimize inheritances, provide for retirement, pay annuities
or build capital, or combinations of these.

France. We conduct our life/health insurance operations in France through
the companies of the AGF Group. The AGF Group is the sixth-largest life
insurance provider in France, with an estimated market share of 5.5%, based on
gross premiums written in 2001. The AGF Group provides a broad line of life
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insurance and other financial products, including short-term investment and
savings products. An important portion of AGF Group's life premiums is generated
through the sale of unit linked policies, only the fee income from which is
reflected in gross premiums written under IAS.

The AGF Group also operates in the French health insurance market through a
separate business unit responsible for both group insurance and health insurance
and offers a wide variety of health products, which are designed to pay benefits
that complement those of the mandatory French Social Security plan. The results
of our health operations in France are included in both our property-casualty
and life segments.

Italy. We conduct our life/health insurance operations in Italy primarily
through the Italian Subsidiaries. Taken together, the Italian Subsidiaries are
the second-largest life insurer in the Italian market, with an estimated market
share of 13.5%, based on gross premiums written in 2001. The Italian
Subsidiaries' individual life policies are primarily endowment policies but also
include annuities and other policies, including capitalization and other
products. Consistent with trends in the Italian market generally, the Italian
Subsidiaries' products include an increasing amount of unit-linked policies,
where policyholders participate directly in the performance of policy-related
investments, and a decreasing amount of endowment products. In 2001, sales of
unit-linked and equity-linked products sold through banks reached 66.5% of our
total statutory life premiums in Italy, reflecting the importance of this
distribution channel. The Italian Subsidiaries' unit-linked policies include
products linked to funds managed by the Italian Subsidiaries, as well as by
third-party investment managers, and index-linked products.

In recent years, the Italian government has promulgated a series of reforms
to the state pension system designed to reduce the level of benefits that the
state provides and to promote the development of private pension funds to
supplement state retirement benefits. In response to these reforms, the Italian
Subsidiaries have introduced a series of flexible new pension-related products
in their group life insurance line, under which policyholders may choose the
investment income option which they consider most appropriate from several funds
on the basis of their individual propensity for risk.

Spain. We are the eighth-largest life insurance provider in Spain, with an
estimated market share of 4.1%, based on gross premiums written in 2001. We
conduct our life/health operations in Spain primarily through Allianz Spain and
through Eurovida and Europensiones, our joint ventures with Banco Popular. Our
Spanish life insurance subsidiaries sell mainly traditional life insurance and
pensions and began selling unit-linked products in 1999.

Switzerland. We conduct our life/health operations in Switzerland
primarily through the Swiss Subsidiaries. Taken together, the Swiss Subsidiaries
are the sixth-largest life insurance provider in Switzerland, with an estimated
market share of 5.3%, based on gross premiums written in 2001. The Swiss
Subsidiaries sell a wide range of individual and group life insurance products,
including retirement and old age, death and disability products. Insureds may
select products offering conventional investment capability or investment in
funds or annuity and capital insurance contracts.

Other Rest of Europe. We conduct significant life/health operations in the
remainder of the Rest of Europe through approximately 18 Allianz subsidiaries in
more than 13 other European countries. In the United Kingdom, we offer life

insurance products through our subsidiary
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Cornhill. In Austria, we operate through our life insurance subsidiary Allianz
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Elementar Leben. We serve the Belgian life insurance market primarily through
AGF Belgium Insurance and the Netherlands life insurance market primarily
through Royal Nederland Verzekeringsgroep. Our largest life insurance
subsidiaries in other countries in the Rest of Europe are located in Greece,
Luxembourg, Portugal, Hungary and Poland. Our life insurance products in Other
Rest of Europe are generally the same as the life products we offer in the
German market. Our life insurance operations in Other Rest of Europe had gross
premiums written of E1,148 million in 2001, E971 million in 2000 and E998
million in 1999.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows key financial data for our Rest of Europe
life/health operations. Consistent with our general practice, gross premiums
written by geographic region are presented before consolidation adjustments
representing the elimination of transactions between Group companies in
different countries and different segments, and net income by geographic region
is presented before those consolidation adjustments, amortization of goodwill
and minority interests.

REST OF EUROPE -—- LIFE/HEALTH: KEY DATA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN

(E IN MILLIONS)

ot o oY 1,556 97 2,297 391 1,458
10 it O 1,336 261 1,454 306 1,453
1S5 <7 e o 879 28 532 75 421
Switzerland......oeee it eennnnnnnn. 584 (17) 524 43 630
[ oL 1,148 12 971 95 998
Consolidation adjustments.......... (17) —— (27) —— (30)

Total. ittt ettt 5,486 381 5,751 910 4,930

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. In Rest of Europe, life/health gross premiums
written decreased by E265 million, or 4.6%, to E5,486 million in 2001 from
E5,751 in 2000, reflecting primarily in a sharp decrease in gross premiums
written in France and a smaller decrease in Italy, offset in part by increases
in Spain, Other Rest of Europe and Switzerland.

Net Income. In Rest of Europe, net income from life/health insurance
operations decreased by E529 million, or 58.1%, to E381 million in 2001 from
E910 million in 2000. This was due to decreases in all of our Rest of Europe
markets, particularly France and Switzerland, reflecting primarily reduced
income from investments.

France. In France, life/health gross premiums written, which include fees
from unit-linked products, decreased by E741 million, or 32.3%, to E1,556
million in 2001 from E2,297 million in 2000. The decrease in 2001 from 2000

NET

224
306
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reflects primarily the sale of a large group policy in 2000. Excluding this
policy, gross premiums written would have increased by 3% in 2001 over 2000. Net
income in France decreased by E294 million, or 75.2%, to E97 million in 2001
from E391 million in 2000, primarily as a result of decreased income from
investments due to unfavorable conditions in the capital markets, while expenses
remained constant compared to 2000.
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Italy. 1In Italy, life gross premiums written, which include fees from
unit-linked products, decreased E118 million, or 8.1%, to E1,336 million in 2001
from E1,454 million in 2000. This decrease was primarily attributable to a high
number of endowment policies which matured and were replaced by sales of
unit-linked products, reflecting the importance of the banking channel, which
distributes such products. Net income in Italy decreased to E261 million in 2001
from E306 million in 2000, due primarily to reduced income from investments
resulting from weak capital markets in 2001.

Spain. In Spain, life gross premiums written increased by E347 million, or
65.2%, to E879 million in 2001 from E532 million in 2000. This increase was
primarily attributable to higher sales of pension policies. Net income decreased
by E47 million, or 62.7%, to E28 million in 2001 from E75 million in 2000, due
primarily to reduced income from investments in 2001 and a tax adjustment in
2000.

Switzerland. In Switzerland, life/health gross premiums written increased
by E60 million, or 11.5%, to E584 million in 2001 from E524 million in 2000.
This increase was attributable primarily to growth in single premium policies,
especially in group life. In Switzerland, net income decreased to a loss of E17
million in 2001 from net income of E43 million in 2000, due primarily to lower
income from investments, including significant write-downs for impairments.

Other. Life/health gross premiums written in Other Rest of Europe
increased by E177 million, or 18.2%, to E1,148 million in 2001 from E971 million
in 2000. Net income in Other Rest of Europe decreased by E83 million or 87.4%,
to E12 million in 2001 from E95 million in 2000, reflecting primarily reduced
income in our Belgian operations, as a result of lower income from investments.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. In Rest of Europe, life/health gross premiums
written increased by E821 million, or 16.7%, to E5,751 million in 2000 from
E4,930 million in 1999, due primarily to growth in France and Spain, offset in
part by decreases in Switzerland.

Net Income. In Rest of Europe, net income increased by E245 million, or
36.8%, to E910 million in 2000 from E665 million in 1999, due primarily to
increases in France and Spain.

France. In France, life/health gross premiums written, which include fees
from unit-linked products, increased by E839 million, or 57.5%, to E2,297
million in 2000 from E1,458 million in 1999. The increase in individual premiums
is due primarily to unit-linked products, which increased by 40.0% in 2000.
Group premiums increased by 153.1%, primarily due to one large policy sold in
2000. Excluding this policy, group premiums would have increased by 19.7%. Net
income increased by E167 million, or 74.6%, to E391 million in 2000 from E224
million in 1999, primarily as a result of increased investment spreads, and also
due to a decrease in expenses resulting from cost efficiencies realized in 2000
following additional costs incurred in 1999. In addition, tax expense decreased
by E59 million, or 50.6%, in 2000 due to increased tax—-exempt income.

69



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

Italy. 1In Italy, life gross premiums written, which include fees from
unit-linked products, were E1,454 million in 2000, a slight increase from E1,453
million in 1999, due primarily to increased sales of traditional life insurance
products with an increase in premiums on unit-linked and other saving products
offsetting decreases in endowment policies in line with market trends. The
increase in unit-linked premiums also reflects the growing importance of the
banking channel which distributes such products. Net income was unchanged
between 2000 and 1999, with higher premiums, including fees from unit-linked
products, offset by increased taxes. Taxes increased E76 million, or 304.0%,
from E25 million in 1999 to E101 million in 2000. Taxes in 1999 reflect the
release of deferred taxes resulting from a reduction in statutory tax rates.
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Spain. In Spain, life gross premiums written increased by E111 million, or
26.4%, to E532 million in 2000 from E421 million in 1999, due primarily to
higher sales of pension policies and unit-linked products. Net income increased
by E67 million, to E75 million in 2000 from E8 million in 1999, due primarily to
an increase in premium and more favorable investment results.

Switzerland. In Switzerland, life/health gross premiums written decreased
by E106 million, or 16.8%, to E524 million in 2000 from E630 million in 1999.
This decrease was attributable primarily to changing interest rates. While
market interest rates in Switzerland rose in 2000, guaranteed interest rates on
our individual life policies were reduced to 2.5% in 2000 from 3.5% in 1999. Net
income increased to E43 million in 2000 from E34 million in 1999, due primarily
to increased income from investments.

Other. Life/health gross premiums written in Other Rest of Europe
decreased by E27 million, or 2.7%, to E971 million in 2000 from E998 million in
1999. Net income in Other Rest of Europe was flat at E95 million in 2000,
compared to E94 million in 1999.

REST OF WORLD
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

As a percentage of our total life/health gross premiums written worldwide,
Rest of World accounted for 14.9% in 2001, 13.9% in 2000 and 11.0% in 1999. Our
primary life/health markets in Rest of World are the United States and the
Asia-Pacific region.

United States. We serve the United States life/health insurance market
through Allianz Life, which is headquartered in Minneapolis, Minnesota. Allianz
Life and its subsidiaries are licensed to write business in all 50 states, the
District of Columbia and Guam. Allianz Life markets a wide variety of fixed and
variable life insurance and annuity contracts, and long-term care insurance to
individual and corporate customers. Allianz Life is a market leader in providing
equity-indexed annuities to individuals and life and health reinsurance to
individual and corporate customers. In 2001, our total statutory premiums
written from life/health insurance in the United States, which include sales of
investment-oriented products, amounted to E4,982 million.

Asia-Pacific. The primary life, health insurance markets in which we
operate in the Asia-Pacific area are as follows:

South Korea. Our insurance operations in South Korea consist of our two
subsidiaries, Allianz Life, formerly Allianz First Life, which we acquired in
1999, and France Life, a former subsidiary of AGF which joined the Allianz Group
in 1998 following our acquisition of AGF. We refer to these subsidiaries
together as the South Korean Subsidiaries. The South Korean Subsidiaries market
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over 30 life insurance products including individual endowment insurance,
education insurance (which provide periodical payments to support a child's
education and protection in case of a parent's death), protection insurance,
annuities, and traditional whole life insurance policies. They also sell group
life insurance protection and employee severance plans to both local and foreign
multinationals. The South Korean Subsidiaries use approximately 15,000 exclusive
tied agents, most of whom are part time, with the support of 577 sales offices
to distribute their life insurance products. Together, the South Korean
Subsidiaries generated E1,600 million in annual statutory premiums in 2001.

Taiwan. We conduct our life insurance business operations in Taiwan
through our subsidiary, Allianz President Life Insurance. Allianz President Life
is part of our joint venture with Uni-President Group and sells a wide range of
life insurance products including whole life insurance, term insurance,
endowment insurance and health insurance. We sell these products
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through a direct sales force and are currently developing other channels.
Allianz President Life generated life insurance statutory premiums written of
E128 million in 2001.

Other Asia-Pacific. 1In addition to the primary markets described above,
we have sold life and accident insurance products in Shanghai, China since
January 1999 through a joint venture in which Allianz has a shareholding of 51%.
We sell life insurance products in Thailand through a joint venture with the CP
Group, in the Philippines through a joint venture with Pioneer Assurance
Corporation, in India through a joint venture with Bajaj Auto, and in Malaysia
through our subsidiary MBA Life. We also market a range of health insurance
products in Indonesia, Singapore and Pakistan.

Other. In addition to the United States and Asia-Pacific, we also sell
life/health products in South America, primarily Brazil, Chile and Colombia.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows key financial data for our Rest of World
life/health operations. Consistent with our general practice, gross premiums
written by geographic region are presented before consolidation adjustments
representing the elimination of transactions between Group companies in
different countries and different segments, and net income by geographic region
is presented before those consolidation adjustments, amortization of goodwill
and minority interests.

REST OF WORLD —-- LIFE/HEALTH: KEY DATA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
GROSS GROSS GROSS
PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET PREMIUMS NET
WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCOME WRITTEN INCC

(E IN MILLIONS)

United States. ...ttt tneinnnnnn 1,478 (24) 1,465 133 1,458 (1
Asia-PacificC. ..ottt 1,229 (5) 970 (181) 414 25
(0w oL 303 (20) 383 (23) 175 7
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Gross Premiums Written. Life/health gross written premiums for Rest of
World increased by E192 million, or 6.8%, to E3,010 million in 2001 from E2,818
million in 2000. Life/health gross premiums written in the United States, which
include annuity considerations, were E1,478 million in 2001, an increase of E13
million from E1,465 million in 2000. On a constant currency basis, gross
premiums written in the United States decreased by E35 million, or 2.4%, in
2001. The decrease was primarily attributable to reduced mortality and expense
fees on our variable annuity business due to decreased assets under management
resulting from unfavorable market conditions, together with the termination of
our accident and health reinsurance assumed and broker administrator business.
Life/health gross premiums written in Asia-Pacific increased by E259 million, or
26.7%, to E1,229 million in 2001 from E970 million in 2000, primarily as a
result of our operations in South Korea, where gross premiums written increased
by E206 million, or 24.1%, to E1,060 million in 2001 from E854 million in 2000,
as a result of a significant increase in new business. Life/health gross
premiums written in Other Rest of World decreased by E80 million, or 20.9%, to
E303 million in 2001 from E383 million in 2000, primarily due to decreased gross
premiums written in Brazil and Colombia.

64

Net Income. Life/health net income in Rest of World increased by E22
million to a loss of E49 million in 2001 from a loss of E71 million in 2000. The
reduced loss was primarily the result of reduced losses in Asia-Pacific, despite
a loss in the United States in 2001. Losses in Asia-Pacific decreased by E176
million, to a net loss of E5 million in 2001 from a net loss of E181 million in
2000, due primarily to improved results in South Korea, whose 2000 results
reflected significant write-offs as discussed below. In 2001, the net loss from
life/health operations in the United States was E24 million, compared to net
income of E133 million in 2000. This decrease was primarily the result of
realized losses on investments of E38 million in 2001 compared to realized gains
on investments of E146 million in 2000. In addition, net income in the United
States decreased as a result of increased reinsurance claims, primarily due to
the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack, and increased costs associated with the
development of our distribution force for our variable annuity business, coupled
with decreased annuity considerations as a result of lower variable annuity
assets under management, due to declines in the capital markets.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Gross Premiums Written. Life/health gross written premiums for Rest of
World increased E771 million, or 37.7%, to E2,818 million in 2000 from E2,047
million in 1999. Life/health gross premiums written in the United States, which
include annuity considerations, were E1,465 million in 2000, a slight increase
of E7 million from E1,458 million in 1999. On a constant currency basis, gross
premiums written in the United States decreased by E174 million, or 11.9% in
2000. The decrease was attributable primarily to lower variable annuity
production and the termination of our accident and health reinsurance assumed
business. In addition, Allianz Life ceased pursuing the broker administrator
distribution channel, which slightly impacted overall premium levels. These
decreases were offset in part by strong life and annuity production as well as
strong life reinsurance sales. Life/health gross premiums written in
Asia-Pacific increased E556 million, or 134.3%, to E970 million in 2000 from
E414 million in 1999, due to the full-year consolidation of our South Korean
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operations in 2000.

Net Income. Net income in Rest of World decreased by E102 million, to a
loss of E71 million in 2000 from net income of E31 million in 1999, due
primarily to losses in Asia-Pacific, offset in part by increased income in the
United States. Net loss in Asia-Pacific was E181 million in 2001, compared to
net income of E25 million in 2000. The loss resulted primarily from the
write-off of impaired intangible assets at our operations in South Korea. Net
income in the United States increased by E134 million to E133 million in 2000
from a loss of E1 million in 1999, primarily due to improved investment results
and the inclusion of the results of LifeUSA in our consolidated results for
2000. In addition, 1999 results had been negatively impacted by a writedown of
deferred acquisition costs due to the early redemption of variable annuity
contracts. These increases in net income in the United States were offset by
decreases attributable to continued poor experience in the accident and health
reinsurance assumed business, discontinued in 1999, unfavorable fund experience
on our variable annuity block of business, and increased reserves for a class
action settlement related to business written during the 1980s.

BANKING OPERATIONS

Through our subsidiary Dresdner Bank, we are among the leading banks in the
European banking market with a wide range of private, commercial and investment
banking products and services for corporate, governmental and individual
customers. As measured by total assets at December 31, 2000, Dresdner Bank was
the third-largest bank in Germany, the eleventh-largest bank in Europe and the
nineteenth-largest bank in the world. (Source: The Banker, July 2001)

We established banking as our fourth core business segment alongside
property-casualty insurance, life/health insurance and asset management
following our acquisition of Dresdner
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Bank in 2001. We have included Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements since July 23, 2001, the date of the acquisition. The consolidation
of Dresdner Bank as of July 23, 2001 added significantly to the existing banking
operations of the Allianz Group for the year ended December 31, 2001. Prior to
2001, we had included the results of our banking operations, together with those
of our asset management business, in our financial services segment. Our banking
segment now consists of the banking operations of Dresdner Bank and the other
banking operations of the Allianz Group. For a discussion of our asset
management operations, including those of Dresdner Bank, which are not included
in our banking segment, see "-- Asset Management Operations." For the year ended
December 31, 2001, our banking segment contributed E12,841 million, or 13.0%, of
our total income. For pro forma financial information, see Note 3 to our
consolidated financial statements.

We provide selected statistical information on our banking operations in
"-— Selected Statistical Information Relating to Our Banking Operations." Such
statistical information differs in significant respects from, and may not be
comparable to, the financial information presented below. Although we have
included Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial statements since July 23,
2001, the statistical information includes the banking operations of Dresdner
Bank for the full year ended December 31, 2001 and for each of the four full
fiscal years prior to 2001. The statistical information also includes the asset
management operations of Dresdner Bank, which we do not include in our banking
segment. In addition, the statistical information presents the assets and
liabilities of Dresdner Bank without reflecting the adjustments that are
necessary to apply purchase accounting, which we have applied in the financial
information presented below. For additional information, see "-- Selected
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Statistical Information Relating to Our Banking Operations."

Dresdner Bank was founded in 1872 in Dresden, Germany, and grew by
acquisition and branch expansion throughout Germany to become a leading German
bank. In 1952, Dresdner Bank was split into three separate institutions, which
were subsequently reunified to form Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt
am Main, in 1957. In recent years, Dresdner Bank has made significant
acquisitions in investment banking, including British merchant bank Kleinwort
Benson Group plc in 1995 and U.S.-based investment bank Wasserstein Perella &
Co. in January 2001, and asset management, including U.S. asset manager RCM
Capital Management in 1995.

With approximately 1,170 branch offices and 50,000 employees at December
31, 2001, Dresdner Bank is focused on selected customer groups, geographic
regions and business areas in which the bank traditionally holds a strong
position. Our principal banking products and services include traditional
commercial banking activities such as deposit taking, lending (including
mortgage lending), cash management and transaction banking, as well as corporate
finance advisory services, mergers and acquisitions advisory services, capital
and money market services, securities underwriting and securities trading and
derivatives business on our own account and for our customers.

We operate through the domestic and international branch network of
Dresdner Bank and through various subsidiaries both in Germany and abroad, some
of which also have branch networks. At December 31, 2001, our branch banking
network comprised approximately 1,060 German branches, giving us a presence
throughout Germany, and 110 non-German branches. For 2001, Germany, the Rest of
Europe and the NAFTA zone accounted for approximately 73%, 17% and 7%,
respectively, of our net revenue from banking operations.

REORGANIZATION OF BUSINESS DIVISIONS

In the course of 2001, we reorganized our business structure to focus on
two major operating divisions, Private Clients and Corporates & Markets. In July
2001, in order to serve comparable customer needs out of a single integrated
business division focused on corporate
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customers and the capital markets, we combined our investment banking activities
and our European corporate banking and capital markets activities into our new
Corporates & Markets division. We believe our Corporates & Markets division will
strengthen our competitive market position through greater mass, a larger and
more integrated product offering and enhanced advisory expertise, and we expect
it to enhance our operational efficiency by generating potential cost savings
and earnings synergies through increased cross—-selling opportunities between
investment banking and corporate clients.

As part of the reorganization of our business divisions, we also announced
in September 2001 that our small business operations, which we have included as
part of our Corporates & Markets division for the year ended December 31, 2001,
would be integrated with our existing Private Clients division to form a new
Private and Business Clients division, effective January 1, 2002. The goal of
the reorganization is to increase fee and commission income by creating
cross—-selling opportunities through joint provision of services to both small
business and private client customers and by offering a wider range of
commission-related services together with additional advisory expertise.

In addition, in the course of integrating Dresdner Bank into the Allianz
Group and streamlining the Group's business structure, we expect to undertake
several other reorganizations. In 2002, we intend to merge the home loan savings
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businesses of the Allianz Group and Dresdner Bank, which provide home loans at
favorable rates to customers with home loan savings accounts, into a new entity,
Allianz Dresdner Bauspar AG, within the new Private and Business Clients
division. In 2001, we have included the home loan savings business of the
Allianz Group in our Private Clients division, while the home loan savings
business of Dresdner Bank continues to be reported in our Other division.

In November 2001, we also announced that our mortgage banking subsidiary,
Deutsche Hypothekenbank AG (or Deutsche Hyp), which is a part of our Other
division, would merge with the mortgage banking subsidiaries of Commerzbank and
Deutsche Bank. See "-- Other —-- Description of Business —-- Real Estate."

Other initiatives include the establishment of our financial planner
organization by combining our direct banking subsidiary Advance Bank with our
mobile financial planners, the merger of our information technology companies
AGIS and DREGIS, and the combination of Allianz's and Dresdner Bank's private
equity business.

COST-CUTTING AND RESTRUCTURING MEASURES

In 2001, in order to increase operating efficiency and cut costs in our
banking segment, Dresdner Bank supplemented its existing restructuring programs
introduced in May 2000 with new initiatives affecting all major parts of its
banking operations. Through the combined initiatives, we intend to eliminate an
aggregate of approximately 7,800 positions and to significantly improve the
operating efficiency of Dresdner Bank by 2004.

The principal restructuring measures implemented in 2001 were as follows:

— Over the course of 2001, we continued to implement the comprehensive
restructuring plan introduced by Dresdner Bank in May 2000 to reduce
administrative expenses. The restructuring plan calls for consolidation
of our German branch network and related back-office activities in
Germany, including closing approximately 300 of our German branches, and
the discontinuation of commercial lending activities outside of Europe
that are not directly related to investment banking, by 2004. These
measures included aggregate job cuts of approximately 5,000 employees.
Restructuring charges for the plan were recorded by Dresdner Bank in
2000.

— In connection with the reorganization of our Corporates & Markets
division discussed above, we recorded charges for the elimination of
approximately 1,500 positions in 2001,
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primarily in front and back office support functions. The charges for
these restructuring measures, as well as the qualifying plans noted in
the following paragraph, were recorded in the Other division rather than
in our Corporates & Markets division because we consider them to be
expenses of our banking segment as a whole rather than of the operations
of a particular business unit. For information on the charges recorded in
2001 in connection with this restructuring, see "-- Results of

Operations -- Year Ended December 31, 2001 -- Other Expenses."

— In September 2001, we announced initiatives involving an aggregate
reduction of approximately 1,300 positions throughout our banking
segment. At the time of this announcement, only our restructuring plans
at our German subsidiaries, including Deutsche Hyp, were sufficiently
detailed to qualify for restructuring charges to be recorded under IAS
and U.S. GAAP. Pursuant to such qualifying plans, we expect to eliminate
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approximately 240 positions in branch and support functions at our German
subsidiaries by the end of 2004. Pursuant to restructuring plans that do
not currently qualify, we expect to eliminate approximately 1,060
positions. We expect to record charges in connection with such plans as
incurred or when the plans qualify under IAS and U.S. GAAP. For
information on the charges recorded in 2001 in connection with this
restructuring, see "-- Results of Operations -- Year Ended December 31,
2001 -- Other Expenses."

For additional information on these charges, see Note 23 to our
consolidated financial statements.

COMPETITION

We are subject to intense competition in all aspects of our banking
business from both bank and non-bank institutions that provide financial
services and, in some of our activities, from government agencies. Substantial
competition exists among a large number of commercial banks, savings banks,
other public sector banks, brokers and dealers, investment banking firms,
insurance companies, investment advisors, mutual funds and hedge funds to
provide the types of banking products and services that we offer in our banking
operations. In our Private Clients division, our main competitors are Deutsche
Bank, HypoVereinsbank, Commerzbank, Citibank and German savings and cooperative
banks. In our Corporates & Markets division, our main competitors for large
multinational corporate and financial institution clients are Deutsche Bank,
Goldman Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Merrill Lynch, Citigroup and Commerzbank, while
our main competitors for medium-sized corporate and small business clients are
Deutsche Bank, Commerzbank and HypoVereinsbank, as well as German public state
banks and savings and cooperative banks. Competition is based on a number of
factors, including distribution systems, transaction execution, products and
services, innovation, reputation and price. In recent years, we have generally
experienced intensifying price competition as competitors have sought to
increase their market share. We believe this trend will continue.
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The following table sets forth certain financial information for our
banking operations for the years indicated.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Interest and similar 1NCOME. .. i ittt ittt ittt it ettt eneeenns 9,085 1,502 1,503
Income (net) from investments in affiliated enterprises,

joint ventures, and associated enterprises................ 1,016 122 35
Other income from investments..........iiiiiiettennnnnnnnn 628 25 24
Trading 1NCOME . & v vttt it e e e e e e ettt e ettt eaeeeeeeeeeaaanns 244 7 6
Fee and commission income, and income resulting from service

Pl e I v 1 e == 1,474 2 1
Other 1NCOmME. o ittt ittt et e e e e e et e et ettt 394 64 226

Total dNCOME . v ittt it it et et et e et ettt e ee et et eneeaeeens 12,841 1,722 1,795
Interest and sSimMilar EXPENSES . v v v v vttt teeeeeeeennneeeeeeeenns (6,852) (1,257) (1,268)
Other expenses for investmentsS. .......ii ittt ennnnnnnnn (465) (33) (29)
Loan 10SS PrOVISIONS . ittt ittt ettt et e ettt e (588) (21) (29)
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Acquisition costs and administrative expenses............... (3,446) (170)
Amortization of goodwill. ... ... ittt ittt e e (70) 8
(O ol TS a4 @ o 1= = (1,193) (125)

TOLaAl XN S S e v ittt e ettt ta e e e et eeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeneenns (12,614) (1,598)
FEarnings from ordinary activities before taxation........... 227 124
= D T 6 67
Minority interests in earnings........uiuiiiiiiiiiiinnnnneen. (453) (90)
Net INCOME . i it ittt e e e e e et et et et et ettt et e e e e (220) 101

(1) Reflects the inclusion of Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements as of July 23, 2001.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

In the following section, we discuss the consolidated results of our
banking operations for the year ended December 31, 2001. This discussion focuses
on factors and trends that affected our consolidated banking results after our
acquisition of Dresdner Bank on July 23, 2001, since our banking operations
prior to our acquisition of Dresdner Bank were not significant.

Net interest and current income. We measure interest and current income in
our banking operations on a net basis. Net interest and current income consists
of interest and similar income, income from affiliated enterprises, joint
ventures and associated enterprises, less interest and similar expenses.
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The following table shows net interest and current income and its income
statement components for the years indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

Interest and similar 1NCOME. .. i i ittt ittt ittt ettt aeeannn 9,085 1,502

Income (net) from investments in affiliated enterprises,
joint ventures and associated enterprises................. 1,016 122
Interest and sSimilar EXPENSES . c v i v vttt teeeeeeeenneeeeeeeenns (6,852) (1,257)
Net interest and current INCOME....... it ieeneennennn 3,249 367

(1) Reflects the inclusion of Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements as of July 23, 200L1.
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Interest and similar income consists primarily of income from loans,
lending and money market transactions and securities available for sale.
Interest and similar income from our banking operations was E9,085 million in
2001, reflecting primarily declining interest rates and decreasing loan
balances, offset in part by increased income from other interest-bearing
instruments. Of this amount, income from loans accounted for E5,566 million,
reflecting our reduction of non-core commercial lending activities outside of
Europe, together with intense competition for borrowers in most areas of
lending. Income from lending and money market transactions was E1,908 million,
of which E1,472 million related to increased volume of reverse repurchase
agreements. Interest income from securities available for sale was E1,291
million, consisting primarily of income from fixed-interest government
securities (E1,148 million), reflecting an increase in the volume of such
securities in our portfolio.

Net income from investments in affiliated enterprises, joint ventures and
associated enterprises, which consists primarily of realized gains and losses
from the disposition of such investments, was E1,016 million in 2001, reflecting
primarily realized gains of E866 million from the sale of equity holdings in
Munich Re in connection with our acquisition of Dresdner Bank on July 23, 2001.
For additional information on our disposition of ordinary shares of Munich Re in
2001, see "Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions —-- Related Party
Transactions —-- Transaction with Munich Re -- Agreement in Principle."

Interest and similar expense consists primarily of interest expense on
certificated liabilities, deposits, repurchase agreements and derivatives
qualifying for hedge accounting treatment. Interest and similar expense was
E6,852 million in 2001, consisting primarily of interest expense of E3,837
million on certificated liabilities, including long-term bonds and long-term
subordinated liabilities, which reflected the impact of declining interest
rates. Interest expense on deposits and from repurchase agreements was E2,079
million, reflecting primarily an increase with respect to repurchase agreements
in the volume of short term transactions due to uncertain economic conditions,
as well as a slight increase in the average balance of deposits from customers,
particularly non-German corporate clients, offset in part by a decrease in
deposits from banks.

Net interest and current income from our banking operations amounted to
E3,249 million in 2001. Excluding our sale of a part of our shareholding in
Munich Re, there was a downward trend in net interest and current income in 2001
due to a shift in the second half of the year from corporate and customer
lending to lower-yielding reverse repurchase agreements and investment
securities and a shift in funding from deposits from banks to repurchase
agreements.

Our net interest spread, which we define as the difference between the
average interest rate earned on average interest-earning assets and the average
interest rate paid on average interest-bearing liabilities, was 0.36% in 2001,
reflecting a change in the mix of interest income from higher-yielding loans to
customers to lower-yielding reverse repurchase agreements and
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trading assets, and a change in the mix of funding from higher-yielding deposits
from banks to lower-yielding repurchase agreements. Our net interest margin,
which we define as net interest income, including net interest income on trading
assets and trading liabilities, as a percentage of average interest-earning
assets, was 0.45% in 2001. In each case, our net interest spread and margin
reflect income and expense from Dresdner Bank only for the period from July 23,
2001 to December 31, 2001, calculated as a percentage of the average assets for
such period. For a discussion of the interest spread and margin in our banking
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business for the full year 2001 and prior years, see "-- Selected Statistical
Information Relating to Our Banking Operation —-- Net Interest Margin."
Other Income from Investments. Other income from investments consists

primarily of realized gains on investments. Other income from investments
amounted to E628 million in 2001, primarily as a result of E406 million of
realized gains on the disposition of equity securities available for sale,
including primarily shareholdings of Dresdner Bank, and an additional E92
million on the disposition of government debt securities available for sale.

Trading Income. Trading income comprises mainly realized and unrealized
gains and losses from our trading portfolio of securities and foreign
exchange/precious metals, and other dealings in financial instruments. Trading
income includes both proprietary trading revenues and margins realized from
trades made on behalf of customers. Trading income was E244 million in 2001,
reflecting primarily income from other dealings in derivative financial
instruments of E177 million, net of trading interest expense. Income from
securities trading was E67 million, reflecting gains from foreign exchange and
bond trading which more than offset losses in the equity trading portfolio.

Fee and Commission Income, and Income from Service Activities. Fee and
commission income, and income from service activities from our banking
operations comprises mainly fees and commissions from our securities, lending,
underwriting and mergers and acquisitions advisory businesses. Fee and
commission income, and income from service activities amounted to E1,474 million
in 2001. Fee and commission income from our securities business was E623 million
for this period, reflecting decreased transaction volume in our mutual fund and
equity securities businesses due to the reluctance of German clients to engage
in securities transactions. Fee and commission income from our lending,
underwriting and mergers and acquisitions advisory businesses of E213 million,
also was negatively affected as a result of slowing market activity in the
underwriting and advisory businesses in 2001. In addition, fee and commission
income included commission income on account and payment transactions (E176
million), insurance and real estate commissions (E76 million), and commissions
earned from our asset management segment (E194 million).

Other Income. Other income consists primarily of income from releasing or
reducing miscellaneous accrued liabilities, income from other assets and other
income. Other income from our banking operations was E394 million.

Other Expenses for Investments. Other expenses for investments from our
banking operations consist of realized losses and impairment write-downs on
securities and other investments. Other expenses for investments were E465
million in 2001, reflecting primarily E340 million of realized losses, mainly on
investments in equity securities and E125 million of impairment write-downs. The
realized losses on equity securities reflected primarily realized losses on
shareholdings of Dresdner Bank.

Loan Loss Provisions. Loan loss provisions in our banking operations
consists of specific loan loss provisions, country loan loss provisions and
general loan loss provisions. In addition, allowances for off-balance sheet
obligations relating to our lending business are included in this category. We
establish specific loan loss provisions if we consider it probable that
specifically identified borrowers are no longer able to make their contractually
agreed upon interest and principal payments. We establish general loss
provisions to provide for incurred but unidentified
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losses that are inherent in the loan portfolio as of the relevant balance sheet
date. We establish country risk provisions for transfer risk, which is a measure
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of the likely ability of a borrower in a certain country to repay its foreign
currency-denominated debt in light of the economic or political situation
prevailing in that country, on the basis of our country rating system that
incorporates current and historical economic, political and other data to
categorize countries by risk profile. For the year ended December 31, 2001, net
loan loss provisions in our banking segment were E588 million, consisting of
E1,197 million of new provisions, offset in part primarily by releases of E593
million of existing provisions. Provisions for loan losses in 2001 significantly
exceeded expectations in both our German and non-German loan portfolios, due
primarily to the continuing deterioration of the global economy. In our Dresdner
Bank operations, we added specific loan loss provisions of E562 million for
corporate borrowers and E308 million for private clients. All of our private
client provisions and the majority of our corporate provisions were incurred in
respect of German borrowers. A substantial part of our non-German corporate
provisions in 2001 were incurred in the United States, including approximately
E100 million related to one corporate borrower. We recorded net general loss
provisions of E33 million in 2001, based primarily on historical loss experience
and management's assessment of the credit quality of the loan portfolio caused
by the deteriorating condition of the global economy, and released net country
risk provisions of E92 million. To reduce our loan loss exposure, we have taken
a variety of steps in 2001, including reducing our loans to corporate borrowers
in the United States by approximately 25% for the year ended December 31, 2001.
To manage country risk, we have also reduced our loan exposure in Latin American
and other problem loan countries, including Argentina, which helped to reduce
the impact on our banking operations of the Argentine financial crisis in late
2001. For additional information, see "—-- Selected Statistical Information
Relating to Our Banking Operations —-- Summary of Loan Loss Experience."

Acquisition Costs and Administrative Expenses. Acquisition costs and
administrative expenses in our banking segment, which consist primarily of
personnel expenses and operating expenses, were E3,446 million in 2001.
Personnel expenses amounted to E2,045 million, reflecting primarily wages and
salary expenses, social security and pension expenses and bonus and retention
payments made to Dresdner Bank executives and key management personnel pursuant
to agreements made after merger negotiations with Deutsche Bank in 2000 and in
connection with the acquisition of Wasserstein Perella & Co. in January 2001.
Bonus and retention payments recorded in 2001 amounted in the aggregate to E744
million, of which E462 million were recorded in acquisition costs and
administrative expenses and E282 million in other expenses. See "-- Other
Expenses." Operating expenses were E1,401, consisting mainly of rental expenses
(E376 million), depreciation expenses (E205 million), fee and commission
expenses (E184 million), marketing and advertising expenses (E151 million),
training and outsourcing expenses (E92 million) and travel expenses (E84
million). For a discussion of our restructuring program to reduce administrative
expenses, see "-- Cost-Cutting and Restructuring Measures."

Amortization of Goodwill. Amortization of goodwill in our banking
operations was E70 million in 2001, attributable primarily to the acquisition of
Dresdner Bank on July 23, 2001.

Other Expenses. Other expenses from our banking operations were E1,193
million in 2001, reflecting primarily charges of E206 million recorded in
connection with the integration of Dresdner Bank into the Allianz Group,
restructuring charges of E132 million, expenses for amortization of software and
other intangible assets of E119 million and consulting fees of E60 million.
Other expenses also included bonus and retention payments of E282 million; we
recorded the additional bonus and retention payments noted above in acquisition
costs and administrative expenses. The integration costs of E206 million
comprised mainly consulting costs of E98 million and other non-staff costs of
E95 million relating primarily to integration of information technology systems.
We recorded additional charges in connection with the integration of Dresdner
Bank at Allianz AG, the results of which are shown in our property-
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casualty business segment. See "-- Insurance Operations -- Property-Casualty
Insurance Operations —-- Results of Operations —-- Year Ended December 31, 2001
Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000 -- Acquisition Costs and Administrative
Expenses." Restructuring charges recorded in 2001 consisted primarily of charges
relating to the reorganization of our Corporates & Markets division (E118
million) and other German subsidiaries (E31 million), offset in part by releases
of E17 million from restructuring plans initiated in May 2000. For a discussion
of our restructuring programs, see "-- Cost Cutting and Restructuring Measures."
See also Note 23 to our consolidated financial statements.

Taxes. Taxes on our banking operations amounted to a tax credit of E6
million in 2001. The tax benefit was due to tax losses, for which a deferred tax
asset was recognized. Taxable income was reduced by tax-exempt capital gains.

Minority Interests in Earnings. Minority interests in our banking
operations were E453 million in 2001, reflecting primarily the application of
the minority interest ownership in Dresdner Bank during the period ended
December 31, 2001 to the historical cost basis of Dresdner Bank. Minority
interest in earnings is expected to decrease significantly in 2002 as a result
of the anticipated increase in our ownership of Dresdner Bank to 100% in the
course of 2002.

Net Income. Net income for our banking operations was a loss of E220
million in 2001, reflecting the weakness in the capital markets, particularly in
the second half of 2001. The loss was attributable primarily to reduced fee and
commission income (E1,474 million), due primarily to decreased transaction
volume attributable to clients' general reluctance to engage in securities
transactions, in combination with a high level of net loan loss provisions (E588
million). At the same time, administrative expenses were high (E3,446 million),
due largely to high personnel costs and bonus and retention payments, and we
incurred significant other expenses (E1,193 million), primarily in connection
with the integration of Dresdner Bank into the Allianz Group and the
implementation measures to restructure our banking segment as discussed above.
See "-- Cost Cutting and Restructuring Measures."

DISCUSSION OF BANKING OPERATIONS BY DIVISION

We conduct our banking operations through two principal operating business
divisions, Private Clients and Corporates & Markets. Our Other division includes
our real estate operations, together with income and expense items that are not
attributable to one of our operating divisions.
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The following tables set forth certain key data concerning our banking
operations by division and by geographic region for the years indicated.
Consistent with our general practice, net revenue by division, and total income
and net revenue by geographic region are presented before consolidation
adjustments representing the elimination of transactions between Group companies
in different geographic regions and different segments, and net income by
geographic region is presented before those consolidation adjustments,
amortization of goodwill and minority interests. Net income by division is
presented before amortization of goodwill and minority interests.

BANKING OPERATIONS —-- KEY DATA BY DIVISION
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

NET NET NET NET NET NE
REVENUE (2) INCOME REVENUE (2) INCOME REVENUE (2) INC

Private Clients.... ... 1,443 (111) —— —— —— -

Corporates & Markets............... 1,864 (619) —— —— —— -

[ oL 1,957 1,033 432 183 498 4
Subtotal...ve it ittt 5,264 303 432 183 498 4

Amortization of goodwill........... - (70) - 8 -

Minority Interests................. —— (453) —— (90) —— (2
Total. ittt ettt 5,264 (220) 432 101 498 3

(1) Reflects the inclusion of Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements as of July 23, 2001.

(2) Consists of net interest income, net fee and commission income, net trading
income, net other investment income and other income.

BANKING OPERATIONS —-- KEY DATA BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION (1)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 (2) 2000
TOTAL NET NET TOTAL NET NET TOTAL
INCOME REVENUE (3) INCOME INCOME REVENUE (3) INCOME INCOME R

(E IN MILLIONS)

GermMany .« ..veeeeeeeeennn 12,515 6,227 1,931 144 70 2 145
Rest of Europe......... 3,939 1,451 (434) 1,444 331 166 1,453
NAFTA . ittt e ettt eeeeennn 984 572 (218) - - - -
Rest of World.......... 544 245 (106) 134 31 15 197
Consolidation
adjustments(4)....... (5,141) (3,231) (870) —— —— —— ——
Total..veeeeeeennnn. 12,841 5,264 303 1,722 432 183 1,795

(1) Represents the location of the entity or branch that recorded the
transaction.

(2) Reflects the inclusion of Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements as of July 23, 200L1.
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(3) Consists of net interest income, net fee and commission income, net trading
income, net other investment income and other income.
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(4) Represents elimination of intercompany transactions between Group companies
in different geographic regions.

PRIVATE CLIENTS

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We serve our private customers through our Private Clients division. In
2001, our Private Clients division accounted for approximately 27.4% of our net
revenue from banking operations.

Our Private Clients business is one of our core banking activities. We
believe that rising levels of private wealth, increasing emphasis on private
retirement provision and a growing interest in equity securities and investment
funds are increasing demand not only in Germany, but throughout Europe for
sophisticated, individualized investment and private retirement provision
advice. Focusing on structured investment and private retirement provision
advice is a core element of our Private Clients strategy. The Private Client
business also continues to grow in importance for the distribution of investment
banking and asset management products. In 2001, we provided Private Clients
banking products and services to more than five million customers with more than
E40 billion of deposits and more than E110 billion of assets held under custody.

Our Private Clients customer base consists of:

- approximately 100,000 high net worth customers worldwide, which we define
as customers with more than E1.5 million of assets available for
investment. We serve our high net worth customers through our business
unit Dresdner Private Banking International;

- approximately 5.1 million individual customers in Germany, including
approximately 550,000 affluent customers, which we define as customers
who are financially able to make use of high levels of personalized
advice. We serve our affluent and other individual customers through our
network of approximately 11,000 employees at approximately 1,060 German
branches and subsidiaries and our online portals and other electronic
services.

In mid-2000, Dresdner Bank launched two initiatives designed to optimize
its core expertise in structured advice: a restructuring of its branch network,
and an investment and growth program.

Where customers require a less intensive level of advice, as in our
individual customer business, we have restructured our individual customer
business to reduce costs, for example by consolidating our branch network and
reducing the number of branch locations. See the discussion above under "-- Cost
Cutting and Restructuring Measures." We have also expanded our electronic
banking activities, offering our private clients a dedicated Internet portal
since July 2001, while building on the direct banking services and financial
planning advice that we provide through our direct bank Advance Bank AG. Through
such measures we expect to offer greater convenience to our private clients, to
achieve additional cost reductions and to increase the capacity of our branch
advisors to provide quality investment advice.

Our investment and growth program consists of a series of measures designed
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to strengthen our position in the provisions of investment and private
retirement provision advice to high income and high net worth customers,
particularly in our core market of Germany. As part of this program, we expect
to train and place in our German branch network by the end of 2003 an additional
600 securities advisors. We plan to provide a larger variety of services for
high net worth clients, particularly our capacity to provide securities advice,
and to concentrate our securities advisory teams on serving affluent customers
in approximately 200 locations. We have also begun to integrate our banking and
insurance distribution networks. Since August 2001, our banking customers have
had access to the advice of Allianz Group retirement provision and insurance
specialists, approximately 870 of whom were located in our branch banks at

75

December 31, 2001, and to the entire range of Allianz Group insurance products.
An additional approximately 100 Dresdner Bank securities advisors have been
placed at Allianz Group insurance agencies since August 2001 in order to provide
our insurance customers with structured investment advice. In addition, outside
our core German market, we hope to capitalize through our international private
banking arm, Dresdner Private Banking International, on the growing interest of
global investors in European investments in recent years.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We offer a wide range of banking products and services for high net worth,
affluent and other private individual customers. For our high net worth
customers, we offer sophisticated, personalized solutions through Dresdner
Private Banking International. Our services include advisory and discretionary
portfolio management, fund-based portfolio management, administration of trusts
and estates and structural asset analysis, including tax planning. For our
affluent customers, we provide structured financial advice based on a variety of
financial planning and investment tools and products, such as mutual funds,
mutual fund portfolio management, tax-advantaged products and alternative
investments. For our other private individual customers, our banking products
and services include deposit-taking, the transmission of payments, commercial
and consumer lending, mortgage lending and other property-related financing
services, credit card operations, securities brokerage and asset management
services and insurance. We allocate fees between our banking segment and our
asset management and insurance segments in the case of cross-segment sales and
distribution activities, e.g., the sale of proprietary fund products or
insurance policies through our Private Client distribution channels.

DISTRIBUTION

In our Private Clients division, we distribute our products primarily
through our branch bank network and our on-site securities advisors, as well as
our network of ATMs. We also offer our banking products and services through our
subsidiary Advance Bank AG, which we believe offers a unique combination in
Germany of individualized direct banking services and financial and investment
advice and we intend to build out as an additional distribution channel, as well
as through a variety of other Internet and electronic banking channels, certain
Allianz Group insurance agencies, independent financial advisors and call
centers.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
Net Revenue. Net revenue in our Private Clients division was E1,443

million in 2001, reflecting primarily the downward trend in net fee and
commission income due to decreased transaction volume attributable to German
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clients' reluctance to engage in securities transactions.

Net Income. Net income in our Private Clients division amounted to a loss
of E111 million in 2001, primarily as a result of declining net fee and
commission income, in combination with a high level of loan loss provisions
relating to German borrowers.

CORPORATES & MARKETS
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We serve our corporate and capital markets customers through our Corporates
& Markets division, into which we combined our former investment banking and
corporate clients business divisions in the third quarter of 2001. Through this
combination, we aim to take advantage of our access to corporate Europe,
Dresdner Bank's balance sheet strength, the Allianz Group's strong credit
rating, our extensive capital markets experience around the world and our strong
position
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in Germany. In 2001, our Corporates & Markets division accounted for
approximately 35.4% of our net revenue from banking operations.

Our Corporates & Markets division is focused on raising capital for
corporate and institutional customers in our core markets of Germany, the United
Kingdom, other countries in Western Europe, and the United States. We offer a
wide range of investment banking, commercial banking and other capital markets
products and services to selected multinational, large and medium-sized
corporate customers and public sector entities. Our strategy is built on an
integrated business approach and product range in German commercial and
investment banking, our strength in the European capital markets and our global
expertise in selected business areas such as mergers and acquisitions and
advisory services, risk management and specialty finance. Our goal is to exploit
potential synergies between our traditional corporate customers and our
investment banking business while further strengthening our position in the
European capital markets, particularly in Germany and in relation to
medium-sized corporate clients, and expanding selected global product areas. In
recent years, in order to capitalize on our strengths, we have sought to
consolidate our position in Germany and the United Kingdom, to expand in other
key European markets, and to move away from non-core activities such as
commercial lending to customers outside of Europe, while continuing to provide
the banking products and services required by our core market customers as they
progress into global markets. At December 31, 2001, we had approximately 30,000
large and medium-sized Corporates & Markets clients, the majority of which were
in Germany.

In January 2001, Dresdner Bank acquired Wasserstein Perella & Co., a
premier U.S.-based investment bank with a leading mergers and acquisitions
business and a strong international franchise. Wasserstein Perella & Co.'s
activities have been integrated into our global investment banking business
under the brand name Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein. We believe that Dresdner
Kleinwort Wasserstein's combined corporate and investment banking know-how and
close client relationships will significantly enhance our capabilities in our
core investment banking markets. In November 2001, we announced the departure of
Bruce Wasserstein, the former chairman of Wasserstein Perella & Co., from
Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein. We do not believe that his departure will have a
significant negative impact on our investment banking operations.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
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Our Corporates & Markets division offers corporate finance advisory
services on mergers and acquisitions, divestitures, restructurings and other
strategic matters, securities underwriting and market making, securities and
derivatives trading, portfolio management, custodial services, and other capital
markets products and services. We also provide corporate loans, take deposits,
and provide our corporate customers with payment, management consulting, real
estate and other corporate banking services.

Our Corporates & Markets division operates through the following five
business lines:

Investment Banking. We created this business line by integrating our
former global corporate finance division and Wasserstein Perella & Co.'s
strategic advisory services unit. Our investment banking business line provides
German and international financial advisory services to a range of corporate,
institutional and public sector clients. These services include strategic and
financial advice on mergers and acquisitions, privatizations, divestitures,
restructurings, leveraged buy-outs, defensive strategies and valuation. In
addition, our investment banking business line underwrites equity and
equity-linked issues, including those in privatizations, capital increases,
initial public offerings and secondary distributions, in close cooperation with
our global equities business line. While our investment banking business line is
organized to provide geographic coverage and sector expertise to customers in
major countries and industry groups around the world, our aim is to be a market
leader in mergers and acquisitions advisory services in key economic sectors
such as power and utilities, media and telecommunications and financial
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services. In 2001, Dresdner Bank ranked fifth in completed European mergers and
acquisitions and seventh in mergers and acquisitions worldwide, based on dollar
volume. (Source: Thompson Financial, January 2002). In April 2002, we announced
that we expected to dispose of our U.S. restructuring business through a
management buyout, effective June 2002.

Global Debt. We integrated our former global markets and global finance
business lines into our global debt business line in the first quarter of 2001
in order to provide a single unified platform for all of our customers'
debt-related requirements. Through our global debt business line, we originate,
underwrite and engage in secondary trading of various types of corporate and
public sector debt instruments and arrange syndicated loans. Our global debt
business line offers fully integrated products and services across the debt
spectrum, including derivatives, foreign exchange, securitization, origination
and distribution. Our global debt business line benefits from our strong
European base, together with selected operational centers in Asia-Pacific and
North America, in the global bond and syndicated loan markets.

Global Equities. Our global equities business line comprises primary and
secondary distribution, research, trading, sales and equity derivatives.
Operating in a global context, Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein is a major player
in European equity markets, with research, execution and distribution
capabilities underpinned by technical expertise, balance sheet strength and
continuous investment in leading-edge information technology. We have built our
global equities business on our strong position in the UK and German equities
markets, our globally integrated service, our commitment to excellence in
research and in-depth industry knowledge, and our placement capability in major
markets worldwide.

Corporate Banking. Our corporate banking business line comprises our
former corporate clients business, which we reorganized in the third quarter of
2001. Our corporate banking strategy emphasizes growth based on above-average
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commission income, together with a firm control over administrative expenses and
risk costs. We arrange non-syndicated bank loans and foreign trade financing,
take deposits, and provide our customers with payment, clearing, cash and
account management, and electronic and other banking services and products. In
July 2000, we launched an Internet-based corporate financial portal, which
offers comprehensive, secure transaction capabilities and a broad array of
services, ranging from information on asset, cash and currency management to
financing solutions and other value-added services. We continue to integrate our
e-business solutions into our product range and customer service.

Global Private Equity. Our private equity capital business line was
renamed Dresdner Kleinwort Capital in January 2001. We have extensive experience
in both equity and mezzanine investments for leveraged buyouts, management
buy-ins, expansion financing, bridge equity, recapitalizations, corporate joint
venture transactions and late stage development capital. At December 31, 2001,
we had assets and funds under management of approximately E3.7 billion,
including our own assets and funds as well as those we manage for customers in
our Private Clients division. In 2001, we made new investments of E209 million.

In April 2002, we announced that our global debt and global equities
business lines would be merged into a single new capital markets business line,
effective immediately.

In addition, in May 2002, we announced that we would combine the private
equity operations of the Allianz Group and Dresdner Bank into Allianz Private
Equity Holding.

DISTRIBUTION

In our Corporates & Markets division, we rely on relationship managers and
sales teams working together with product specialists to develop in-depth
corporate finance expertise in both investment banking and commercial banking to
meet the capital markets needs of our clients. Our goal is to offer a full range
of capital markets products and services to our Corporates & Markets clients
worldwide. Our customers now have a choice of three complementary distribution
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channels: standard "face-to-face" support by professional advisory staff, the
Internet, and our service centers.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Net Revenue. Net revenue in our Corporates & Markets division was E1, 864
million in 2001, reflecting mainly decreased fee and commission income,
particularly in our mergers and acquisitions and other advisory business, and
decreased trading income, particularly from equity securities, due to the weak
capital markets. These declines were offset in part by increased interest income
and trading income from fixed-income securities, reflecting a shift into fixed-
income securities as a result of the poor performance of many equity indices.

Net Income. Net income in our Corporates & Markets division was a loss of
E619 million in 2001. Net income for our Corporates & Markets business declined
primarily as a result of decreased fee and commission and trading income, in
conjunction with increases in net loan loss provisions and write-downs on
private equity investments as a result of deteriorating economic conditions, as
well as high personnel and other administrative expenses.

OTHER
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Our Other division contains income and expense items that are not directly
assigned to our operating divisions, as well as our real estate and transaction
banking business lines. Income and expense items that are not directly assigned
to our operating divisions include, in particular, expenses for banking segment
functions and projects affecting more than one division, realized gains and
losses from our strategic investment portfolio and provisioning requirements for
country and general risks. In addition, other items contains charges relating to
the integration of Dresdner Bank into the Allianz Group and charges for the
restructuring measures that have been introduced. See "-- Cost-Cutting and
Restructuring Measures." In 2001, our Other division accounted for approximately
37.2% of our net revenue from banking operations.

Real Estate. We serve our real estate customers through our real estate
business line, which comprises primarily the business operations of our mortgage
bank Deutsche Hypothekenbank AG (or Deutsche Hyp) and our German real estate
fund management subsidiary, DEGI Deutsche Gesellschaft fur Immobilienfonds GmbH.
Our real estate business line offers a full array of real estate services.

In November 2001, we announced that Rheinische Hypothekenbank AG, the
mortgage banking subsidiary of Commerzbank, Eurohypo AG, the mortgage banking
subsidiary of Deutsche Bank, and Deutsche Hyp would merge into a single entity
by 2002, subject to regulatory and shareholder approvals. Upon completion of the
merger, we will hold an ownership interest of approximately 30% in the merged
entity, while Deutsche Bank and Commerzbank will hold approximately 35% each.
The new entity will retain the name Eurohypo AG. We expect the new Eurohypo AG
to develop over the next several years into a strong competitor in the European
commercial mortgage banking market by achieving economies of scale and offering
a broader product portfolio. The new Eurohypo AG will also retain the existing
residential and other private mortgage banking business of Deutsche Hyp, while
our new residential and other private mortgage banking operations will be
transferred to Allianz Leben, which we expect to occur in the third quarter of
2002.

Transaction Banking. As a corporate service unit in Germany, our
transaction banking business line primarily provides our Private Clients and
Corporates & Markets divisions, as well as Dresdner Asset Management and other
Allianz Group companies, with a wide variety of
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products and services relating to the processing of securities business and
payments transactions. Through our custody business, we offer a comprehensive
range of custody products and services to national and international financial
intermediaries. As of December 31, 2001, the total market value of securities
under custody in the Group was E745 billion.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Net Revenue. Net revenue in our Other division was E1,957 million in 2001,
reflecting primarily realized gains of E866 million from the sale of shares of
Munich Re held by Dresdner Bank, other investment income of E628 million from
realized gains on our strategic investment portfolio, changes in the fair value
of non-qualifying hedge derivatives and interest income from our mortgage
lending operations, offset in part by other expense from investments of E465
million consisting of realized losses and write-downs of investments.
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Net Income. Net income in our Other division was E1,033 million in 2001.
Net income was positively affected by the disposition of Munich Re shares and
other investment income, offset primarily by realized losses on investments of
E340 million, restructuring charges of E132 million and charges of E206 million
relating to the integration of Dresdner Bank into the Allianz Group.

ASSET MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Our asset management segment operates as a global provider of institutional
and retail asset management products and services to third-party investors and
provides investment management services to our insurance operations. We managed
approximately E1,173 billion of third-party assets and Group's own investments
on a worldwide basis as of December 31, 2001, with key management centers in
Munich, Frankfurt, London, Paris, Hong Kong, Milan, Westport, Connecticut, and
San Francisco, San Diego and Newport Beach, California. Our third-party assets
under management have grown significantly in recent years to approximately E620
billion as of December 31, 2001. The 2001 acquisitions of Dresdner Bank and
Nicholas—-Applegate increased our third-party assets under management by E228
billion as of July 23, 2001 and E36 billion as of January 31, 2001,
respectively. As measured by total assets under management at December 31, 2001,
we were the largest asset manager in Germany, the second-largest asset manager
in Europe and the second-largest asset manager in the world. (Source: Global
Investor, December 2001/January 2002)
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The following table sets forth certain key data concerning our asset
management operations at December 31 for the years indicated:

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT: KEY DATA

DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

Third-party assets(2)

PIMCO GIEOUDP t ¢ v ot v e et e e et e e et e et e et eeeeeeeeeneeenens 333,093 28.4 297,220
Dresdner Bank GroUD . .. iv ettt eeeeeeeenneeeeeeeannens 210,855 18.0 -
Nicholas—Applegate. v ittt ittt et e e ettt eeeaeens 29,209 2.5 -
(050 o L 47,301 4.0 39,204
BN o o X it B 620,458 52.9 336,424
Group's own investments (3) .. vttt ittt ittt 527,386 45.0 341,283
Separate account assets(2) (4) v vt i ittt ittt eeeeeeeannnn 24,692 2.1 22,770
o= 1,172,536 100.0 700,477

(1) Reflects the inclusion of Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements as of July 23, 200L1.

(2) Assets are presented at fair value.
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(3) Includes adjustments to reflect real estate and investments in affiliated
enterprises, joint ventures and associated enterprises at market value, and
excludes certain loans to banks and loans to customers.

(4) Represents investments held on account and at risk of life insurance
policyholders.

Our asset management operations pursue two separate but related objectives.
In our third-party asset management business, we seek to leverage the power of
our portfolio management expertise, existing customer relationships and
distribution to develop a leading global asset management business. In the
management of our Group's own investments, we seek to maximize long-term total
return on our investments for the benefit of our shareholders and policyholders,
including the value of our portfolio of financial and industrial equity
participations, while remaining within the Group's risk management guidelines.

We manage our asset management operations primarily through Allianz
Dresdner Asset Management GmbH (or ADAM), our wholly owned asset management
subsidiary formed after our acquisition of Dresdner Bank in July 2001. We
reorganized our former financial services segment in late 2001 under ADAM in
order to integrate the asset management operations of Dresdner Bank, to achieve
new economies of scale and to extend the reach of our distribution networks for
asset management products and services. We consolidated the assets and
liabilities and results of operations of Dresdner Bank's asset management
business into our asset management segment as of July 23, 2001, the date of the
acquisition. The banking operations formerly included in our financial services
segment are now a part of our banking segment. See "-- Banking Operations." As
of December 31, 2001, ADAM managed approximately E584 billion, or 94%, of our
third-party assets under management and approximately E184 billion, or 35%, of
our Group's own investments. The remainder of our third-party assets are managed
by Dresdner Bank (approximately E27 billion, or 4%) and other Allianz Group
companies. The majority of our Group's own investments (approximately E343
million, or 65%) continue to be managed by the respective investment management
units of Allianz Group insurance companies around the world.
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We conduct our asset management operations primarily through our operating
companies worldwide. As part of our multi-regional strategy, we operate under
multiple brand names in different regions. In the United States, our main
operating companies include PIMCO, Nicholas-Applegate, Dresdner RCM Global
Investors, and Oppenheimer Capital. In Europe, we operate primarily through AGF
Asset Management, RAS Asset Management, Deutscher Investment Trust (or dit),
Dresdner Bank Investment Management (or dbi), and Dresdner Asset Management, as
well as Dresdner RCM Global Investors and PIMCO. In Asia, our main brands are
Dresdner RCM Global Investors, PIMCO, Meiji Dresdner Asset Management and
Allianz Asset Management.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain summarized financial information for
our asset management operations for the years indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)
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Interest and similar 1NCOME. .. u ittt ittt ittt ettt eeanns 129 204 204
Income from affiliated enterprises, joint ventures and

associated enterpPrises . @ittt e e e e e (3) 1 (39)
Other income from investments...........iiiiieetennnnennnn 44 18 7
Trading 1NCOME . & v vttt it e e e e e e ettt et e et e eaeeeeeeeeeaaeens 10 16 6
Fee and commission income, and income from service

=R eV i 8 = J 2,479 1,420 427
Other 1NCOmME. .« ottt ittt et e e e e et et e e ettt et 79 63 88

Total dNCOME . v i ittt e it et et et e e et ettt et et et eae e 2,738 1,722 693
Interest and sSimilar EXPENSES . v v v v vt ittt e e eeeeenneeeeeeeenns (82) (61) (114)
Other expenses for investmentsS. .......ii ittt ennnnnennn (57) —= (1)
Net loan 10SS PrOVISION. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeneenns - - -
Acquisition costs and administrative expenses............... (1,895) (484) (28)
Amortization of goodwill. ... ...ttt e (243) (89) -
(O ol TS D4 @ o 1= = (795) (1,043) (442)
TOL Al XN S e S e v v e e e ettt tee e e ettt aeeeeeeseeaeeeeeeeeeneeens (3,072) (1,677) (585)
Earnings from ordinary activities before taxation........... (334) 45 108
BT 168 4 (56)
Minority interests in earnings....... ..ottt ii i eennnnns (182) (136) (29)
Net dNCOME . ¢ ittt ettt e e et e e e e e et et e ettt e e e (348) (87) 23

(1) Reflects the inclusion of Dresdner Bank in our consolidated financial
statements as of July 23, 2001.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Assets Under Management. Third-party assets under management and Group's
own investments increased by E473 billion, or 67.6%, to E1,173 billion at the
end of 2001 from E700 billion at the end of 2000. The increase was due primarily
to our acquisitions of Dresdner Bank and Nicholas-Applegate, and to a lesser
extent, an increase in the Group's own investments and third-party assets under
management. Of the increase, E186 billion represented growth in Group's own
investments, while E284 billion represented growth in third-party assets under
management, primarily as a result of the acquisition of Dresdner Bank (E211
billion), as well as the acquisition of Nicholas-Applegate (E29 billion).
Excluding the effects of these acquisitions, as well as the effects of exchange
rate movements (E16 billion), our third-party
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assets under management would have increased by E28 billion, or 8.3%, to E364
billion at the end of 2001 due primarily to growth in fixed-income investments
in our PIMCO operations.

Net Income. Asset management net income decreased by E261 million, to a
net loss of E348 million in 2001 from a net loss of E87 million in 2000, despite
the increase in assets under management, primarily because costs rose more
quickly than income. Total income, which consists primarily of fee and
commission income, and income from service activities, increased by E1,016
million, or 59.0% to E2,738 million in 2001 from E1,722 million in 2000,
reflecting primarily the increased assets under management due to our
acquisition of Dresdner Bank. Total expenses increased by E1,395 million or
83.2%, to E3,072 million in 2001 from E1,677 million in 2000, due primarily to
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increased expenses associated with our acquisition of Dresdner Bank. Total
expenses included acquisition-related expenses of E647 million recorded in 2001,
as well as costs incurred in connection with the establishment of ADAM and the
reorganization of our asset management operations as a result of our acquisition
of Dresdner Bank. The acquisition-related expenses included amortization of
goodwill of E243 million associated with the acquisitions of PIMCO and
Nicholas-Applegate, amortization charges of E374 million relating to capitalized
retention payments to key executives of the PIMCO Group, which are being
amortized over periods of five to seven years from the date of the acquisition,
and an additional E30 million of expenses incurred in connection with retention
payments to key executives at Dresdner RCM following our acquisition of Dresdner
Bank in July 2001. In addition, minority interest of E182 million in our asset
management operations was accounted for mainly by the minority interest in PIMCO
(E142 million) of PIMCO's former parent company, which continues to hold an
approximately 30% ownership interest in PIMCO. See Note 3 to our consolidated
financial statements. Excluding the effects of the acquisition-related expenses
of E647 million, earnings from ordinary activities before taxation from our
asset management operations would have been E313 million in 2001, due primarily
to earnings at PIMCO.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Assets Under Management. Third-party assets under management and Group's
own investments increased by E331 billion, or 89.7%, to E700 billion at the end
of 2000 from E369 billion at the end of 1999. Of this increase, E24 billion
represented growth in Group's own investments managed by the asset management
segment, while E307 billion represented growth in third-party assets under
management, primarily as a result of the acquisition of PIMCO in May 2000.

Net Income. Asset management net income of E23 million in 1999 decreased
E110 million to a net loss of E87 million in 2000. The increased assets under
management and the reduction in net income in 2000 from 1999 is primarily due to
the consolidation of seven months' results of PIMCO after its acquisition in May
2000. The contribution to net income from PIMCO of E51 million was more than
offset by expenses related to the acquisition.
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THIRD-PARTY ASSETS

The following table sets forth certain key data concerning our third-party
assets under management at December 31 for the years indicated:

ASSET MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS -- KEY DATA BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION (1)

DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
% E
E (E IN BILLIONS)
ADAM

(€T 11T 7/ 96 15.5 8
ReSt Of EUTOPE . i ittt ittt ettt et et ettt tae e eeeenaeens 53 8.5 22
N 409 66.0 297
Rest Of World. vttt ittt ittt ettt i it et e 26 4.2 -
SuUbtotal ..ttt e e e e e e 584 94.2 327
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(1) Represents location of Allianz Group asset management operations.

(2) In 2001, consists of assets managed by Dresdner Bank (E27 billion) and other
Allianz Group companies (E9 billion).

We have significantly grown our third-party assets under management in
recent years, both through acquisitions such as Dresdner Bank and
Nicholas-Applegate in 2001 and PIMCO in 2000, and through organic growth. We
intend to leverage the PIMCO, dit, Nicholas-Applegate and Dresdner RCM
franchises in further developing our third-party asset management business
through our flagship subsidiaries on a global basis. We believe that the
European markets offer especially attractive opportunities for third-party fund
managers. We also expect that investment fund products, in particular retirement
planning vehicles, will increase in importance in Europe. We expect this trend
to be supported by the increased demographic pressure that state-run pension
systems will face and the rising prevalence of defined contribution
arrangements. We believe that we are well-positioned in third-party markets,
especially in Germany, France and Italy, and we are seeking to increase our
market share in these markets.

We are also developing our insurance and banking distribution capabilities,
including our dedicated advisory, branch bank and insurance networks in Europe,
as asset accumulation arms to further our asset management capabilities. Leading
examples of our activities in this area include our operations through Dresdner
Bank, where we have approximately 7,000 financial advisors in branch offices to
distribute our asset management, life insurance and other financial products;
our operations at RAS Group, with its independent network of licensed financial
advisors who distribute life insurance and financial products; and our
operations at the AGF Group in France, with its network of advisors offering
comprehensive financial planning services. See also "-- Banking Operations."

We serve a comprehensive range of retail and institutional asset management
clients, including corporate and public pension funds, insurance and other
financial services companies, governments and charities, financial advisors and
private individuals. Our third-party asset management includes primarily equity,
fixed income, money market and sector products, as well as alternative
investments.
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The following tables show our third-party assets under management by
investment category and by investor class at December 31 for the years
indicated:

DECEMBER 31,

(E IN BILLIONS)
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Fixed 1nCOmMe . @ittt it ettt e et e e e ettt e e 377 60.8 240 71.3
e 1 I 218 35.2 96 28.7
(0w o ) 25 4.0 - -

o o 620 100.0 336 100.0

(1) Includes primarily investments in real estate.

DECEMBER 31,

Institutional. ..ottt it e et et e e et ettt e 466 75.2 269 80.1
2T = e P 154 24.8 67 19.9
o o 620 100.0 336 100.0

Our third-party asset management subsidiary ADAM is organized globally into
three principal business lines: global equity, global fixed-income and global
retail (distribution). Each of our asset management business lines is led by a
global head. Together with ADAM's chief executive officer and chief operating
officer, who sets standards and coordinates corporate controlling and
administration, each of the global heads is also a member of ADAM's executive
committee, which is responsible for ADAM's strategic development and financial
performance. In addition, country organizations led by country managers provide
shared infrastructure and services. ADAM's management structure has been
designed to manage the complexity of its multi-regional, multi-product and
multi-channel business activities. Within this structure, ADAM maintains
significant incentives for entrepreneurship and encourages its business units to
operate autonomously.

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

ADAM has globally consistent, well-structured and transparent investment
processes that are based on fundamental primary research. Our goal is to provide
our clients with portfolios that consistently offer superior performance in
accordance with our clients' investment objectives. We aim for outperformance
through active portfolio management coupled with comprehensive risk management
at all levels of the investment process. At December 31, 2001, we had more than
590 portfolio managers and more than 200 analysts in major markets worldwide
providing a comprehensive range of actively managed fixed-income and equity
products and services.

Global Fixed Income

Our fixed-income portfolio investment process is led by PIMCO, one of the
world's leading fixed-income investment managers. Our fixed-income product range
includes total return, short and long duration, regional, country-specific,
global and other geographic products, sector products including government and
corporate bonds and specialty funds such as high yield and emerging markets. We
deliver our fixed-income products in a broad range of investment vehicles,
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including separate accounts, fixed-income mutual funds and investment trusts.
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Global Equity

Our equity portfolio investment products include all major investment
styles: value investment, growth investment and core investment. Our equity
product range comprises regional, country-specific, global and other geographic
products, sector products such as technology, biotechnology, capital equipment,
consumer goods, energy and materials, and finance, as well as large, medium and
small market capitalization funds. We deliver our equity products in a broad
range of investment vehicles.

DISTRIBUTION

In Europe, ADAM markets and services institutional products offered by its
asset management subsidiaries through specialized personnel located primarily in
its Frankfurt, London, Munich, Paris and Milan offices. European retail
distribution is provided primarily through the proprietary channels of the
Allianz Group, including branch bank advisors, full-time agents employed by
affiliated insurance companies and other Allianz Group financial planners and
advisors.

In Germany, ADAM and its predecessors have offered mutual funds since 1949.
The funds are distributed primarily through our branch bank network and our
full-time insurance agents. To strengthen these channels, ADAM provides asset
management specialists and support services, including call centers and client
services. In addition, through our Advance financial planners and ADAM
subsidiaries, we are recruiting, training and deploying additional financial
planners who will offer a wide range of Allianz Group products, including mutual
funds, to investors.

In France, AGF Asset Management markets a wide range of retail products to
individual investors through its own in-house network totaling approximately
8,000 financial advisors, including full-time agents employed by AGF Group,
brokers and specialist networks.

In Italy, RAS Asset Management offers mutual funds, private banking
products, current accounts, credit and debit cards, brokerage services and real
estate financing. Retail products and services are marketed through affiliated
financial planners, financial advisors, banks and via the Internet.

In the United Kingdom and the United States, each of our ADAM asset
managers markets and services its institutional products through its own
specialized personnel. The institutional markets in the United Kingdom and the
United States are dominated by consultants, who advise their clients with regard
to investment strategy and asset allocation, conduct due diligence on and rank
portfolio managers, and conduct searches. As a result, ADAM portfolio managers
in these areas put emphasis on servicing consultants. In addition, in the United
States, ADAM asset managers offer a wide range of retail products. The principal
proprietary channel is PIMCO Funds, which distributes mutual funds managed by
its affiliates through broker-dealers, financial planners, 401 (k) funds and
other intermediaries. We also provide "wrap" services through broker-dealers, by
managing all or a part of separate accounts maintained by broker-dealers for
their customers. In the United States, ADAM also advises mutual funds sponsored
by third parties, including other mutual fund families and insurance companies
offering variable annuity products.

ADAM has committed substantial resources to the build-out of a third-party
asset management business in Asia-Pacific. We have offices in Tokyo, Hong Kong,
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Singapore, Taipei, Seoul and Sydney, which are being enlarged to accommodate
equity and fixed-income portfolio management as well as institutional and retail
distribution. ADAM is also seeking to leverage our brand, investment know-how
and customer relationships in China and to exploit the opportunities in this
growing asset management market.
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COMPETITION

Our main competitors in the asset management business include Deutsche
Bank, AXA, UBS, Credit Suisse, Fidelity Investments, Citigroup, Merrill Lynch,
Capital Group and Amvescap. Each of these entities has large,
multi-jurisdictional and multi-product asset management operations, and most of
them compete with us for both retail and institutional clients.

GROUP'S OWN INVESTMENTS

Our Group's own investments consist of the investment portfolios of our
insurance, banking and asset management operations. Our investment strategy with
regard to our Group's own investments is to maximize long-term total return
while remaining within the Group's risk management guidelines. These guidelines
relate primarily to the quality of the investments and the matching of assets
and liabilities. Our policy is to closely match the maturities and currencies of
assets and liabilities. The investment policies of the insurance subsidiaries
reflect the different liability characteristics and tax profiles of their
respective operations. Our internationally integrated teams of portfolio
managers work closely with the regional asset management subsidiaries to
coordinate asset/liability management and product development activities.
Because our insurance investments mostly serve to cover liabilities in the
insurance business, our asset management professionals place a high priority on
high quality, liquid and widely marketable securities in our insurance
investments portfolio. For a discussion of the investment portfolios of our
banking operations, see "-- Selected Statistical Information Relating to Our
Banking Operations." For further discussion regarding our Group's investment
strategy and risk management practices, see "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosure about Market Risk."

The following tables set forth the components of our Group's own investment
portfolios by investment category, as well as separate account assets, at the
end of the years indicated. Consistent with our general practice, amounts by
investment category are presented before consolidation adjustments representing
the elimination of transactions between Group companies in different segments.

DECEMBER 31, 2001 (1)

PROPERTY- LIFE/ ASSET CONSOLIDATION
CASUALTY HEALTH BANKING MANAGEMENT ADJUSTMENTS

(E IN MILLIONS)

Investments in affiliated
enterprises, joint
ventures and associated

enterprises............ 40,387 6,043 2,079 116 (38,378)
Investments.............. 91,712 180,076 85,133 1,362 (12,981)
Loans and advances to

banks....oeeeeeieea... 5,079 1,010 54,271 1,646 (732)

Loans and advances to

10,247
345,302

61,274
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CUSLOMErS. . v, 2,837 24,843 222,916 561 (11,464) 239,693
Trading assets........... 1,373 775 125,741 539 (6) 128,422
Subtotal............... 141,388 212,747 490,140 4,224 (63,5601) 784,938
Separate accounts........ —— 24,692 —— —— —— 24,692
Total. . eeeneeeennnn 141,388 237,439 490,140 4,224 (63,561) 809, 630

(1) Group's own investments are stated at balance sheet value.
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DECEMBER 31, 2000 (1)
PROPERTY- LIFE/ ASSET CONSOLIDATION
CASUALTY HEALTH BANKING MANAGEMENT ADJUSTMENTS
(E IN MILLIONS)
Investments in affiliated
Enterprises, joint ventures
and associated enterprises... 22,514 5,615 96 62 (16,524)
Investments. ...t eeennnnnnn. 95,718 186,799 3,070 528 (5,281)
Loans and advances to banks.... 4,527 3,747 1,142 1,102 (3,448)
Loans and advances to
CUSEOMEerS. . v ittt i et eeennn 1,565 14,445 12,555 395 (874)
Trading assets. ..o eeennn. 20 119 51 182 -
Subtotal.....oiiiiiennnn.. 124,344 210,725 16,914 2,269 (26,127)
Separate accounts assets....... - 22,770 - - -
Total. ittt ieeeennn 124,344 233,495 16,914 2,269 (26,127)

(1) Group's own investments are stated at balance sheet value.
INSURANCE OPERATIONS INVESTMENTS

The following is a discussion of the investment portfolio of our insurance
operations. For a discussion of the investment portfolios of our banking
operations, see "-- Selected Statistical Information Relating to Our Banking
Operations."

INTEREST-BEARING SECURITIES

Fixed income securities, including both government and corporate bonds,
constituted 43.8% of our property-casualty investment portfolio and 68.1% of our
life/health investment portfolio as of December 31, 2001. The credit quality of
our fixed income securities portfolio has historically been strong. As of
December 31, 2001, of the rated fixed income securities in our Group's own
investments portfolio, approximately 41% had a rating comparable to a Standard &
Poor's rating of AAA, approximately 75% were invested in securities with a
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Standard & Poor's rating of AA or better and approximately 99% were invested in
securities with a Standard & Poor's rating of BBB or better.

The following table analyzes the maturities of our fixed income investments
available for sale at December 31, 2001:

AMORTIZED COST MARKET VALUE

(E IN MILLIONS)

Contractual term to maturity:

UP L0 ONE YA e i ittt ittt e ettt et ae e eeneeeeeeeenneeens 28,814 25,689
Over one year through five yvears.........c.coiiiiiiinnnenn. 98,301 105,619
Over five years through ten years...........iiiiiiiinnn.. 85,572 88,209
(O oY o B 4 Y s o= 23,062 21,212

i 235,749 240,729

EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Equity investments constituted 39.4% of our property-casualty investment
portfolio and 19.9% of our life/health investment portfolio as of December 31,
2001. We have a long-standing strategy of investing life policyholders' and
shareholders' funds and some amounts of property-casualty cash flow in equities.
Since the early 1900's, the life/health and property-casualty
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investments in Germany have included equity positions in a number of well-known
German companies (see table below). In January 2002, we sold substantially all
of our shareholding in HypoVereinsbank to Munich Re and acquired Munich Re's
shareholding in Allianz Leben, thereby increasing our ownership of Allianz Leben
to 91.1%. See "Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions."

The long duration of this strategy, combined with the high returns on the
equity investments, has contributed to the long-term return of policyholders and
has enhanced the overall capitalization of the Group. The German tax reform that
took effect on January 1, 2002 eliminated the capital gains tax for corporations
on the sale of such equity investments. This change significantly increases the
potential value of these investments, as it allows us to realize the value of
these holdings in a tax advantaged manner. We believe that equities will
continue to represent an attractive long-term investment option. We expect that
the Group's own investment portfolio will become more weighted towards equities
in the coming years. In accordance with German law, a substantial portion of the
annual profits of the life insurance portfolio is credited to policyholders.

The following table sets forth our Group's own investment portfolios by
geographic region at the end of the years indicated:

DECEMBER 31,

PROPERTY- LIFE/ PROPERTY- LIFE/
CASUALTY HEALTH CASUALTY HEALTH
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(E IN MILLIONS)

€7 1= Y 100,600 117,233 79,398
ResSt Of EUXOPE. it ittt ittt ittt et e e et eeeeaeens 59,139 97,547 56,164
N AN R 20,398 18,438 17,945
Rest O0f World. . v i i i ittt ittt et teeeeennnans 2,514 4,491 1,820
SpPeCialty LineS . i ittt ie ettt eeeeeeeeeeannns 3,007 - 3,057
Consolidated AdjustmentsS.......c.uoiiiiieennnnenn. (44,270) (270) (34,040)

o o 141,388 237,439 124,344

121,100
93,400
15,604

3,607

SIGNIFICANT GROUP EQUITY INVESTMENTS

The following tables set forth information regarding our significant equity
investments in German and non-German companies at December 31, 2001. Except for
the investments in Munich Re and Beiersdorf AG, which are valued by the equity
method because we hold more than a 20% interest, these investments are carried
on our financial statements at market value.

DECEMBER 31, 2001

(E IN MILLIONS)

MUNICHh RE (1) ittt ittt it i ettt et ettt eeeanneeeeens 4,572 13,454
Beiersdorf AG. .. i ittt ittt e e et e e e 1,077 4,629

(1) Our interest in Munich Re was substantially restructured pursuant to our
acquisition of Dresdner Bank in July 2001 and our related agreements with
Munich Re. See "Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions."
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DECEMBER 31, 2001
MARKET VALUE % OWNERSHIP
(E IN MILLIONS)
GERMAN COMPANIES

E o iON AG . ittt ittt et e et eee et e eeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeenaeeennnens 3,736 9.
HypoVereinsbank (1) ...ttt ittt it e et e e e et eeaeenns 3,024 16.
R E AG . i ittt ittt et e et eee et seeeeeeaneeeeeeeeeeneenaneeensnens 2,753 11.
BASE AG e ittt ittt et e e tee ettt et 2,678 10.
S lEMENS AG . ¢ it ittt ettt ettt ettt e e e 2,558 3.
Deutsche BanKk AG. .. ittt ittt ittt tteeeeeeeeeeeeeneeneeaens 2,209 4.
Bayerische Motorenwerke AG. ... ... ii et tnneeeeeeeeneenens 1,692 6.
=T Y4 a2 1,524 5
SCRE T ING AG . i vttt e et et et et e e e e e 1,422 11.
Vodafone AG. i v i ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt e e e e 1,145 0

~ O 0 U1l U 0 WO BN
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NON-GERMAN COMPANIES

Credit Lyonnals S .. ittt ittt ettt eeneeeeeeeeeneeens 1,272 9.9
UniCredito ITtaliano S.pP B ..ttt ittt ettt eeeeeeeenaanns 1,134 5.0
NOKIA OF J ettt ettt ettt ettt eee et eeeeeeeenneeeeeseeeeennneens 988 0.7
Total Fina Elf S.A. .ttt ittt et ettt eeeeeeeeeeanns 925 0.8
NEe St e Sl it ittt it e ettt ettt ettt ettt 853 0.9
NOVAT LIS AG . ittt ittt e ettt ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeeeeaaeeaenees 818 0.8
Societe Generale S.A. ..t ittt ettt ettt 747 2.8
Royal Dutch PetroleuUm. . ..ttt ittt ettt et eenenenns 701 0.6
Vodafone Group PLC. ...ttt ittt teeeeeeeeeenneeeeeneanns 618 0.3
BN T o il = S Y 593 1.0
UB S AG . ittt ettt e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeaneeeeeeeeeeeenaaeeenenens 580 0.8
2 =l I o = = 568 1.3
Vivendl Universal. ... e ittt tneeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeanns 538 0.8
Y T Ot 512 0.9

(1) We disposed of substantially all of our current shareholding in
HypoVereinsbank in January 2002 pursuant to our agreements with Munich Re.
See "Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions."
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INVESTMENT INCOME

The following tables set forth the components of our investment income and
expenses for each of the property-casualty, life/health, banking and asset
management segments for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

PROPERTY- LIFE/ ASSET CONSOLIDATION
CASUALTY HEALTH BANKING MANAGEMENT ADJUSTMENTS

(E IN MILLIONS)

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest and similar income..... 5,068 10,765 9,085 129 (823)
Income from affiliated
enterprises, joint ventures

and associated enterprises.... 889 525 1,016 (3) (839)
Realized gains........coevveene... 4,211 3,405 505 33 (39)
Income from revaluations........ 96 157 123 11 -
Trading income..........cuoueu... 1,451 (117) 244 10 4

Subtotal.....oeeiiiiiieennnnn. 11,715 14,735 10,973 180 (1,697)

INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Interest and similar expenses... (1,323) (492) (6,852) (82) 802
Realized 10SSES. .t iieenneennnn (2,088) (4,542) (341) (51) 24
Loan loss allowanCe............. (4) (4) (588) —— ——
Write-downs and other expenses.. (800) (995) (124) (6) ——
Investment management
EXPENSES e v v e e e ettt (499) (5406) —— —— 104
Subtotal.....oeiiiiiiiennnnn. (4,714) (6,579) (7,905) (139) 930 (
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INVESTMENT INCOME (NET) ........... 7,001 8,156 3,068 41 (767)
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

PROPERTY- LIFE/ ASSET CONSOLIDATION
CASUALTY HEALTH BANKING MANAGEMENT ADJUSTMENTS

(E IN MILLIONS)

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest and similar income..... 5,568 10,152 1,502 204 (831)
Income from affiliated
enterprises, joint ventures

and associated enterprises.... 1,833 693 122 1 (789)
Realized gains........cceveeee... 4,250 6,639 24 18 (24)
Income from revaluations........ 9 28 1 - ——
Trading income..........cuouvuvu... (10) (49) 7 16 -

Subtotal.....oeeiiiiiiiennnnn. 11,650 17,463 1,656 239 (1,644)

INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Interest and similar expenses... (1,1306) (148) (1,257) (61) 203
Realized 10SSE€S. . it iiieennnn (1,428) (2,624) (28) —— 1
Loan loss allowanCe............. —— —— (21) —— ——
Write-downs and other expenses.. (485) (380) (5) —= —=
Investment management
EXPENSES e v v e e e e et (558) (406) —— —— 8
Subtotal.......o.iiiiiiiii.. (3,607) (3,558) (1,311) (61) 212
INVESTMENT INCOME (NET) ........... 8,043 13,905 345 178 (1,432)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

PROPERTY- LIFE/ ASSET CONSOLIDATION
CASUALTY HEALTH BANKING MANAGEMENT ADJUSTMENTS T

(E IN MILLIONS)

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest and similar income..... 5,169 9,889 1,503 204 (822) 1
Income from affiliated
enterprises, joint ventures

and associated enterprises... 1,113 625 35 (39) (254)
Realized gains........ccevveee... 3,728 4,694 24 7 (52)
Income from revaluations........ 5 8 - - -
Trading income..........cuoueeu... 2 - 6 6 -
Subtotal.......coiuiiiiiinnn.. 10,017 15,216 1,568 178 (1,128) 2
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INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Interest and similar expenses... (621) (119) (1,268) (114) 92
Realized 10SSES. .t iiiieeneennnn (991) (1,587) (27) —— 70
Loan loss allowanCe..........o... —— —— (29) —— ——
Write-downs and other expenses.. (162) (289) (2) (1) ——
Investment management expenses.. (352) (364) —— —— 11
Subtotal.......ccuiiiiiinnn.. (2,126) (2,359) (1,326) (115) 173
INVESTMENT INCOME (NET) ........... 7,891 12,857 242 63 (955)
92

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Net investment income decreased by E3,540 million, or 16.8%, to E17,499
million in 2001 from E21,039 million in 2000, largely as a result of the
downturn in the capital markets in 2001, as reflected in the decrease in
realized gains, which decreased by E2,792 million, or 25.6%, and the increase in
realized losses, which increased by E2,919 million, or 71.6%, in 2001 compared
to 2000.

Property-casualty insurance investments increased by E17,044 million, or
13.7%, to E141,388 million in 2001 from E124,344 million in 2000, due primarily
to an increase in investments in affiliated enterprises, joint ventures and
associated enterprises. Net investment income from property-casualty investments
decreased by E1,042 million, or 13.0%, to E7,001 million in 2001 from E8, 043
million in 2000, due primarily to price declines on the capital markets.
Interest and similar income decreased 9.0% to E5,068 million in 2001, compared
with E5,568 million in 2000, while realized gains decreased slightly to E4,211
million in 2001, compared with E4,250 million in 2000. Investment expenses
increased by E1,107 million, or 30.7%, to E4,714 million in 2001 from E3, 607
million in 2000, reflecting primarily increased realized losses on investments
and write-downs of investments as a result of price declines in the capital
markets.

Life/health insurance investments increased slightly by E3,944 million, or
1.7%, to E237,439 million in 2001 from E233,495 million in 2000, reflecting
primarily an increase in separate account investments. Net investment income
from life/health investments decreased by E5,749 million, or 41.3%, to E8,156
million in 2001 from E13,905 million in 2000, primarily due to a decrease in
realized gains on investments and an increase in realized losses on investments
due to price declines in the capital markets. Interest and similar income
increased 6.0%, to E10,765 million in 2001, compared with E10,152 million in
2000, while realized gains decreased 48.7%, to E3,405 million in 2001, compared
with E6,639 million in 2000. Investment expenses increased by E3,021 million, or
84.9%, to E6,579 million in 2001 from E3,558 million in 2000, reflecting
primarily an increase in realized losses on investments and write-downs of
investments due to price declines in the capital markets.

Banking investments increased by E473,226 million to E490,140 million in
2001 from E16,914 in 2000, due primarily to the acquisition of Dresdner Bank.
The Dresdner Bank acquisition was also the primary driver of the banking
segment's investment results, as our banking operations were not significant in
2000. Net investment income from banking investments increased by E2,723
million, to E3,068 million in 2001 from E345 million in 2000. Interest and
similar income increased to E9,085 million in 2001, compared with E1,502 million
in 2000, while realized gains increased to E505 million in 2001, compared with
E24 million in 2000. Investment expenses increased to E7,905 million in 2001
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from E1,311 million in 2000.

Asset management investments increased by E1,955 million, or 86.2%, to
E4,224 million in 2001 from E2,269 million in 2000, reflecting primarily the
acquisition of Dresdner Bank, offset in part by price declines on the capital
markets. Net investment income from asset management investments decreased by
E137 million to E41 million in 2001 from E178 million in 2000. Interest and
similar income decreased by E75 million, or 36.8%, to E129 million in 2001,
compared with E204 million in 2000, while realized gains increased to E33
million in 2001 from E18 million in 2000. Investment expenses increased by E78
million, or 127.9%, to E139 million in 2001 from E61 million in 2000, reflecting
primarily realized losses on investments due to price declines in the capital
markets.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Net investment income increased by E941 million, or 4.7%, to E21,039
million in 2000 from E20,098 million in 1999, largely as a result of portfolio
growth and higher net realized gains, which were taken due to the strong
performance of the capital markets.
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Property-casualty insurance investments increased by E8,131 million, or
7.0%, to E124,344 million in 2000 from E116,213 million in 1999, due primarily
to the strong performance of capital markets. Net investment income from
property-casualty investments increased by E152 million, or 1.9%, to E8,043
million in 2000 from E7,891 million in 1999. Interest and similar income rose
7.7% to E5,568 million in 2000, compared with E5,169 million in 1999, while
realized gains increased 14.0%, to E4,250 million in 2000, compared with E3,728
million in 1999. Investment expenses increased by E1,481 million, or 69.7%, to
E3,607 million in 2000 from E2,126 million in 1999, reflecting an increase in
realized losses resulting from a repositioning of the investment portfolio which
involved the sale of positions with underlying losses.

Life/health insurance investments increased by E15,483 million, or 7.1%, to
E233,495 million in 2000 from E218,012 million in 1999, reflecting the strong
performance of the capital markets and a strong increase in the life insurance
segment in Germany. Net investment income from life/health investments increased
by E1,048 million, or 8.2%, to E13,905 million in 2000 from E12,857 million in
1999, primarily due to higher realized gains. Interest and similar income rose
2.7%, to E10,152 million in 2000, compared with E9,889 million in 1999, while
realized gains increased 41.4%, to E6,639 million in 2000, compared with E4,694
million in 1999. The increase in realized gains reflected favorable market
conditions and was driven in large part by the need to deliver competitive
returns on policies with profit-sharing components. Investment expenses
increased by E1,199 million, or 50.8%, to E3,558 million in 2000 from E2,359
million in 1999, reflecting primarily an increase in realized losses resulting
from portfolio management activities similar to those for our property-casualty
insurance investments described above.

Banking investments increased slightly by E104 million, to E16,914 million
in 2000 from E16,810 million in 1999. Net investment income from banking
investments increased by E103 million, or 42.6%, to E345 million in 2001 from
E242 million in 2000, due primarily to increased income from affiliated
enterprises, joint ventures and associated enterprises, which increased by E87
million to E122 million in 2000 from E35 million in 1999. Interest and similar
income decreased slightly to E1,502 million in 2000 from E1,503 million in 1999,
while realized gains remained unchanged at E24 million in 2000. Investment
expenses decreased by E15 million, or 1.1%, to E1,311 million in 2000 from
E1,326 million in 1999.
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Asset management investments decreased slightly by E3 million, to E2,269
million in 2000 from E2,272 million in 1999. Net investment income from asset
management operations increased by E115 million, or 182.5%, to E178 million in
2000 from E63 million in 1999, due primarily to an increase in income from
affiliated enterprises, joint ventures and associated enterprises, as well as a
decrease in interest and similar expenses. Interest and similar income remained
unchanged at E204 million in 2000, while realized gains increased to E18 million
in 2000 from E7 million in 1999. Investment expenses decreased by E54 million,
or 47.0%, to E61 million in 2000 from E115 million in 1999, due primarily to
decreased interest and similar expenses, which decreased by E53 million, to E61
million in 2000 from E114 million in 1999.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We operate as both a holding company for the Group's insurance, banking and
other subsidiaries and as a reinsurance company, primarily for other Group
companies. The liquidity and capital resource considerations for us and for our
domestic and non-domestic operating subsidiaries wvary in light of the business
conducted by each, as well as the insurance and banking regulatory requirements
applicable to the Allianz Group in Germany and the other countries in which it
does business. At December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Allianz Group had
E21,240 million, E4,209 million and E3,930 million, respectively, of cash and
cash equivalents. See Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements. We
believe that our working capital is sufficient for our present requirements.
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Our principal sources of funds are premiums, customer deposits, investment
income, funds that may be raised from time to time from the issuance of debt or
equity securities and bank or other borrowings, as well as cash dividends and
reinsurance premiums received from our subsidiaries. We also receive funds from
our subsidiaries' internal pension operations, which we invest on their behalf.
For a description of the types of financial instruments we use and the maturity
profile of our financial liabilities, see Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements. See also "-- Selected Statistical Information Relating to Our
Banking Operations" and "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk." For further information regarding the uses and sources of liquidity,
capital requirements, and other related matters, see "-- Consolidated Cash
Flows."

The majority of Allianz AG's external debt financing at December 31, 2001
was in the form of debentures and money market securities. The Allianz Group's
total certificated liabilities outstanding at December 2001, 2000 and 1999 were
E134,670 million, E13,606 million, and E10,963 million, respectively. Of the
certificated liabilities outstanding at December 31, 2001, E54,106 million were
due within one year. For further information regarding outstanding certificated
liabilities, see Note 21 to our consolidated financial statements. Proceeds to
Allianz AG from the issuance of debt for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999 were E3,054 million, E2,354 million and E767 million, respectively.

We paid dividends of E367 million, E306 million and E275 million on our
shares in 2001, 2000 and 1999 with respect to the fiscal years 2000, 1999 and
1998, respectively. See "Key Information —-- Dividends." Dividends paid by our
operating subsidiaries outside of Germany are generally retained by an
intermediate holding company to finance operations or acquisitions in the
relevant countries. As a result, we generally pay dividends out of the profits
from our reinsurance operations and profits transferred from our German
operating subsidiaries.

Certain of our subsidiaries are subject to legal restrictions on the amount

104



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

of dividends they can pay to their shareholders. In addition to the restrictions
in respect of minimum capital and solvency requirements that are imposed by
insurance and other regulators in the countries in which our subsidiaries
operate, other limitations exist in certain countries. For example, the
operations of our insurance company subsidiaries located in the United States
are subject to limitations on the payment of dividends to their parent company
under applicable state insurance laws. Dividends paid in excess of these
limitations generally require prior approval of the insurance commissioner of
the state of domicile. See "-- Regulation and Supervision."

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

The principal sources of funds for our insurance operations are premiums,
net investment income and proceeds from sales or maturity of investments, while
the major uses of these funds are to pay property-casualty claims and related
claims expenses, provide life policy benefits, pay surrenders and profit sharing
for life policyholders and pay other operating costs. We generate a substantial
cash flow from insurance operations as a result of most premiums being received
in advance of the time when claim payments or policy benefits are required.
These positive operating cash flows, along with that portion of the investment
portfolio that is held in cash and highly ligquid securities, have historically
met the liquidity requirements of our insurance operations, as evidenced by the
growth in investments.

With regard to our banking operations, our primary sources of liquidity are
customer deposits and interest income from our lending transactions and our
investment portfolio, while our major uses of funds are for the issuance of new
loans and advances to banks and customers, and the payment of interest on
deposits, certificated liabilities and subordinated liabilities. Other sources
of liquidity include our ability to borrow on the interbank market and convert
securities in our investment and trading portfolios into cash.
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On a consolidated basis, we have additional sources of liquidity through
our access to commercial paper, medium-term notes and other credit facilities.

In the insurance industry, liquidity generally refers to the ability of an
enterprise to generate adequate amounts of cash from its normal operations,
including its investment portfolio, in order to meet its financial commitments,
which are principally obligations under its insurance or reinsurance contracts.
The liquidity of our property-casualty insurance operations is affected by the
frequency and severity of losses under its policies, as well as by the
persistency of its products. Future catastrophic events, the timing and effect
of which are inherently unpredictable, may also create increased liquidity
requirements for our property-casualty operations. The liquidity needs of our
life operations are generally affected by trends in actual mortality experience
relative to the assumptions with respect thereto included in the pricing of its
life insurance policies, by the extent to which minimum returns or crediting
rates are provided in connection with its life insurance products, as well as by
the level of surrenders and withdrawals.

Our uses of funds, in addition to shareholder dividends (which amounted to

E367 million in 2001), include underwriting expenditures (reinsurance premiums,
benefits, surrenders, claims (including claims handling expenses) and profit
sharing by life policyholders), acquisitions, and employee and other operating

expenses, as well as interest expense on outstanding borrowings. Our life and
health insurance products include mandatory profit-sharing features, whereby we
return a specified portion of statutory profits to policyholders annually,
generally in the form of premium subsidies or rebates. Since the beginning of
2000, we have been required by law to return 90% of surplus from capital
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investments in our life and health businesses to our policyholders. Since the
actual levels of profit sharing have been over 90% in recent years as a result
of competitive forces, we do not expect the new regulatory requirement to
materially affect our liquidity or results of operations.

Recent significant acquisitions have included the purchases of AGF in 1998,
PIMCO in May 2000, Nicholas-Applegate in January 2001 and Dresdner Bank in July
2001. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements for additional
information.

The liquidity requirements of our insurance operations are met on both a
short- and long-term basis by funds provided by insurance premiums collected,
investment income and collected reinsurance receivables, and from the sale and
maturity of investments. We also have access to commercial paper, medium-term
note and other credit facilities as additional sources of liquidity.

Our capital requirements are primarily dependent on our business plans
regarding the levels and timing of capital expenditures and investments. Subject
to developments affecting the Group which cannot be predicted or controlled, we
currently intend to maintain Group capital expenditure levels generally in the
range of the past three years. We are not currently subject to any commitment
for capital expenditures which individually is material to the Group. For a
description of our principal acquisitions and dispositions of businesses during
the last three years, see Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. For a
listing of our significant subsidiaries, see Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

First-time compliance with regulations specific to the banking sector
required changes in the format of the cash flow statement. The headings for the
previous years were adjusted accordingly. The cash flow statement excludes the
effects of the first-time consolidation of major new acquisitions during the
course of 2001, including, among others, Dresdner Bank and Nicholas-Applegate.
Subsequent to their respective dates of acquisition, the cash of these companies
has been included in the cash flow statement. For additional information, see
Note 44 to our consolidated financial statements.
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Net cash used in operating activities was E775 million in 2001, compared to
net cash provided by operating activities of E2,476 million in 2000. The
decrease was primarily attributable to an increased change in trading securities
and a decrease in net income for the year. This was offset by an increased
adjustment for investment income and expenses not involving movement in cash,
and an increased change in other receivables and liabilities.

Net cash provided by investing activities was E18,019 million in 2001,
compared to net cash used in investing activities of E6,955 million in 2000. The
increase was primarily driven by an increased change in cash and cash
equivalents from the acquisition of consolidated affiliated companies, following
the acquisition of Dresdner Bank and Nicholas-Applegate, an increased change in
available-for-sale securities and an increased change in other investments.

Net cash used in financing activities was E231 million in 2001, compared to
net cash provided by financing activities of E4,749 million in 2000. The
decrease was primarily attributable to a decreased change in loans,
participation certificates and post-ranking liabilities, and a decreased change
in other financing activities.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
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Net cash provided by operating activities was E2,476 million in 2000,
compared to E10,996 million in 1999. The decrease was primarily attributable to
a decreased change in deferred acquisition costs, an increase in loans and
advances from banks and customers, a decrease in certificated liabilities, a
decrease change in other assets and liabilities, an increased change in deferred
tax assets/liabilities, and an increased adjustment for investment
income/expenses not involving movements of cash. This was offset by increased
net income for the year and increased changes in reserve for loss and loss
adjustment expense and other insurance reserves.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2000 was E6,955 million, compared
to E9,727 million in 1999, a decrease of E2,772 million, or approximately 28.5%.
The decrease reflected a decline in net purchases of securities available for
sale, offset by increased use of cash flows for acquisitions.

Net cash flow from financing activities increased to E4,749 million in 2000
from E286 million in 1999, primarily reflecting an increase in debt.

The operating, investing and financing activities described above resulted
in net cash and cash equivalents at year-end 2000 of E4,209 million, compared to
E3,930 million at year-end 1999, an increase of E279 million from 1999 levels.

PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES
GENERAL

When claims are made by or against policyholders, any amounts that a member
of the Allianz Group's property-casualty segment pays or expects to pay the
claimant are referred to as losses, and the costs of investigating, resolving
and processing these claims are referred to as loss adjustment expenses (or
LAE) . Allianz establishes reserves for payment of losses and LAE for claims that
arise from its property-casualty insurance and reinsurance policies by product,
coverage and year for each company in the Group. In accordance with IAS, no
specific loss and LAE reserves are established until an event that causes a loss
occurs.

Loss and LAE falls into two categories: reserves for reported claims and
reserves for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims. Reserves for reported
claims are based on estimates of future payments that will be made in respect of
claims, including expenses relating to such claims. Such estimates are made on a
case-by-case basis, based on the facts and circumstances available at the time
the reserves are established. The estimates reflect the informed judgment of our
claims personnel based on general insurance reserving practices and knowledge of
the
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nature and value of a specific type of claim. These reserves are periodically
adjusted in the ordinary course of settlement and represent the estimated
ultimate costs necessary to bring all pending reported claims to final
settlement, taking into account inflation, and other societal and economic
factors which can influence the amount of the reserves required. Consideration
is given to historic trends of disposition patterns and loss payments, pending
levels of unpaid claims and types of coverage. In addition, court decisions,
economic conditions and public attitudes may also affect the estimation of
reserves, as well as ultimate costs of claims.

IBNR reserves are established to recognize the estimated cost of losses

that have occurred but about which the Group does not yet have notice. These
reserves, like the reserves for reported claims, are established to recognize
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the estimated costs, including expenses, necessary to bring claims arising out
of losses to final settlement. Since nothing is known about the occurrence, the
Group relies on its past experience adjusted for current trends and any other
factors that would modify past experience to estimate the IBNR liability. These
reserves are estimates that involve actuarial and statistical projections of the
expected cost of the ultimate settlement and administration of claims. The
analyses are based on facts and circumstances known at the time, predictions of
future events, estimates of future inflation and other societal and economic
factors. Late reported claim trends, claim severity, exposure growth and future
inflation are some of the factors used in projecting the IBNR reserve
requirements. These reserves are reviewed and revised periodically as additional
information becomes available and actual claims are reported.

The time required to learn of and settle claims is an important
consideration in establishing reserves. Short-tail claims, such as automobile
property damage claims, are reported within a few days or weeks and are
generally settled within two to three years. Medium-tail claims such as personal
and commercial motor liability claims generally take four to six years to
settle, while long-tail claims, such as general liability, workers compensation,
construction and professional liability claims take longer to settle. Based on
the profile of property-casualty reserves for our largest operating entities, we
characterize our reserves as approximately 20% short-tail, 40% medium-tail and
40% long-tail.

The ultimate cost of loss and LAE is subject to a number of highly variable
circumstances. As time passes between when a claim is reported to the final
settlement of the claim, a change in circumstances may require established
reserves to be adjusted either upwards or downwards. Items such as changes in
the legal environment, results of litigation, and changes in medical costs,
costs of automobile and home repair materials and labor rates can substantially
impact claim costs. These factors can cause actual developments to vary from
expectations, perhaps materially. Claims reserve estimates are periodically
reviewed and updated, using the most current information available to
management, and any adjustments resulting from changes in reserve estimates are
reflected in current results of operations.

On the basis of the Group's internal procedures, management believes, based
on information currently available to it, that the Group's property-casualty
reserves are adequate. However, the establishment of loss reserves is an
inherently uncertain process, and accordingly, there can be no assurance that
ultimate losses will not differ from the Group's initial estimates.

98

RECONCILIATION OF BEGINNING AND ENDING LOSS AND LAE RESERVES

The following table is a summary reconciliation of the beginning and ending
reserves of the Allianz Group, including the effect of reinsurance ceded, for
the property-casualty insurance segment for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2001, on an IAS basis.

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS AND LAE RESERVES
PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE SEGMENT

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)
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Balance as O0f January L. ...t iiii ettt eneeeeeeeeaneeeeenns 54,047 51,272 45,560
Less reinsurance recoverable. . ... ...ttt 12,571 12,089 9,428
O 41,476 39,183 36,132

Plus incurred related to:

(O 6 oy o A 4 27,295 24,163 23,427
Prior VEATS (L) v ittt ittt et ettt e e et ettt eae e 76 (123) (787)
Total INCUTTEd. @it ittt it et ettt ettt et et e teeeeeeeneeneean 27,371 24,040 22,640

Less paid related to:

(O 6 oy o A 4 11,895 11,735 12,279

@ Bl A Y = 12,462 11,968 9,166
Total PAid. e eii ettt ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt 24,357 23,703 21,445
Effect of foreign exchange....... ...ttt ennnnennnn 407 649 1,410
Effect of acquisitions (2) ... .ttt ittt et 423 240 928
ReClassification (3) v iw ittt ettt e et et et ettt ettt eeeeeeaenn —= 458 —=
(0w oLl 7 P - 609 (482)
Net balance at end Of yVear. ..ottt ittt teeieeeneenns 45,320 41,476 39,183
Plus reinsurance recoverable. ... ...ttt ittt tneeaneens 16,156 12,571 12,089
Balance as of December 3l ... ..ttt ttteeeeeeennneeennns 61,476 54,047 51,272

(1) The favorable development in 1999 and 2000 is primarily due to our
subsidiaries in Germany, Austria and the United Kingdom, offset to some
extent by unfavorable run-off in Italy and the United States.

(2) Reserves for loss and LAE of subsidiaries purchased (or sold) are included
(or excluded) as of the date of transaction (or disposition).

(3) Represents the movement of certain AGF Belgium reserves from aggregate
policy reserves to loss reserves.

(4) In 2000, includes the impact of the commutation of a reinsurance agreement
with Munich Re (E322 million).

CHANGES IN HISTORICAL LOSS AND LAE RESERVES

The following loss and LAE reserve development table illustrates the change
over time of the loss and LAE reserves of the Group at the end of the years
indicated. The reserves represent the estimated amount of loss and LAE for
claims arising in the current and all prior accident years that are unpaid at
the balance sheet date, including IBNR. Since the Group adopted IAS in 1997,
historical loss development data is available on an IAS basis of accounting for
the five years 1997 to 2001 only.
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The first section of each table shows gross reserves for loss and LAE as
initially established at the end of each stated year. The second section,
reading down, shows the cumulative amounts paid, gross of reinsurance and
retrocessions, as of the end of the successive years with respect to the reserve
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initially established. The third section shows the retroactive re-estimation of
the initially established gross reserves for loss and LAE as of the end of each
successive year, which results primarily from the Group's expanded awareness of
additional facts and circumstances that pertain to open claims. The last section
compares the latest re-estimated gross reserves for loss and LAE to the gross
reserves as initially established and indicates the cumulative development of
the initially established gross reserves through December 31, 2001. For
instance, the surplus (deficiency) shown in the table for each year represents
the aggregate amount by which the original estimates of reserves at that
year—-end have changed in subsequent years.

Accordingly, the cumulative surplus (deficiency) for a year-end relates
only to reserves at that year-end and such amounts are not additive.

Caution should be exercised in evaluating the information shown on this
table, as each amount includes the effects of all changes in amounts for prior
periods. Conditions and trends that have affected development of liability in
the past may or may not necessarily occur in the future, and accordingly,
conclusions about future results may not be derived from information presented
in this table.

CHANGES IN HISTORICAL RESERVES FOR UNPAID LOSS AND LAE

PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE SEGMENT
GROSS OF REINSURANCE

DECEMBER 31, (1)

(E IN MILLIONS)

Gross liability for unpaid claims and claims

10 1= 0 =T = 34,323 45,560 (2) 51,272(3) 54,047 61
Paid (cumulative) as of:
One vear later. ... ..ttt ittt taeeeeeeennn 8,573 12,996 15,949 16,639
TWO years later ...ttt ittt et ettt e eaeeeenn 13,329 20,967 24,132
Three years later...... .ttt ennneeens 16,778 24,588
Four vears later......u ittt tin et enneeneeennn 19,562
Liability re-—-estimated as of:
One vear later. ... ..ttt ittt eaeeeeeennnn 32,200 46,768 52,663 55,357
TWO years later ...ttt ittt et e e et e eaeaeens 33,104 46,975 53,589
Three years later...... .ttt ennneeens 32,766 47,346
Four vears later. ...t tii et eeeneeneeennn 33,455
Cumulative surplus (deficiency).........ciiiiieo..o.. 868 (1,786) (2,317) (1,310)
Cumulative surplus (deficiency) excluding impact of
foreign exchange. ... ..ttt ittt et ee et e 2,294 1,515 (694) (581)
S a7 =3 o i 6.7% 3.3% (1.4)% (1.1)%

(1) Reserves for loss and LAE of subsidiaries purchased (or sold) are included
(or excluded) as of the date of the acquisition (or disposition).

(2) As a result of the acquisition of AGF, loss and LAE reserves at December 31,
1998 increased by E10,658 million on a gross basis.

(3) As of December 31, 1999, gross reserves increased by E1.2 billion as a

result of the completion of the acquisition of Allianz Australia and by E2.0
billion as a result of the strengthening of the U.S. dollar and the pound
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sterling against the euro.

(4) As of December 31, 2001, the increase in gross reserves was primarily due to
the gross incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses related to the
terrorist attack of September 11, 2001.
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As of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, our consolidated property-casualty
reserves reflected discounts of E1,588 million, E1,445 million, and E1,167
million, respectively.

Reserves are discounted to varying degrees in the United States, Germany,
Hungary, Brazil, Switzerland, Portugal, France, Belgium and the Netherlands. For
the United States, the discount reflected in the reserves is related to
annuities for certain long-tailed liabilities, primarily in workers'
compensation. For the other countries, the reserve discounts relate to annuity
reserves for various classes of business. These classes include personal
accident, general liability and motor liability in Germany, Hungary and Brazil,
workers' compensation in Switzerland and Portugal, individual and group health
disability and motor liability in France and health disability in Belgium and
the Netherlands. All of the reserves that have been discounted have payment
amounts that are fixed and timing that is reasonably determinable.

The significant increase in the gross reserves for 2001 over 2000 for the
Allianz Group companies is driven by gross incurred losses and loss adjustment
expenses related to the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001. On a
consolidated Group basis, the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001 resulted in
net claims costs of approximately E1,500 million. Estimated losses are based on
a policy-by-policy analysis as well as a variety of actuarial techniques,
coverage interpretations and claim estimation methodologies, and include an
estimate of incurred but not reported, as well as estimated costs related to the
settlement of claims. These loss estimates are subject to considerable
uncertainty.

Because the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001 was a single coordinated
event, it is the belief of the Group's management that the losses at the World
Trade Center constitute one occurrence. A Group company 1is currently a defendant
in a lawsuit brought by an insured alleging that the attack constituted multiple
occurrences. Based on the policy wording, the Group believes it is clear that
the attack constitutes one occurrence and intends to defend this matter
vigorously. See "Financial Information -- Legal Proceedings —-- Litigation."

The reserves held at year-end 1997 and year-end 1998 show surpluses of 6.7%
and 3.3%, respectively, after adjusting for the impact of exchange rate
fluctuations. The surplus is primarily driven by favorable claims experience in
Germany, France, the United Kingdom, and Austria and is offset by adverse
development in Italy. The reserves held at year-end 1999 and year-end 2000 show
deficiencies of 1.4% and 1.1%, respectively, after adjusting for the impact of
exchange rate fluctuations. The deficiency for year-end 1999 is driven by upward
development on claims related to the storms "Lothar" and "Martin" that occurred
in Europe in late 1999. Additionally, the strengthening of the reserves for
motor liability and general liability in Italy during 2001 contributed to the
deficiencies shown for both 1999 and 2000.

INDIVIDUAL COUNTRY RESERVES —-- GROSS RESERVES

The following five tables present loss development data on a local
statutory basis of accounting for Germany, the United States, the United
Kingdom, France and Italy, the five countries in which we write the majority of
our business.

111



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

Since the Group adopted IAS in 1997, historical loss development data is
not available on a consistent basis of accounting for years prior to 1997.
Therefore, the individual country tables presented on the following pages are
prepared on a local statutory basis of accounting for each respective country.

Generally, under German, French and Italian statutory accounting
principles, property-casualty loss and LAE reserves are established based on a
case reserving approach. Individual case reserves, set by claims adjusters, are
aggregated to determine the overall reserve amounts. In addition, local
regulations require an equalization reserve as a safety margin. In comparison,
under IAS, overall property-casualty reserves are set by analyzing past data and
applying actuarial methodologies to this data. In addition, IAS-based reserves
exclude equalization
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reserves. Consistent with IAS principles, catastrophe and equalization reserves
are not included in the individual country loss and LAE reserves disclosures.

The tables for Germany, France, Italy and the United Kingdom present eight
years of loss information, as over 60% of the business in these countries is
short- and medium-tail. The table for the United States presents ten years of
loss information, as the Group provides longer-tail coverages in this market.
The tables for Germany and France have changed due to the inclusion of data for
assumed reinsurance (such as from underwriting pools) that was not included
previously, and the tables for Italy have changed due to improved coverage. The
Group total table above is unaffected by these changes.

GERMANY

The loss reserve development table for Germany includes the development of
property-casualty reserves for the Group subsidiaries that insure or reinsure
property-casualty risks in Germany. The table is presented on a consolidated
basis for the Group's subsidiaries in Germany on a German statutory accounting
basis, and represents 100% of property-casualty reserves in Germany.

In Germany, reserves related to annuities for personal accident, general
liability and motor liability claims are discounted. As of December 31, 2001,

2000, and 1999, our German property-casualty reserves reflected discounts of
E202 million, E180 million, and E162 million, respectively.

DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

Gross reserves for unpaid claims and claims

S o1 0 =T = 10,068 10,787 13,0406 13,409 13,235 1
Cumulative paid as of:

One vear later.......ii ittt eeeeeeeennnns 2,080 2,052 2,448 2,444 2,527

TWOo years later. ... .ottt teeeeeeeannnn 2,875 2,829 3,434 3,328 3,576

Three years later...... ..t iiieneeeeeennnn 3,334 3,357 3,927 4,013 4,198

Four vears later...... ittt iteeeneeeeennnnn 3,710 3,762 4,421 4,453

Five years later. ... .ttt itteeneeeeennnnn 4,026 4,103 4,766

Six years later .. ...ttt ittt 4,299 4,329

Seven years later....... .ttt 4,480

Liability re—-estimated as of:
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One yvear later. ... ..ottt teeeeeeeeeennnns 9,314 9,780 11,821 11,954

TWOo years later. ... iii it teiieeeeannnn 8,701 9,144 10,814 10,764

Three years later...... ..ottt eeeennnn 8,337 8,542 9,977 10,036

Four vears later...... ittt iteeeeeeeeennnnn 7,913 8,105 9,425 9,549

Five years later. ... .ttt itteeneeeeennnnn 7,602 7,772 9,061

Six years later .. ... iiii ittt 7,366 7,518

Seven years later...... ..ttt 7,167

Cumulative surplus (deficiency)................ 2,901 3,269 3,985 3,860
N ok @Y o 28.8% 30.3% 30.5% 28.8%

As a multi-line insurer in the German market, our reserves include diverse
property-casualty coverages including motor liability, general liability,
property, marine, and credit. In Germany, the general practice is to record
statutory reserves based on a prudent case-by-case reserve approach.
Statistically, due to favorable outcomes on certain portions of the case
reserves, this methodology leads to overall favorable development in the total
reserves, leading to statutory reserves that are generally redundant. The
reserves for Germany on an IAS basis for 1997 through 2001, the years for which
IAS figures are available, are 20-25% lower than the statutory reserves. This
reflects the difference in the methodologies for calculating reserves under
Germany's statutory accounting standards and IAS. On an IAS basis, the reserves
in Germany
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show cumulative surplus percentages of 15.9%, 9.8%, 4.0%, and 1.7% for the years
1997 through 2000, respectively.

The increase in the gross reserves for 2001 over 2000 for Allianz Group
non-life insurance companies in Germany is driven by gross incurred losses and
loss adjustment expenses related to the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001,
a majority of which is attributable to reinsurance underwritten by Allianz AG.

UNITED STATES

The loss reserve development table for the United States includes the
development of property-casualty reserves for the Group subsidiaries in the
United States that insure or reinsure property-casualty risks. The table is
presented on a consolidated basis for the Group's subsidiaries in the United
States on a U.S. statutory basis, and represents 100% of property-casualty
reserves in the United States. As of December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, our U.S.
property-casualty reserves reflected discounts of E412 million, E295 million,
and E212 million, respectively.

DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

Gross reserves for unpaid
claims and claims

11,982 1
10,916 1
10,279

2,956
22.3%

EXPENSES . v vttt e 7,392 7,972 7,174 7,415 8,633 10,571 10,047 11,932

Cumulative paid as of:

One year later.......... 1,878 1,589 1,536 1,626 2,538 2,589 2,937 4,025
Two years later......... 2,968 2,557 2,516 3,191 4,099 4,429 5,269 6,280
Three years later....... 3,663 3,213 3,573 4,308 5,455 5,932 6,705

Four years later........ 4,145 3,960 4,432 5,384 6,383 6,878
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Five years later........ 4,698 4,569 5,358 6,110 7,084
Six years later......... 5,218 5,436 5,963 6,650
Seven years later....... 6,033 5,977 6,410
Eight years later....... 6,538 6,353
Nine years later........ 6,898
Liability re—-estimated as of:
One year later.......... 7,895 6,970 7,285 8,260 10, 644 10,254 11,711
Two years later......... 7,192 7,207 7,984 9,859 10,341 11,286 11,990
Three years later....... 7,538 7,814 9,274 9,614 11,087 11,411 11,966
Four years later........ 8,084 8,834 9,112 10,250 11,105 11,313
Five years later........ 8,963 8,780 9,687 10,292 10,956
Six years later......... 9,035 9,384 9,742 10,126
Seven years later....... 9,683 9,460 9,594
Eight years later....... 9,807 9,324
Nine years later........ 9,695
Cumulative surplus
(deficiency) oo vva.. (2,303) (1,352) (2,420) (2,711) (2,323) (742) (1,919)

Cumulative surplus
(deficiency) excluding
impact of foreign
exchange.............. (1,153) (881) (899) (188) (9) 455 591
Percent............... (15.6)% (11.0)% (12.5)% (2.5)% (0.1)% 4.3% 5.9%

The Allianz Group companies in the United States form one of the leading
U.S. property-casualty groups. Our portfolio consists of a diverse group of
personal and commercial coverages, including workers' compensation, general
liability, automobile liability, property, fire
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and marine generally written throughout the United States, and as such we are
exposed to general developments and risks that affect the entire U.S.
property-casualty industry.

The significant increase in the gross reserves for 2001 over 2000 for the
Allianz Group non-life insurance companies in the United States is driven by
losses and loss adjustment expenses related to the terrorist attack of September
11, 2001, significantly all of which are attributable to Allianz Insurance Co.

In the years shown, we have experienced adverse loss development in our
U.S. property-casualty reserves, primarily due to environmental, asbestos and
other toxic-tort related (or E&A) claims. In 1995, Fireman's Fund increased its
net and gross reserves for E&A claims by $800 million. In 2000, an additional
$250 million in gross and net reserves were reallocated to E&A liabilities.

The following table summarizes the gross and net U.S. claim reserves for
E&A claims at December 31 for the years indicated.

13,145
13,308

(1,376

AS A PERCENTAGE OF AS A PERCENTA

U.S. PROPERTY- THE GROUP'
CASUALTY PROPERTY-CASU
YEAR-END DECEMBER 31, NET E&A RESERVES GROSS E&A RESERVES GROSS RESERVES GROSS RESER
(E MILLIONS) (E MILLIONS)
1998. . il 978 1,845 18.4% 4.0%
1999. . i 883 1,748 14.6% 3.4%
200000 i ina L 1,073 1,983 15.6% 3.7%
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2001, ... 979 1,838 11.3%

There are significant uncertainties in estimating the amount of our U.S.
E&A claims. Reserves for E&A claims cannot be estimated with traditional loss
reserving techniques. Case reserves are established when sufficient information
has been obtained to indicate the involvement of a specific insurance policy. In
addition, IBNR reserves are established to cover additional exposures on both
known and unasserted claims. In establishing the liabilities for claims arising
from asbestos-related illnesses, toxic waste clean-up and latent drug and
chemical exposures, management considers facts currently known and the current
state of the law and coverage litigation. However, given the expansion of
coverage and liability by the courts and the legislatures in the past and the
possibilities of similar interpretation in the future, there is significant
uncertainty regarding the extent of remediation and insurer liability.

In response to the uncertainty associated with E&A claims, Fireman's Fund
has created an environmental claims unit focused on E&A claims evaluation and
remediation for our U.S. subsidiaries. The staff of this unit, consisting of a
total of approximately 50 employees, determines appropriate coverage issues
according to the terms of the policies and contracts involved and, on the basis
of its experience and expertise, makes judgments as to the ultimate loss
potential related to each claim submitted for payment under the various policies
and contracts. Judgments of potential losses are also made from precautionary
reports submitted by insured companies for claims which have the possibility of
involving policy coverage. Factors considered in determining the reserve are:
whether the claim relates to asbestos or hazardous waste; whether the claim is
for bodily injury or property damage; the limits of liability and attachment
points; policy provisions for expenses (which are a significant portion of the
estimated ultimate cost of these claims); type of insured; and any provision for
reinsurance recoverables. In addition, Fireman's Fund actively pursues
commutations and reinsurance cessions to reduce its E&A exposures.

The industry-wide loss trends for some of these exposures, especially for
asbestos-related losses, have deteriorated recently. Some of the reasons for
this deterioration include: insureds who either produced or installed products
containing asbestos have seen more and larger claims brought against them, some
of these companies have declared bankruptcy which has caused
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plaintiff attorneys to seek larger amounts from solvent defendants and to also
include new defendants. Some defendants are also seeking relief under different
coverage provisions when the products liability portion of their coverage has
been exhausted.

The foregoing developments led the Allianz Group companies in the U.S. to
engage outside actuarial consulting firms to update a previous study conducted
in 1995 to analyze the adequacy of the reserves for these types of losses. This
analysis is expected to be completed during the second half of 2002. As of the
current date, management continues to rely on the results of the 1995 study as
the basis for its best estimate of asbestos and environmental reserves. Upon
completion of the analysis, additions to the reserves for environmental and
asbestos losses may be necessary and such additions could be significant.

UNITED KINGDOM
The loss reserve development table for the United Kingdom includes the
development of property-casualty reserves for the Group subsidiaries that insure

or reinsure property-casualty risks in the United Kingdom. The table is
presented on a consolidated basis for the Group's subsidiaries on a U.K. GAAP
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basis, which is similar to an IAS basis, and represents 100% of
property-casualty reserves in the United Kingdom.

DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLION

Gross reserves for unpaid claims and claims

1004 1T = O 1,141 1,158 1,445 1,797 2,72
Cumulative paid as of:
One vear later. ...ttt ittt eaeeeeeeeenns 305 393 469 507 83
TWO years later. ...ttt ittt i ettt et eeeeaeenn 534 627 695 759 1,26
Three years later. .. ...ttt ittt enneneenns 708 765 856 907 1,62
Four vears later. ...ttt ineeeeeeeeneeneeneenns 807 882 947 1,039
Five yvears later. ...ttt ineteeietneeeeeneenns 897 938 1,031
Six years later. ...ttt ittt et ettt e 934 1,001
Seven years later...... .ttt ittt 969
Liability re-—-estimated as of:
One vear later ... ...ttt ittt ettt taeeeeeeeenns 1,055 1,349 1,613 1,606 2,96
TWO years later. ...ttt ittt et et ettt 1,205 1,467 1,467 1,629 2,81
Three years later. ... ...ttt tenneneenns 1,298 1,356 1,485 1,614 2,72
Four vears later. ...t i it tieeeeeeeeneeeeeneenns 1,203 1,356 1,467 1,506
Five yvears later. ...ttt ittt etneeeeeneanns 1,204 1,355 1,407
Six years later. ...ttt et ettt 1,219 1,330
Seven years later. . ... .ttt 1,270
Cumulative surplus (deficiency) ........ccuoeiiieeeennn. (129) (172) 38 291
Cumulative surplus (deficiency) excluding impact of
foreign exchange. .. ...ttt ittt iieeee e 18 152 233 322 33
@Y o i 1.6% 13.1% 16.2% 17.9% 12.

In the United Kingdom, the Group writes a very broad mix of
property-casualty business for both individual and commercial clients. Our
general practice is to record property-casualty reserves at the actuarial best
estimate plus a margin for prudence. Accordingly, from 1995 through 2000, we
have experienced favorable development in property-casualty claim reserves.
These savings have arisen to differing degrees on almost all lines of business
and reflect the approach of calculating reserves on a prudent best estimate
basis. This approach reflects industry practice in the United Kingdom.
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Cornhill experienced gross incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses
related to the terrorist attack of September 11, 2001, which was a primary
factor in year-to-year reserves development.

The periods prior to and including 1994 differ from subsequent periods in
that they showed a deficiency for three development years before a surplus
emerged. This deficiency arose from the strengthening of reserves relating to
Marine Excess of Loss business written through the London Market during the late
1980's. This strengthening of Marine reserves more than offset the redundancy
emerging from other lines of business at the time. The Group considers that the
reserve issues that arose at the time have been fully addressed, as evidenced by
the now positive run-off.

The table also shows a sharp increase in the level of gross reserves from
1997 to 1998. This is primarily due to the acquisition of AGF in 1998. Reserves
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from AGF's UK subsidiaries were E1,067 million at December 31, 1998.
FRANCE

The loss reserve development table for France includes the development of
property-casualty reserves for the Group subsidiaries that insure or reinsure
property-casualty risks in France. The table is presented on a consolidated
basis for the Group's subsidiaries in France on a French statutory accounting
basis. All property-casualty lines other than construction, MAT and credit are
presented on an accident year basis. Construction, MAT and credit are presented
on an underwriting year basis, consistent with applicable French statutes. Loss
reserves presented on an "underwriting year" basis represent claims related to
all policies written during a given year. In contrast, "accident year" loss
reserves represent claims for events that occurred during a given calendar year,
regardless of when the policy was written. Loss reserves on an underwriting year
basis may include claims from different accident years. For example, a policy
written during 1999 may have losses in accident year 1999 and in accident year
2000. Therefore, underwriting year data as of a particular evaluation date is
less mature than accident year data. This leads to loss emergence taking place
over a slightly longer period of time. For year-ends 1998 through 2001, the
lines of business accounted for on an underwriting year basis accounted for
approximately 25% of the Group's reserves in France.

At December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, as permitted by applicable French
statutes, the Group carried approximately E1.4 billion, E1.4 billion, and E1.3
billion, respectively, in annuity reserves. These annuities reflected discounts
of E451 million, E444 million, and E387 million, respectively. These annuities
relate to individual and group health disability reserves (included in the
non-life segment under the Group's French statutory financial statements) and to
motor liability where payment amounts are fixed and the timing is reasonably
determinable. The reserve development reflected in the table below includes
development attributable to the amortization of the discount.

DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

Gross reserves for unpaid claims and claims expenses.... 1,231 1,275 1,319 1,297 8,468
Cumulative paid as of:
One vear later. .. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt 373 363 345 341 2,076
TWO Years laler ...ttt ettt ettt ettt eaaeeeeenen 536 518 500 469 3,140
Three years later. . ...ttt ittt ittt eaeeeaeennn 641 622 594 573 3,826
Four vears later. ...ttt ittt eeeeeeeeeeanns 723 696 672 648
Five yvears later. ...ttt ittt eteeaeeeeeanns 780 758 733
SixX Years later ...ttt ittt ettt 829 803
Seven years later. ... ..ttt et e 867
106

DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)
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Liability re-—-estimated as of:

One vear later. .. ...ttt ittt ettt 1,230 1,293 1,280 1,279

TWO Years lal el ...ttt ittt ettt ee e et aaeeeeens 1,260 1,273 1,271 1,218

Three years later. .. ...ttt ittt taeeeaeennn 1,253 1,276 1,222 1,241

Four vears later. ...ttt ittt eteeaeeeeeanns 1,277 1,233 1,234 1,228

Five yvears later. ...ttt ittt eteeaeeeeeanns 1,242 1,239 1,239

SixX Years later ...ttt ittt ettt 1,215 1,236

Seven years later. .. ...ttt e e e 1,252

Cumulative surplus (deficiency) .........eiiiiieeeennn. (21) 39 81 69
L S a7 = o (1.7)% 3.1% 6.1% 5.3%

The Allianz Group companies in France form one of the leading French
property-casualty groups. The Group's acquisition of AGF in 1998 resulted in a
E5,513 million increase in held reserves at December 31, 1998.

The Group's primary property-casualty lines of business in France are motor
liability, property, individual and group health, group disability, general
liability, construction, MAT and credit. Declining frequency trends for motor
liability in recent years and a prudent case reserving philosophy for motor
liability and general liability have contributed to the favorable runoff
reflected in the table for years 1995 through 1997. For 1999, the adverse
run-off is primarily due to the upward development during 2000 of losses from
the storms "Lothar" and "Martin," which occurred in Europe in late December
1999.

ITALY

The loss reserve development table for Italy includes the development of
property-casualty reserves for the Group subsidiaries that insure or reinsure
property-casualty risks in Italy. The table is presented on a consolidated basis
for the Group's subsidiaries in Italy on an Italian statutory accounting basis,
and represents 100% of property-casualty reserves in Italy.

DECEMBER 31,

8,082
8,649
8,615
(147)
(1.7)%
1999

(E IN MILLIONS)

Gross reserves for unpaid claims and Claims

[S:4 o150 =T 2,379 3,471 3,829 4,029 4,640
Cumulative paid as of:

One vear later...... ittt eeeieennneeens 888 1,308 1,487 1,562 1,824

TWO years later ...ttt ittt et eeeeeeeannns 1,280 1,989 2,152 2,308 2,626

Three years later...... .ttt tieeneeeeennnns 1,534 2,372 2,571 2,742 3,173

Four vears later......uii ittt eeeeeeeennneeens 1,717 2,660 2,861 3,101

Five yvears later. . ...ttt eennneeens 1,859 2,877 3,129

Six years later ...ttt ittt et 1,989 3,084

Seven years later...... ..ttt 2,118
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1994 1995 1996 1997

1998

(E IN MILLIONS)

Liability re—-estimated as of:

One vear later. ... ..ttt et ennneeens 2,376 3,527 3,829 4,037

TWO years later ...ttt ittt e eeeeeeee e 2,333 3,524 3,804 4,147

Three years later...... ..ttt tineneeeeennnns 2,404 3,605 3,938 4,279

Four vears later......uii ittt teeeeeeenneneens 2,449 3,710 4,049 4,429

Five yvears later. ... ..ttt eennneeens 2,498 3,796 4,162

Six years later ...ttt ittt e et e 2,547 3,879

Seven years later...... ..ttt 2,165

Cumulative surplus (deficiency).........ccoooo... (237) (408) (333) (401)
L S a7 =3 o i (9.9)% (11.8)% (8.7)% (9.9)

The Allianz Group companies in Italy form one of the leading Italian
property-casualty groups. The property-casualty reserve portfolio in Italy
consists predominantly of motor liability and general liability. During the past
few calendar years, adverse development in the Italian general liability market
has occurred due to an increase in late-reported claims. In addition, an
increase in personal injuries for motor liability, coupled with an increase in
the average cost of claims, has led to an increase in the ultimate cost of
claims for motor liability. As a result, during the last several calendar years,
but especially during 2001, reserves for motor liability and general liability
were strengthened at the RAS Group across several accident years causing most of
the adverse development shown above for Italy.

SELECTED STATISTICAL INFORMATION RELATING TO OUR BANKING OPERATIONS

For the purposes of presenting the following information, our banking
operations include Dresdner Bank AG and its subsidiaries (Dresdner Bank),
including its asset management operations, and certain other banking
subsidiaries of Allianz. This presentation differs from the presentation in
"Information on the Company and Operating and Financial Review and Prospects",
where the asset management operations of Dresdner Bank are included in our asset
management segment and excluded from our banking segment. The following
information has been derived from the financial records of our banking
operations and has been prepared in accordance with IAS; it does not reflect
adjustments necessary to convert such information to U.S. GAAP. Although the
financial statements of Dresdner Bank were consolidated into the financial
statements of Allianz AG on the date of our acquisition of Dresdner Bank on July
23, 2001, the information presented below includes the banking operations of
Dresdner Bank for all periods in order to provide the reader with comparable
information about our banking operations. Additionally, the assets and
liabilities of Dresdner Bank do not reflect adjustments necessary to apply
purchase accounting. Certain additional limitations concerning the average
balance sheet data of Dresdner Bank discussed in this section are noted below
under "-- Average Balance Sheet and Interest Rate Data."

In applying our accounting policies to the financial statements of Dresdner
Bank during periods prior to July 23, 2001, certificated commercial loans common
to the German market, or Schuldscheindarlehen, have been reclassified from Loans
and advances to banks and Loans and advances to customers to Investment
securities available for sale in order to conform to our accounting policies. At
December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, the book value of
Schuldscheindarlehen was approximately E44.0 billion, E46.6 billion, E48.6
billion, E49.1 billion, and E43.8 billion, respectively. Because there were no
loss allowances recorded on such Schuldscheindarlehen, such reclassification had
no impact on the gross amount of the loss allowances described below under
"-— Summary of Loan Loss Experience." However, such reclassification did
adversely affect the ratio of total allowances for loan losses to total loans.

4,650

4,788

4,984
(344)
(7.4)%
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET AND INTEREST RATE DATA

The following table sets forth the average balances of assets and
liabilities and related interest earned from interest-earning assets and
interest expensed on interest-bearing liabilities, as well as the resulting
average interest yields and rates. Dresdner Bank did not, in the periods shown,
prepare consolidated balance sheet and interest rate data on a monthly basis.
The average balance sheet and interest rate data shown below was derived using
unconsolidated monthly balances of Dresdner Bank AG and its branch operations
and significant subsidiaries, together with quarterly consolidated balances of
Dresdner Bank prepared in accordance with IAS. Such unconsolidated monthly
balances reflected approximately 90% of Dresdner Bank's consolidated assets and
liabilities, were not available for all months in the periods shown, and were
not in all cases prepared fully in accordance with IAS. Dresdner Bank has
reconciled such monthly balances to the consolidated quarterly balances that
were not subject to these limitations, and the data shown below reflects
adjustments to give effect to differences identified in such a reconciliation
process. We believe such adjusted monthly balances provide a fair representation
of the activities of Dresdner Bank's banking operations.

Since the adoption of IAS 39 on January 1, 2001, the fair values of all
derivative instruments have been included within non-interest-earning assets or
non-interest-bearing liabilities. Prior to January 1, 2001, the fair values of
qualifying hedge derivative instruments were not recorded in the balance sheet;
however, the fair values of all non-qualifying hedge and trading derivatives
have been included within non-interest-earning assets or non-interest-bearing
liabilities for each period. Interest income and interest expense relating to
qualifying hedge derivative instruments have been reported within the interest
income and interest expense of the hedged item for each period.

The allocation between German and non-German components is based on the
location of the office that recorded the transaction. Categories of loans and
advances include loans placed on nonaccrual status. For a description of our
accounting policies on nonaccrual loans see "-- Risk Elements —-- Nonaccrual
loans."

Our banking operations do not have a significant balance of tax-exempt
investments. Accordingly, interest income on such investments has been included
as taxable interest income for purposes of calculating the change in taxable net
interest income.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
INTEREST AVERAGE INTEREST AVERAGE
AVERAGE INCOME/ YIELD/ AVERAGE INCOME/ YIELD/
BALANCE EXPENSE RATE BALANCE EXPENSE RATE

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

ASSETS

Trading securities
In German offices................ 56,220 2,075 3.7% 38,637 1,387 3.6%
In non-German offices............ 30,020 1,484 4.9% 22,093 1,057 4.8%
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Securities purchased under resale
agreement
In German offices................
In non-German offices............

Investment securities (1)
In German offices................
In non-German offices............

Total interest-earning assets......

Non-interest-earning assets
In German offices................
In non-German offices............

Total non-interest-earning
assets. ... i e e e

Total assetsS ..ttt e enn

Percent of assets attributable to
non-German offices...............

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Liabilities to banks (2)
In German offices................

86,240 3,559 4.1% 60,730 2,444 4.0%
22,028 744 4% 17,632 651 3.7%
18,009 776 4.3% 12,853 1,271 9.9%
40,037 1,520 3.8% 30,485 1,922 6.3%
131, 346 8,339 6.3% 133,241 7,391 5.5%
56,144 3,741 6.7% 50,850 3,627 7.1%
187,490 12,080 6.4% 184,091 11,018 6.0%
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
INTEREST AVERAGE INTEREST AVERAGE
AVERAGE INCOME / YIELD/ AVERAGE INCOME / YIELD/
BALANCE EXPENSE RATE BALANCE EXPENSE RATE
(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)
46,890 2,267 4.8% 24,895 1,180 4.7%
41,254 1,545 3.7% 33,170 1,656 5.0%
88,144 3,812 4.3% 58,065 2,836 4.9%
59,346 2,929 4.9% 60,712 3,310 5.5%
10,577 469 4.45 10,460 702 6.7%
69,923 3,398 4.9% 71,172 4,012 5.6%
471,834 24,369 5.2% 404,543 22,232 5.5%
49,006 30,123
22,101 30,702
71,107 60,825
542,941 465,368
32.8% 34.4%
71, 681 2,765 3.9% 49,420 2,026 4.1%
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In non-German offices............ 30,217 2,301 7.6
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Liabilities to customers (2)

In German offices................ 99,113 2,713 2.7% 90, 666 2,040 2.3%

In non-German offices............ 46,628 1,653 3.5% 40,780 2,172 5.3%

Total. ittt ettt ettt e 145,741 4,366 3.0% 131,446 4,212 3.2%
Securities sold under repurchase

agreement

In German offices................ 39,327 1,958 5.0% 20,441 917 4.5%

In non-German offices............ 37,548 1,315 3.5% 33,661 1,640 4.9%

Total. ittt et ettt 76,875 3,273 4.3% 54,102 2,557 4.7%
Subordinated liabilities

In German offices................ 4,439 189 4.3% 4,355 176 4.0%

In non-German offices............ 4,793 458 9.6% 4,335 369 8.5%

Total. ittt et ettt e 9,232 647 7.0% 8,690 545 6.3%
Certificated liabilities (2)

In German offices................ 71,266 4,628 6.5% 73,717 4,803 6.5%

In non-German offices............ 44,657 2,440 5.5% 45,818 2,683 5.9%

Total. ittt e et e 115,923 7,068 6.1% 119,535 7,486 6.3%
Profit participation certificates

outstanding

In German offices................ 2,052 76 3.7% 2,034 64 3.1%

Total. ittt et ettt 2,052 76 3.7% 2,034 64 3.1%
Total interest-bearing

liabilities .. e it ennnnn. 451,721 20,496 4.5% 386,829 19,011 4.9%
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000
INTEREST AVERAGE INTEREST AVERAGE
AVERAGE INCOME/ YIELD/ AVERAGE INCOME/ YIELD/
BALANCE EXPENSE RATE BALANCE EXPENSE RATE
(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

Non-interest-bearing liabilities

In German offices................ 34,196 27,538

In non-German offices............ 34,576 38,693
Total non-interest-bearing

liabilities .. e it ennnnn. 68,772 66,231
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Shareholders' equity............... 22,448 12,308

Total liabilities and shareholders'
1T 1 I 542,941 465,368

Percent of liabilities attributable
to non-German offices............ 38.1% 40.8%

(1) The average yields for investment securities available for sale have been
calculated using amortized cost balances and do not include changes in fair
value recorded within a component of shareholders' equity. The average
yields for investment securities held to maturity have been calculated using
amortized cost balances.

(2) Interest-bearing deposits have been presented within liabilities to banks
and liabilities to customers; certificates of deposit have been presented
within certificated liabilities.

NET INTEREST MARGIN

The following table sets forth the average total interest-earning assets,
net interest earned and the net interest margin of our banking operations.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

Average total interest-earning assets.........o.iiiiiiiinann. 471,834 404,543 367,474
Net interest earned (L) .o v it ittt ittt ettt eeeeaeeaens 3,873 3,221 3,207
Net interest mMmargin(2) ... v i ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeeanns 0.82% 0.80% 0.87%

(1) Net interest earned is defined as total interest income less total interest
expense.

(2) Net interest margin is defined as net interest earned divided by average
total interest-earning assets.
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The following table sets forth an allocation of changes in interest income,
interest expense and net interest income between changes in the average volume
and changes in the average interest rates for the two most recent years. Volume
and interest rate variances have been calculated based on movements in average
balances over the period and changes in interest rates on average
interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities. Changes due to
a combination of volume and rate are allocated proportionally to the absolute
change in volume and rate.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
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INTEREST INCOME

Trading securities
In German offices. ... eenn.
In non-German offices........ ...t

Securities purchased under resale agreement
In German offices..... ...
In non-German offices............ ... .....

INTEREST EXPENSE
Liabilities to banks
In German offices. ... nn.
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INCREASE/ (DECREASE) INCREASE

DUE TO CHANGE IN: DUE TO

AVERAGE AVERAGE

TOTAL INTEREST AVERAGE TOTAL INTEREST
CHANGE RATE VOLUME CHANGE RATE

(E IN MILLIONS)

688 40 648 564 56
427 36 391 219 139
1,115 76 1,039 783 195
93 (59) 152 35 87
(495) (885) 390 226 343
(402) (944) 542 261 430
948 1,054 (106) 906 279
114 (248) 362 627 148
1,062 806 256 1,533 427
1,087 24 1,063 489 295
(111) (465) 354 525 464
976 (441) 1,417 1,014 759
(381) (308) (73) 202 240
(233) (241) 8 58 56
(614) (549) (65) 260 296
2,137 (1,052) 3,189 3,851 2,107
739 (126) 865 646 454
180 (544) 724 208 150
919 (670) 1,589 854 604
673 471 202 547 482
(519) (799) 280 379 (224)
154 (328) 482 926 258
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 OVER 2000 2000 OVER 1

INCREASE/ (DECREASE) INCREASE

DUE TO CHANGE IN: DUE TO

AVERAGE AVERAGE

TOTAL INTEREST AVERAGE TOTAL INTEREST
CHANGE RATE VOLUME CHANGE RATE

Securities sold under repurchase agreement

In German offices..... .ot ennnnn 1,041 111 930 466 193
In non-German offices........ ... (325) (499) 174 307 206
o o O 716 (388) 1,104 773 399

In German offices. ... enn. 13 9 4 32 29
In non-German offices........ ... 89 48 41 124 61
o o 102 57 45 156 90

In German offices. ... ennn. (175) (16) (159) 522 347
In non-German offices........ ... (243) (176) (67) 638 377
o o O (418) (192) (226) 1,160 724

Profit participation certificates

outstanding

In German offices. ... ennn. 12 11 1 (32) (30)

1 i 12 11 1 (32) (30)
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE. ...t eeeeeennnnnn 1,485 (1,510) 2,995 3,837 2,045
CHANGE IN TAXABLE NET INTEREST INCOME....... 652 458 194 14 62

RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS

The following table sets forth the net income, average shareholders' equity
and selected financial information and ratios of our banking operations.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

J S i Ia Yo 1 539 1,809 1,057
Average shareholders' equUity.... .ottt it eennnnns 22,448 12,308 11,611
RetUrn 0N ASSEE S (1) vt i it ittt ettt ettt et et ettt ettt teeeeenenn 0.10% 0.39% 0.25%

125



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

RetUrn On eqUIity (2) ¢ v i ittt ittt et e ettt e e et e e ettt aaeeeeeen 2.40% 14.70% 9.10%
Equity to assets ratio(3) «.u vttt ittt taeeeaennns 4.13% 2.6064% 2.70%

(1) Return on assets is defined as net income of our banking operations divided
by average total assets of our banking operations.

(2) Return on equity 1is defined as net income of our banking operations divided
by average shareholders' equity of our banking operations.

(3) Equity to assets ratio is defined as average shareholders' equity of our
banking operations divided by average total assets of our banking

operations.
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TRADING AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The following table sets forth the book value of trading and investment

securities held by our banking operations by type of issuer. The allocation
between German and non-German components is based on the location of the issuer.

AT DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)

TRADING SECURITIES

GERMAN :

Federal and state government and government agency debt

FST S b i s e I = 8,267 4,225 1,651
Local government debt securities.............. ... 3,153 1,611 1,856
Corporate debt securities........c.iiiiiiiiiiienneneennn 35,326 29,892 20,933
Mortgage-backed securities.........ciiii .. 50 0 0
Equity securities. ...ttt ittt e e ettt 1,147 2,661 2,404
German Lotal. . vttt ittt ettt ettt e 47,943 38,389 26,844

NON-GERMAN :
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency debt

FST S0 i i e I = 802 610 1,855

Other government and official institution debt
FST S0 i e I = 29,509 22,477 13,991
Corporate debt securities........c.iiiiiii i enennnn 12,667 11,734 7,526
Mortgage-backed securities.........ciiiii .. 474 0 72
EqUuity securities. ..ttt ettt e e et e e 13,917 9,762 7,626
Non-German Lotal. ... et etineeeeeneeeeeeeeeneeaeeens 57,369 44,583 31,070
TOTAL TRADING SECURITIES. . ittt ittt ittt eeeeeeseeessansenseas 105,312 82,972 57,914

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE
GERMAN :
Federal and state government and government agency debt
FST S0 i e I = 6,691 7,030 7,510
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Local government debt securities...............io..o... 24,842 25,517 26,933
Corporate debt securities........c.iiiiii it enennnn. 21,566 24,196 23,540
Mortgage-backed and other debt securities.............. 63 73 118
Equity securities. ...ttt ittt i e et e eaeeenn 7,003 7,295 5,387
German Lotal. . vt ittt ittt ettt ettt et e 60,165 64,111 63,488
NON-GERMAN :
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agency debt
ST B il 453 916 575
Other government and official institution debt
FSE S i I e I = 6,884 6,467 6,454
Corporate debt securities........c.oiiiiiitiiiiennenennnn. 6,270 5,626 5,910
Mortgage-backed and other debt securities.............. 105 19 58
Equity securities. ...ttt ittt i e ettt 3,297 2,863 2,273
Non-German Lotal. ... et ettneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeaeeens 17,009 15,891 15,270
TOTAL SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE . ..t ittt it teeeeeonnennnas 77,174 80,002 78,758
114

AT DECEMBER 31,

SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY

GERMAN :
Mortgage-backed securities.........ciiii ... 301 219
German total. ...ttt ittt et e e e e e e 301 219

NON-GERMAN :
Other government and official institution debt

TS0 B il 558 593
Corporate debt securities........c.iiiiiiiiiiiineenennnn. 152 165
Non—-German total. ...t ie ittt et eeeeeeeaneeeeeens 710 758

TOTAL SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY . .t i ittt it v e teeeennnsensnas 1,011 977

At December 31, 2001, our banking operations held ordinary shares of Munich
Re that had a book value in excess of ten percent of the shareholders' equity of
our banking operations. The shareholders' equity of our banking operations was
approximately E21.8 billion at December 31, 2001. The aggregate book value and
market value of such ordinary shares were E2.7 billion at December 31, 2001.

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF DEBT INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The following table sets forth an analysis of the contractual maturity and
weighted average yields of our banking operations' debt investment securities.
Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturity dates because issuers may
have the right to call or prepay obligations. The allocation between German and
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non-German components is based on the location of the issuer.

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE
GERMAN :

Federal and state government and government agency

debt securities........c.i ittt
Local government debt securities
Corporate debt securities..........iiiiiiiiiee...
Mortgage-backed and other debt securities

German total. ...ttt ii ittt ettt et

NON-GERMAN :

U.S. Treasury and other U.S.
debt secuUrities. ... .ttt ittt ettt

government agency

Other government and official institution debt

SeCUrities. ittt e e
Corporate debt securities.......... it
Mortgage-backed and other debt securities
Non—-German total. ... ..t iiiiiinnneeeeeennnn

TOTAL SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD. ..ttt ittt ittt ittt itnnnnnennns

SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY
GERMAN :
Mortgage-backed securities

German Lotal. ...ttt ittt ettt et

NON-GERMAN :

Other government and official
TS Y Bl G il =

115

DUE IN
ONE YEAR
OR LESS

DUE IN
ONE YEAR
OR LESS

20

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001

DUE AFTER DUE AFTER
ONE YEAR FIVE YEARS
THROUGH THROUGH DUE
FIVE YEARS TEN YEARS TEN

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

3,686 949
15,266 5,231 1,
11,117 5,326

35 10

30,104 11,516 1,
70 56
2,985 2,428
1,754 477
60 —

4,869 2,961 1,
34,973 14,477 2,

5.2% 4.8%

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001

DUE AFTER DUE AFTER
ONE YEAR FIVE YEARS
THROUGH THROUGH DUE
FIVE YEARS TEN YEARS TEN

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

96 192
96 192
538 -
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Corporate debt securities.........iiiiiiiiiee... 16 136 -

Non-German total....... .. iiniinnennn. ____;; ___;;; ____:: N
TOTAL SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY.... et ii it it nnnnn ____;; ___;;6 ___1;; N
WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD. .. . ittt ittt ittt ittt tnenenenens ===Zf2% ===Zf2% ===Zf:% N

LOAN PORTFOLIO

The following table sets forth an analysis of our loan portfolio, excluding
allowances for loan losses, net of unearned income, according to the industry
sector of borrowers. The allocation between German and non-German components is
based on the location of the borrower.

AT DECEMBER 31,

GERMAN :
Corporate:
Manufacturing industry.............. 10,825 11,539 11,014 12,459 13,074
Construction.........ouiiiiennennnn. 1,813 2,042 2,228 3,378 3,417
Wholesale and retail trade.......... 7,165 7,419 7,555 9,988 9,495
Financial institutions (excluding
banks) and insurance companies.... 4,896 4,196 926 4,090 3,814
Banks. .o it e e e 517 601 2,342 628 142
Service providers..........oiii... 22,943 21,326 23,658 15,243 11,544
Other. ... i i i it i i 3,974 3,067 4,416 3,048 4,225
Corporate total......coiiinnn. 52,133 50,190 52,139 48,834 45,711
Public authorities............ ... 718 540 276 1,101 1,432
Private individuals (including self-
employed professionals) ............. 63,773 65,883 64,706 60,545 54,917
German total..........oiiiiiiiiiiinnn.n. 116,624 116,613 117,121 110,480 102,060

116
AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(E IN MILLIONS)
NON-GERMAN :
Corporate:
Manufacturing industry, wholesale
and retail trade, service
providers and construction........ 38,383 43,771 39,197 24,586 19,145
Financial institutions (excluding
banks) and insurance companies.... 10,285 10,166 8,100 7,379 10,472
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Corporate total.......coiiiinnn.
Public authorities............ ...
Private individuals...........coeeio...

Non-German total..........uuuiiiunenennon.

TOTAL LOANS . . . ittt ittt i e e e et e aeeens

The following table sets forth our banking operations'

finance leases that are included within the above analysis of loans.

MOTrtgage 10aNS . v v v v v vttt teeeeeeeeenneeeens
Finance l1easSeS . .u ittt eeeeeeeenneeeeeeens

LOAN CONCENTRATIONS

5,157 6,287 6,645 8,888 8,526
3,899 3,536 3,405 4,446 2,789
57,724 63,760 57,347 45,299 40,932
3,458 990 2,913 1,239 724
10,601 10,151 9,922 9,595 1,725
71,783 74,901 70,182 56,133 43,381
188,407 191,514 187,303 166,613 145,441
mortgage loans and
AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(E IN MILLIONS)
... 57,315 61,303 60,587 55,975 43,815
e 2,414 1,430 1,778 1,568 1,372

Although our loan portfolio is diversified across more than 145 countries,
at December 31, 2001 approximately 62% of our total loans were to borrowers in
Germany. At December 31, 2001, our largest credit exposures to borrowers in

Germany were loans to private individuals

(including self-employed

professionals) . Approximately two-thirds of these loans are residential mortgage

loans, which represent approximately 23% of our total loans.

mortgage loans include owner-occupied, single- and two-family homes and

apartment dwellings (approximately 81% of our residential mortgage loans)
investment properties (approximately 18% of our residential mortgage loans). Our
residential mortgage loans are well diversified across all German states.
remaining loans to private individuals in Germany primarily include other
consumer installment loans and loans to self-employed professionals, whic
also geographically diversified across Germany. We have no other concentrations
of loans to private individuals (including self-employed professionals) i
Germany in excess of ten percent of our total loans.

Our residential

and

Our

h are

n

Our corporate customer loan portfolio is broadly diversified. At December
31, 2001, approximately 12% of our total loans were to German corporate

customers in various services industries,

including hotels, rest

aurants,

transportation and education. However, none of those industries are individually
significant to our domestic loan portfolio and we have no concentrations of
loans to borrowers in any services industry in excess of ten percent of our

total loans.

117

At December 31, 2001, approximately 22% of our total loans were to
Such loans are diversified to

non-financial corporate borrowers outside Germany.

borrowers in the following regions:
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PERCENT OF
TOTAL LOANS

Europe (outside GeIrmMaNY) « v v v vttt i e e e ettt eeeeeeeaneeeeenns 12%
NOTrth AMErdCa. v vt ittt ettt e e e e ettt ettt e et e eaeeeeeeeanns 5%
SOULN AME T i Ca. t i it ittt et e e e e e et e et e ettt e 3%
ASIa/PaACI I i ittt it e e e e e e e e e e e e %

Those loans are well diversified across various commercial industries
including manufacturing of capital and consumer goods, natural resources,
utilities, retail and wholesale trade, real estate, services (including hotels,
restaurants, transportation and education), telecommunications, media,
technology and transportation. We have no concentrations of loans to
non-financial corporate borrowers in any industry in excess of ten percent of
our total loans.

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF LOAN PORTFOLIO
The following table sets forth an analysis of the contractual maturity of

our loans at December 31, 2001. The allocation between German and non-German
components is based on the location of the borrower.

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001

DUE AFTER
DUE IN ONE YEAR
ONE YEAR THROUGH DUE AFTER
OR LESS FIVE YEARS FIVE YEARS TOTAL

(E IN MILLIONS)

GERMAN :
Corporate:
Manufacturing industry.........oiiiiiiiieee... 6,348 2,506 1,971 10,82
(G103 21T il b T ks I o NP 995 363 455 1,81
Wholesale and retail trade..........cciiiiii... 4,161 1,672 1,332 7,16
Financial institutions (excluding banks) and
insurance companiesS......oeeeieeteeenneneenns 2,660 1,459 777 4,89
= 7= 0o 1< 166 297 54 51
Service pProvidersS. ... ..ottt e e 8,848 4,508 9,587 22,94
[ ol o T 2,013 984 977 3,97
Corporate total. ...ttt it eieeeeeennn 25,191 11,789 15,153 52,13
Public authorities. ...t ieennnnnnnn 498 117 103 71
Private individuals (including self-employed
Professionals) « vttt e e e e e 10,879 9,520 43,374 63,77
German total. ... ettt ittt eeeeneeeeeeeeennnnns 36,568 21,426 58, 630 116,62
118

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001
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DUE AFTER
DUE IN ONE YEAR
ONE YEAR THROUGH DUE AFTER
OR LESS FIVE YEARS FIVE YEARS TOTAL
(E IN MILLIONS)
NON-GERMAN :
Corporate:
Manufacturing industry, wholesale and retail
trade, service providers and construction.... 22,114 10,151 6,118 38, 38
Financial institutions (excluding banks) and
insurance companiesS......oeeeeeeeeenneneenns 365 5,633 4,287 10,28
BanK S . ottt e e e e 3,437 1,299 421 5,15
OLher . ot e e e e e e 1,432 1,414 1,053 3,89
Corporate total. ...ttt eiieeeeennn 27,348 18,497 11,879 57,72
Public authorities. ...ttt ittt it e ieenenn 2,929 299 230 3,45
Private individuals....... ... 2,611 3,100 4,890 10, 60
Non—-German total. ...t iit ittt eeeeeeneenennnns 32,888 21,896 16,999 71,78
TOTAL LOANS . & it ittt ettt et e e et e e e e ettt eeeeeeaenn 69,456 43,322 75,629 188,40
The following table sets forth the total amount of loans due after one year
with predetermined interest rates and floating or adjustable interest rates at
December 31, 2001. Loans with predetermined interest rates are loans for which
the interest rate is fixed for the entire term of the loan. All other loans are
considered floating or adjustable interest rate loans. The allocation between
German and non-German components is based on the location of the borrower.
AT DECEMBER 31, 2001
LOANS WITH
LOANS WITH FLOATING OR
PREDETERMINED ADJUSTABLE
INTEREST RATES INTEREST RATES TOTAL
(E IN MILLIONS)
[T (= o 71,741 8,315 80,05
A L o R €7 ol 11F= o Y 7,685 31,210 38,89
o= 79,426 39,525 118,95
119

RISK ELEMENTS
NONPERFORMING LOANS
The following table sets forth the outstanding balance of our nonperforming

loans. The allocation between German and non-German components is based on the
location of the borrower.
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AT DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(E IN MILLIONS)
NONACCRUAL LOANS:
LT (= 8,751 7,991 7,516 6,322 5,790
NON =G MAN 4 v e v e e e et e et e e e aetneeeeeeneeaeeeneean 2,404 1,928 1,618 443
Total nonaccrual 10aNS. ... uiie ettt enneeeeeeeannns 11,155 9,919 9,134 7,191 6,233
LOANS PAST DUE 90 DAYS AND STILL ACCRUING INTEREST:
LT (= 1,640 1,238 1,526 1,876 1,499
NON=GEIIMAN & « e e v v e e e e e e e e et eaaeeeeeseeaeeeeeseens 309 300 305 154
Total loans past due 90 days and still accruing
Interest. . i e e 1,949 1,538 1,831 2,072 1,653
TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURINGS:
[ 1= 215 253 261 350
NON=GEIIMAN « & e e v v v e e e e e e e et aeeeeeeseeaeeeeeseens 336 323 289 271
Total troubled debt restructurings............... 551 576 550 621

NONACCRUAL LOANS

Nonaccrual loans are loans on which interest income is no longer recognized
on an accrual basis and loans for which a specific provision is recorded for the
full amount of accrued interest receivable. We place loans on nonaccrual status
when we determine, based on management's judgement, that the payment of interest
or principal is doubtful.

When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, any accrued and unpaid interest
receivable is reversed and charged against interest income. We restore loans to
accrual status only when interest and principal are made current in accordance
with the contractual terms and, in management's judgement, future payments are
reasonably assured. When we have doubts about the ultimate collectibility of the
principal of a loan placed on nonaccrual status, all cash receipts are recorded
as reductions in principal. Once the recorded principal amount of the loan is
reduced to zero, future cash receipts are recognized as interest income. For all
remaining loans, interest income is recognized when received.

LOANS PAST DUE 90 DAYS AND STILL ACCRUING INTEREST

Loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest are loans that are
contractually past due 90 days or more as to principal or interest on which we
continue to recognize interest income on an accrual basis.

TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURINGS

Troubled debt restructurings are loans that we have restructured due to a
deterioration in the borrower's financial position and in relation to which, for
economic or legal reasons related to the borrower's deteriorated financial
position, we have granted a concession to the borrower that we would not have
otherwise granted.
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Interest Income on Nonperforming Loans

The following table sets forth the gross interest income that would have
been recorded during the year ended December 31, 2001 on nonaccrual loans and
troubled debt restructurings if such loans had been current in accordance with
their original contractual terms and the interest income on such loans that was
actually included in interest income during the year ended December 31, 2001.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

IN IN
GERMAN NON-GERMAN
OFFICES OFFICES

(E IN MILLIONS)

Interest income that would have been recorded in accordance
with the original contractual terms...........cueeeeeene... 561 202
Interest income actually recorded........i.oiiitiiieeneenennnsn 69 36

POTENTIAL PROBLEM LOANS

Potential problem loans are loans that are not classified as nonaccrual
loans, loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest or as troubled debt
restructurings, but where known information about possible credit problems
causes us to have serious doubts as to the ability of the borrower to comply
with the present loan repayment terms and which may result in classifying the
loans in one of the three categories of nonperforming loans described above. The
outstanding balance of our potential problem loans was E2,876 million at
December 31, 2001.

Each of our potential problem loans has been subject to our normal credit
monitoring and review procedures. Of these loans, approximately E1,071 million
have a specific loss allowance. The remaining loans have also been reviewed for
impairment, however, based on our estimated measurement of the impairment, no
specific loss allowance has been recorded on such loans.

Approximately 10% of our potential problem loans are to private individuals
in Germany. The remaining loans are to corporate borrowers in manufacturing,
wholesale and retail trade, service and other industry sectors. Our potential
problem loans to corporate borrowers are diversified across the following
geographic regions:

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001
PERCENT OF
TOTAL POTENTIAL
PROBLEM LOANS

[T 11T 1/ 52%
Europe (outside GermManNy) « v v v vttt i e e ettt eeeeeeeaneeeeenns 14%
NOTth AMEriCa. v vttt it ettt e e e e e et e et ettt e eeeeeeeeeennn 12%
ASIa/PaACI I i ittt ittt e e e e e e e e e e e 8%

2001

763
105
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FOREIGN OUTSTANDINGS

Cross-border outstandings consist of loans, net of allowances for loan
losses, accrued interest receivable, acceptances, interest-bearing deposits with
other banks, other interest-bearing investments and other monetary assets that
either are recorded in an office that is not in the same country as the domicile
of the borrower, guarantor, issuer or counter-party, or are denominated in a
currency that is not the local currency of the borrower, guarantor, issuer or
counter-party or are net local country claims. Net local country claims are
domestic claims recorded in offices outside Germany that are denominated in
local or foreign currency and that are not funded by liabilities in the same
currency as the claim and recorded in the same office.

121

Our cross-border outstandings are allocated by country based on the country
of domicile of the borrower, guarantor, issuer or counter-party of the ultimate
credit risk. At head-office level we set limits on and monitor actual
cross—border outstandings on a country-by-country basis based on transfer,
economic and political risks.

The following table sets forth our cross-border outstandings by geographic
location for countries that exceeded 0.75% of the total assets of our banking
operations. At December 31, 2001, there were no cross-border outstandings that
exceeded 0.5% of the total assets of our banking operations in any country
currently facing debt restructurings or liquidity problems that we expect would
materially impact the borrowers' ability to repay their obligations.

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001

GOVERNMENT BANKS AND NET LOCAL TOTAL
AND OFFICIAL FINANCIAL COUNTRY CROSS—-BORDER
INSTITUTIONS INSTITUTIONS OTHER (1) CLAIMS OUTSTANDINGS

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

COUNTRY

United States......... 1,266 8,200 7,135 1,178 17,779
United Kingdom........ 354 9,472 2,495 - 12,321
FrancCe......eeeeeee... 556 6,834 4,020 - 11,410
ITtaly.we oo i, 11,320 1,344 361 1,088 14,113
Netherlands........... 1,408 4,561 2,105 - 8,074
JAPAN . ¢ e e et 361 1,334 422 644 2,761
Switzerland........... 86 2,995 1,887 -— 4,968
Luxembourg. ........... 5 3,415 441 - 3,861
Spain.........oii... 2,509 1,530 1,004 32 5,075
Cayman Islands........ - 2,624 719 - 3,343

AT DECEMBER 31, 2000

GOVERNMENT BANKS AND NET LOCAL TOTAL
AND OFFICIAL FINANCIAL COUNTRY CROSS—-BORDER
INSTITUTIONS INSTITUTIONS OTHER (1) CLAIMS OUTSTANDINGS
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(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT

)

O O O F O F NDNWD

PERC
OF TC
ASSET

COUNTRY
United States......... 1,130 11,944 6,632 1,421 21,127
United Kingdom........ 216 12,398 2,891 - 15,505
FranCe......eeeeenennn. 730 6,454 3,513 - 10,697
Ttaly e e e e e e e eeen 6,548 3,098 314 77 10,037
Netherlands........... 1,131 4,809 2,510 - 8,450
JAPAN . ¢ e e ettt 966 2,316 424 696 4,402
Switzerland........... 116 3,531 2,181 455 6,283
Luxembourg. ........... 5 2,236 526 —— 2,767
Spain....eee .. 2,281 1,430 712 182 4,605
Cayman Islands........ —— 2,283 642 —— 2,925
122
AT DECEMBER 31, 1999
GOVERNMENT BANKS AND NET LOCAL TOTAL
AND OFFICIAL FINANCIAL COUNTRY CROSS—-BORDER
INSTITUTIONS INSTITUTIONS OTHER (1) CLAIMS OUTSTANDINGS
(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

COUNTRY
United States......... 1,059 8,069 3,977 1,493 14,598
United Kingdom........ 470 10,402 2,322 26 13,220
FranCe......eeeeenennn. 532 6,036 3,364 - 9,932
Ttaly e e e e ee e e eeen 6,324 1,176 284 - 7,784
Netherlands........... 695 3,181 1,681 - 5,557
JaPAN . ¢ v v ettt 1,599 997 620 663 3,879
Switzerland........... 81 2,209 1,196 59 3,545
Luxembourg. ........... 5 1,050 234 3 1,292
Spain....eeeeeeenee.. 1,577 1,126 668 111 3,482
Cayman Islands........ —— 2,303 943 —— 3,246

(1) Other includes insurance, commercial, industrial, service providers and
other corporate counter-parties.

(2) Percent of total assets is defined as total cross-border outstandings
divided by total assets of our banking operations. The total assets of our
banking operations were E526 billion and E501 billion and E414 billion at
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(3) Cross—-border commitments have been presented separately as they are not
included as cross-border outstandings unless utilized.

At December 31, 2001, total cross-border outstandings disclosed above
included E668 million and E114 million of gross loans outstanding to borrowers
in the United States that are also disclosed within the categories of
nonperforming loans and potential problem loans, respectively.

SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE
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We establish allowances for loan losses in our loan portfolio that
represent our management's estimate of probable losses in the portfolio at the

balance sheet date.

— Specific loss allowances.

The components of these allowances are:

A specific loss allowance 1is established to

provide for specifically identified counter-party risks. Loans are
identified as impaired if it is probable that borrowers are no longer
able to make their contractually agreed-upon interest and principal

payments.

Specific allowances are established for impaired loans. The

amount of the impairment is measured based on the present value of
expected future cash flows or based on the fair value of the collateral
if the loan is collateralized and foreclosure is probable. If the amount
of the impairment subsequently increases or decreases due to an event
occurring after the initial measurement of impairment, a change in the
allowance is recognized in earnings by a charge or a credit to net loan
loss provisions.

— General loss allowances.

General loss allowances are established to

provide for incurred but unidentified losses that are inherent in the
loan portfolio as of the relevant balance sheet date. General allowances
for loan losses are established for loans not specifically identified as

impaired.

The amount of the allowance is based on historical loss

experience and management's evaluation of the loan portfolio under
current events and economic conditions.

- Country risk allowances.
transfer risk.

borrower in a certain country to repay
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Country risk allowances are established for
Transfer risk is a measure of the likely ability of a

its foreign currency-denominated debt in light of the economic or
political situation prevailing in that country. Cou
are based on our country rating system that incorporates current and

historical economic,

risk profile.

ntry risk allowances

political and other data to categorize countries by

The following table sets forth an analysis of the specific loan loss

by industry sector and geographic category of the borrowers, and the
of our total loan portfolio accounted for by those industry and
categories, on the dates specified. The allocation between German and
components is based on the location of the borrower.

allowances
percentage
geographic
non—German

GERMAN :
Corporate:

PERCENT
OF TOTAL
LOANS
IN EACH
CATEGORY
TO TOTAL
AMOUNT LOANS

AMOUNT

AT DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999
PERCENT PERCENT
OF TOTAL OF TOTAL
LOANS LOANS
IN EACH IN EACH
CATEGORY CATEGORY
TO TOTAL TO TOTAL
LOANS AMOUNT LOANS

(E IN MILLIONS,

EXCEPT
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Manufacturing industry.....
Construction...............
Wholesale and retail

Financial institutions
(excluding banks) and

Corporate total............

Public authorities.........

Private individuals
(including self-employed
professionals)...........

German total...............

NON-GERMAN :
Corporate:

Manufacturing industry,
wholesale and retail
trade, service providers
and construction.........

Financial institutions
(excluding banks) and

Corporate total............
Public authorities.........
Private individuals........

Non-German total...........
TOTAL SPECIFIC LOAN LOSS
ALLOWANCES . & v it i it i et e e e e e as
COUNTRY RISK ALLOWANCES.......
GENERAL LOSS ALLOWANCES.......

TOTAL LOAN LOSS ALLOWANCES....

[e¢] [@INEN]
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oe

N W o

o° o o o
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oe

oe

= 3 o

o° o o
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o° o o

oe

oe

687
381

506

998

.0% 840 5.9%
1% 389 1.2%
.9% 585 4.0%
2% 110 0.5%
.3% - 1.3%
1% 887 12.6%
.6% 130 2.4%
2% 2,941 27.9%
.3% 1 0.1%
4% 1,342 34.6%
9% 4,284 62.6%
9% 1,183 20.9%
3% 107 4.3%
3% 142 3.5%
8% 85 1.8%
3% 1,517 30.5%
5% 30 1.6%
3% 231 5.3%
1% 1,778 37.4%
0% 6,062 100.0%

659

386

7,107

The following table sets forth the movements in the loan loss allowance
according to the industry sector and geographic category of the borrower. The
allocation between German and non-German components is based on the location of

the borrower.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS)
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TOTAL ALLOWANCES FOR LOAN LOSSES AT BEGINNING OF THE

GROSS CHARGE-OFFS:

GERMAN :
Corporate:
Manufacturing industry.......o oottt 66 211 71 47 46
(G703 o ¥=3 o) i ¥ o o 16 53 33 11 8
Wholesale and retail trade........ciiiiiinnnnn. 54 163 71 26 44
Financial institutions (excluding banks) and
Insurance ComPaNieS . ...ttt et ettt enneeeeeeeenns 17 19 4 1 2
Service ProvidersS. ...ttt ittt ettt 103 131 82 78 39
L o8 o L 16 36 5 5 20
Corporate total. ...ttt ettt et 272 613 266 168 159
Public authorities...... ...ttt eeeennn. - 1 - - -
Private individuals (including self-employed
Professionals) v ittt it e e e e e e e 211 337 173 115 90
German LoTal. ...t ittt ettt et et ettt e e 483 951 439 283 249
NON-GERMAN :
Corporate:
Manufacturing industry, wholesale and retail trade,
service providers and construction............... 516 594 93 116 78
Financial institutions (excluding banks) and
Insurance CoOmMPaNIieS . ..ttt et e et enneeeeeeeenns 23 48 6 5 35
= 7= 0o 1 13 14 19 3 18
L o8 o L 2 72 1 4 9
Corporate total....v.i ittt ittt et 554 728 119 128 140
Private individuals........i ittt iineeneeneennn 49 32 9 11 4
Non-German total. ...ttt ii ittt teeeeeeeeeenneeeeens 603 760 128 139 144
TOTAL GROSS CHARGE-OFFE S . . @ittt i it it ittt i it eeenn 1,086 1,711 567 422 393
125
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(E IN MILLIONS)
RECOVERIES:
GERMAN :
Corporate:
Manufacturing industry.......oo ettt 1 9 1 1 4
(G703 o ¥=3 o) i o o S - - 1 - 1
Wholesale and retail trade.........iiiiiinnnn. - - 1 - 3
Financial institutions (excluding banks) and
Insurance CoOmMPaANIieS . vt ittt et e eeenneeeeeeeenns - - - - 1
Service ProvidersS. ...ttt ittt e - - 10 1 3
L o8 o L < - - - 1 1
Corporate total....v.i ittt ittt ettt 1 9 13 3 13
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Private individual (including self-employed
Professionals) vttt it e e e e e e e 25 21 17 17 10

(€T 11 o T w o i 26 30 30 20 23

NON-GERMAN :

Corporate:
Manufacturing industry, wholesale and retail trade,
service providers and construction............... 3 1 1 3 6
Financial institutions (excluding banks) and
Insurance ComPaNieS . ...ttt et ettt enneeeeeeeenns 7 - - - 3
BanK S . vttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 1 - - 1
[ i o L O 2 1 - 37 -
Corporate total. ...ttt ettt et 16 3 1 40 10
Public authorities...... ...ttt eeeennn. - 1 - - -
Private individuals........i ittt iinenneeneennn 6 2 5 6 -
Non-German total. ...ttt ittt tteeeeeeeeeneeeeenns 22 6 6 46 10
TOTAL RECOVERIES. &t it ittt ittt ettt ittt ieeenenn 48 36 36 66 33
NET CHARGE=OFF S . ittt ittt ettt et eeeeeeneaeeeeseeennnnnees 1,038 1,675 531 356 360
Additions to allowances charged to operations........... 1,901 1,595 1,237 1,024 749
Increase in allowances due to mergers and acquisitions
and other increases/ (deCreasesS) v vt n e e e eeeeeeeennenn 12 41 158 555 ——
Foreign exchange translation adjustments................ 40 55 112 (47) 23
TOTAL ALLOWANCES FOR LOAN LOSSES AT END OF THE YEAR..... 8,038 7,123 7,107 6,131 4,955

RATIO OF NET CHARGE-OFFS DURING THE YEAR TO AVERAGE
LOANS OUTSTANDING DURING THE YEAR.......oiuitiiinennn.n 0.46% 0.78% 0.27% 0.15% 0.18%

When we determine that a loan is uncollectible, the loan is charged off
against any existing specific loss allowance or directly recognized as expense
in the income statement. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are recognized in the
income statement as a credit to the net loan loss provisions. Since 2000, we
have charged off loans when, based on management's judgement, all economically
sensible means of recovery have been exhausted. Our determination considers
information such as the age of specific loss allowances and expected proceeds
from liquidation of collateral and other repayment sources. Prior to 2000, we
charged off loans only when all legal means of recovery had been exhausted, for
example only after completion of bankruptcy
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proceedings. The change in practice has affected both the timing and amount of
charge-offs since 2000.

DEPOSITS

The following table sets forth the average balances and the average
interest rates on deposit categories in excess of ten percent of average total
deposits of our banking operations. The allocation between German and non-German
components is based on the location of the office that recorded the transaction.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
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AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAC
BALANCE RATE BALANCE RATE BALANCE RATE

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

IN GERMAN OFFICES:
Non-interest-bearing demand

deposSitS .ttt e e e 1,854 1,874 3,323
Interest-bearing demand deposits..... 31,608 1.5% 33,849 2.1% 46,377 1.4%
Savings deposits. ...t 10,352 3.4% 14,457 2.6% 15,570 2.4%
Time deposits. vttt 128,749 3.6% 91,686 3.3% 68,741 2.7%

German total.......iiiiiiieneennnnnnns 172,563 141,866 134,011
IN NON-GERMAN OFFICES:
Non-interest-bearing demand

deposSitS .ttt e e e e 6,098 8,405 7,807
Interest-bearing demand deposits..... 11,351 3.8% 10,392 4.2% 10,040 3.2%
Savings deposits........iiiiiiiii.. 1,073 3.9% 612 3.1% 1,225 4.0%
Time deposits. vttt 57,432 5.3% 44,358 7.5% 33,720 8.8%

Non-German total........uiiiiineennnnn 75,954 63,767 52,792
TOTAL DEPOSTITS . i ittt ettt eeeeeenneeeenns 248,517 205,633 186,803

The aggregate amount of deposits by foreign depositors in our German
offices was E63,663 million, E55,263 million and E42,999 million at December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

TIME DEPOSITS

The following table sets forth the balance of time certificates of deposit
and other time deposits in the amount of E100,000 or more issued by our German
offices by time remaining to maturity at December 31, 2001.

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001
TIME DEPOSITS OF
E100,000 OR MORE

(E IN MILLIONS)

Maturing in three months oOor lesSsS......uiuiiiiii i, 61,236
Maturing in over three months through six months............ 6,872
Maturing in over six months through twelve months........... 5,033
Maturing in over twelve months........... ..., 19,110
0 = 92,251

The amount of time deposits of E100,000 or more issued by our non-German
offices was E45,166 million at December 31, 2001.
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SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings are borrowings with an original maturity of one year
or less. Short-term borrowings are included within liabilities to customers,
liabilities to banks and certificated liabilities. Securities sold under
agreement to repurchase and negotiable certificates of deposit are the only
significant categories of short-term borrowings of our banking operations.

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the
categories of our short-term borrowings.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(E IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT %)

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT:

Balance at the end of the year....... . ... 56,354 60,648
Monthly average balance outstanding during the year....... 76,875 54,102
Maximum balance outstanding at any period-end during the

DTS 102,587(1) 68,950(1)
Weighted average interest rate during the year............ 4.3% 4.7%
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NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT:

Balance at the end of the year....... ... 30,268 28,552
Monthly average balance outstanding during the year....... 28,718 28,009
Maximum balance outstanding at any period-end during the

ST 30,518(2) 28,552(2)
Weighted average interest rate during the year............ 5.0% 5.7%

o+
oy
()

=
()
QO
[a]
w
[
oe
[
fiIsy
oe

(1) The maximum balance outstanding at any period-end during the year was
derived from the maximum balance outstanding at any month-end, based on the
unconsolidated balances of Dresdner Bank AG, its branch operations and
significant subsidiaries, and certain other banking subsidiaries of Allianz.

(2) The maximum balance outstanding at any period-end during the year was
derived from the maximum balance outstanding at any quarter-end, based on
the consolidated balances of our banking operations.

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
GENERAL

Our insurance, banking and asset management businesses are subject to
detailed, comprehensive regulation and supervision in all the countries in which
we do business. In addition, certain EU directives and regulations, which are
implemented through local legislation in EU member states, have had and will
continue to have a significant impact on the regulation of the insurance,
banking and asset management industries in EU member states, including those in
which many of our most important flagship operations are located, such as
Germany, France, Italy and the United Kingdom. The following discussion
addresses significant aspects of the regulatory schemes in these countries.

38,217
45,015

51,307 (2)
4.0%

w
w
oe

26,268
25,027

26,268(2)
3.8%

)]
~J
oe
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ALLIANZ AG

Allianz AG operates as a reinsurer and holding company for our insurance,
banking and asset management operating entities. Our insurance, banking and
asset management operating entities in Germany are extensively supervised and
regulated by the German Federal Institution for Financial Services Supervision
(the Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht, or BAFin), a federal
authority that monitors and enforces regulatory standards for German insurers,
banks and other credit institutions, asset management companies and other
financial services institutions. The BAFin was formed by merging the German
Federal Banking Supervisory Authority (the Bundesaufsichtsamt fur das
Kreditwesen), the German Federal Insurance Supervisory Authority (the
Bundesaufsichtsamt fur das Versicherungswesen) and the German Federal Securities
Supervisory Authority (the Bundesaufsichtsamt fur den Wertpapierhandel) into a
single German federal agency on May 1, 2002. The BAFin is an independent federal
authority that reports to and is supervised by the Federal Ministry of Finance.

As a reinsurer and holding company, Allianz AG is not subject to direct
insurance supervisory regulation in Germany applicable to primary insurers.
Reinsurance companies are not required to be licensed as such in Germany. The
BAFin regulates reinsurance activities mainly through its supervision of
reinsurance programs that are submitted by direct insurers. In addition, the
BAFin can require the establishment of deposits by a reinsurance company, a
reduction in the share of business ceded to another reinsurer or the termination
of reinsurance treaties. Allianz AG is subject to regulation as an insurance
holding company and is required to submit its annual report and statutory
quarterly reports to the BAFin. The BAFin also reviews transactions between
Allianz AG and its subsidiaries, including reinsurance relationships and cost
sharing agreements. In addition, Allianz AG's reinsurance activities are subject
to the German Insurance Supervision Act and to regulation by the BAFin in areas
such as financial accounting. Allianz AG is currently not subject to regulatory
restrictions with respect to the investment of its assets, including assets held
to cover its reinsurance liabilities. A German legislative initiative (the 4.
Finanzmarktforderungsgesetz, or Fourth Financial Markets Promotion Act) expected
to be implemented in July 2002 and to take effect, with respect to reinsurance
in 2005, proposes stronger supervision for reinsurance companies with regard to
investment of assets, requiring consideration of appropriate diversification and
mixing of risks while taking into account the individual circumstances of the
particular insurance company and its financial situation, capital allocation and
group structure.

GROUP SOLVENCY REQUIREMENTS

An EU directive implemented into German law with effect for the reporting
year 2001 requires that Allianz AG establish appropriate internal controls to
ensure solvency sufficient to cover all of the Group's insurance liabilities and
that Allianz AG inform the BAFin annually of intra-group transactions and
promptly after any such transaction endangering that solvency. The law requires
that Allianz AG calculate the capital needed to meet the respective solvency
requirements for the Group's insurance companies on a consolidated basis. IAS
accounting may be used as a basis for the calculation. Similar group solvency
requirements are required to be fulfilled by the local parent companies of
insurance subsidiary groups in the different EU jurisdictions.

Two directives have been issued in the EU, the solvency ratio directive and
the capital adequacy directive, with the aim of establishing a harmonised
European banking market by defining one regulatory standard for all institutions
offering banking services. The directives were implemented into German law in
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1993 and 1998, respectively. They define the capital requirements that a bank
has to meet in order to ensure solvency sufficient to cover the bank's market
and credit risks associated with banking and trading book activities.
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FINANCIAL CONGLOMERATES

In the EU and in individual EU member states, ongoing discussions are being
held relating to the regulation and supervision of financial conglomerates. The
EU has proposed a directive that proposes assessment of the solvency of a
financial conglomerate on the group level, supervision of risk concentration and
intra-group transactions and prevention of double-leveraging of the capital of
the holding or parent company, i.e. once in the holding or parent company and a
second time in the subsidiary ("double gearing"). The directive is expected to
be adopted in 2002 and implemented into German law in 2005. The Allianz Group is
a financial conglomerate within the meaning of this directive.

In the United States, the recently enacted Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial
Modernization Act of 1999 substantially eliminates barriers separating the
banking, insurance and securities industries in the United States. The
legislation allows the formation of diversified financial services firms that
can provide a broad array of financial products and services to their customers.
In addition, the legislation permits insurers and other financial services
companies to acquire banks, and expands permitted banking activities to
encompass the insurance business.

INSURANCE
EUROPEAN UNION

Under the Treaty of Rome of 1957, Germany and the other member states of
the EU are required to implement EU legislation into domestic law and to take EU
legislation into account in applying domestic law. EU legislation can take a
number of forms. EU regulations have general application and are binding in
their entirety and directly applicable in all member states. EU directives are
binding on member states, whose authorities may choose the form and method of
their implementation. In addition, certain "self-executing" directives are
directly binding on member states, although they still require formal
implementation in national legislation.

Since 1973, the EU has adopted a series of insurance directives on life
insurance and direct insurance other than life insurance. These directives have
been implemented in Germany, France, Italy, the United Kingdom, Austria and the
other EU jurisdictions through national legislation and have resulted in
significant deregulation of the EU insurance markets. The directives are based
on the general principles of freedom of branch operations, freedom of provision
of services and home country control. Under the directives, the regulation of
insurance companies, including insurance operations outside their respective
home countries (whether direct or through branches), is the responsibility of
the home country insurance regulatory authority. In particular, the home country
insurance regulatory authority is responsible for monitoring compliance with
applicable regulations, the solvency and actuarial reserves of insurers and the
assets supporting those reserves.

As a result of the home country control principle, the EU insurance
directives generally permit an insurance company licensed in any Jjurisdiction of
the EU to conduct insurance activities, directly or through branches, in all
other jurisdictions of the EU, without being subject to additional licensing
requirements. Under the EU insurance directives, there is no authorization
procedure to regulate insurance terms and conditions or tariffs. Insurance
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selling activities, however, are regulated by the regulatory authorities in the
country in which the sale of the insurance product takes place. In addition,
insurers are required to submit reports to the regulatory authorities in
jurisdictions outside their home country regarding qualifying shareholders (as
defined below), and other matters such as general and specific policy terms and
conditions, premiums and technical reserves. The EU insurance directives are not
applicable to state-supported export credit insurance and certain types of
mandatory social services insurance.
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The EU insurance directives generally prohibit an insurance company from
conducting both non-life and life insurance activities. However, life insurance
companies that conducted non-life insurance activities in EU member states prior
to March 5, 1979, including some of our subsidiaries, may continue to conduct
these activities without restriction. In addition, member states may permit life
insurance companies to write personal accident and health insurance policies, or
insurance companies authorized to write personal accident and health insurance
policies to write life insurance policies.

The EU insurance directives impose certain disclosure requirements on life
insurance companies and permit member states to require that life insurance
companies report the technical bases for the calculation of premiums and
technical reserves. Premiums for new business must be appropriate to cover a
life insurance company's benefit obligations and to provide for a sufficient
level of reserves. With respect to the calculation of reserves, the directives
allow member states the option to choose between a maximum interest rate of 60%
of the average return on government bonds, or a mixed rate determined on the
basis of existing capital investments in combination with a rate set in relation
to the insurer's future obligations by the regulatory authority of the relevant
member state.

GERMANY
General

German insurance companies, including the companies in our German
Property-Casualty Group, our credit insurance companies, our life insurance
companies and our health insurance companies, are subject to a comprehensive
system of regulation under the German Insurance Supervision Act. The BAFin
monitors and enforces compliance with German insurance laws, applicable
accounting standards, technical administrative regulations, and investment and
solvency provisions. Any change in the articles of association and all material
changes in the business plan of a German insurance company must be approved, and
the books and records of German insurance companies are subject to examination
at any time, by the BAFin.

Under the Insurance Supervision Act, German insurance companies are subject
to detailed requirements with respect to the administration of their assets and
liabilities. In general, the actuarial and claims reserves of each insurer must
be adequate to allow the insurer to fulfill its contractual commitments to pay
upon receipt of claims. Toward this end, insurers must maintain a minimum
solvency margin and a guarantee fund equal to one third of the solvency margin.
German property-casualty insurance companies are also required to establish
claims equalization reserves according to established actuarial rules. These
claims equalization reserves, which are intended to level out fluctuating claims
requirements over the course of time, are estimated on a case-by-case basis.
German law limits the proportion of assets which German insurers may invest in
certain categories of investments and imposes restrictions with respect to
particular investments.
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New insurance products and policies may be offered in Germany without prior
approval of the BAFin. Insurers must file a description of new products and
policies, and the BAFin may require the modification of terms and conditions or
the withdrawal from the market or modification of any contract that does not
comply with applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the terms of all
health insurance policies are subject to German consumer protection and other
legislation. These provisions, which have been in effect in Germany since the
implementation of EU insurance directives in 1994, have substantially
deregulated the Group's property-casualty business in Germany.

Life Insurance

Under German law, German life insurance companies are required to notify
the BAFin of the principles they use to set premium rates and establish
actuarial provisions, and of any intention
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to alter or amend these principles. German life insurance companies are also
required to appoint a chief actuary responsible for reviewing and ensuring the
appropriateness of actuarial calculation methods. The chief actuary is subject
to direct supervision by the BAFin.

Additional restrictions apply to the investment of German life insurance
company assets. The BAFin closely monitors the calculation of actuarial reserves
and the allocation of assets covering actuarial reserves. Assets covering
actuarial reserves are also monitored by an independent trustee supervised by
the BAFin. The BAFin may issue supplemental instructions to an insurer if deemed
necessary to safeguard the interests of policyholders.

Amounts payable to policyholders at the maturity of endowment policies
underwritten by German life insurance companies include a "guaranteed benefit,"
an amount established by reference to a legally mandated maximum rate of return
on actuarial reserves. This rate is currently 3.25% per year for policies issued
on or after July 1, 2000. For policies issued through June 30, 2000, the maximum
rate of return is 4.0% per annum. On policies written through 1994, German life
insurance companies are obliged by regulations to allocate for the benefit of
policyholders at least 90% of their annual surplus. In 1994 and 1996, the laws
and the regulations, respectively, were modified, and on policies written since
June 30, 1994 and thereafter, German life insurance companies are obliged by the
modified regulations to allocate for the benefit of policyholders at least 90%
of their net interest yield on assets corresponding to technical reserves. In
addition, holders of policies written in 1995 and thereafter are entitled to
participate in "appropriate amounts" of profit from sources other than assets.
The amount required to be allocated to policyholders may be used to directly
increase a policyholder's profit participation or to contribute to the
policyholder's profit reserve. In no case may this amount be transferred to
shareholders. In the event of an overall loss, the insurer may use the
policyholder profit reserve to cover the loss with the approval of the BAFin.
The profit reserve is accordingly included in the calculation of the life
insurer's solvency margin.

On January 1, 2002, a new law (the Altersvermogensgesetz) took effect that
is intended to reform the pension system in Germany. The Altersvermogensgesetz
provides for state subsidies, in the form of either direct subsidies or, under
certain circumstances, tax benefits. The prerequisite for state subsidies is
that the underlying products contain certain characteristics entitled to
certification by the BAFin. The main characteristic is that at least the amount
that has been paid in premiums is available at maturity and that life-long
benefit payments be guaranteed. Administration costs of the certified products
may be high due to the complex state subsidy process. The Altersvermogensgesetz
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also intends to foster company old-age provision. As of January 1, 2002,
employees are entitled by law to request that parts of their compensation be
converted into company old-age provision. The new law and the regulations
promulgated thereunder permit the establishment of pension funds (Pensionsfonds)
as new means of company old-age provision. These pension funds are under the
supervision of BAFin.

Health Insurance

We offer "substitutive" health insurance products in Germany designed to
partially or totally replace statutory public health insurance coverage. We also
offer products intended to supplement both the statutory and substitutive
schemes. These products are subject to detailed regulations designed to protect
policyholders.

In general, the core products of German health insurance companies,
including comprehensive health insurance, daily sickness and hospital daily
allowance insurance, are regulated by the BAFin. German law also requires that
private health insurance companies offer certain kinds of health insurance,
including private compulsory long-term care insurance, to policyholders with
substitutive health insurance.

German health insurance companies are required to appoint and register a
chief actuary and an independent trustee with the BAFin. Premiums are calculated
in accordance with established

132

actuarial and legal principles and are required to provide an adequate reserve
for the increased likelihood of poor health in old age. While health insurance
policies may provide for premium increases to cover inflation and the increased
costs of medical treatment and other developments, specific premium adjustments
must be approved by an independent trustee.

German health insurance companies are required to allocate for the benefit
of policyholders at least 80% of their annual statutory profit as a reserve for
premium subsidies or rebates. The relevant regulations also specify the amount
of the surplus to be used to limit premium increases for insureds in higher age
brackets. Since the beginning of 2000, we have also been required by law to
return 90% of our surplus from capital investments to our policyholders. Due to
strong competition in the German health insurance sector, the average profit
participation for health policyholders has exceeded 90% of the overall statutory
profit in recent years.

FRANCE

The activities of French insurance companies including AGF are governed by
the French Insurance Code and supervised and licensed by the French Ministry of
the Economy and the Commission de Controle des Assurances (or the Insurance
Commission). The Insurance Commission is an independent administrative authority
that supervises the financial condition and solvency of French insurance
companies and their compliance with applicable insurance regulations, including
statutory accounting principles and financial and technical management
regulations. French insurers are required to make periodic filings of financial,
accounting and statistical statements with the Insurance Commission. Any change
in the articles of association of French insurance companies must also be
approved by the Insurance Commission. The Insurance Commission may examine the
accounts of French insurance companies at any time. French insurance companies
may not engage on an ongoing basis in any commercial activity other than that of
providing insurance coverage and directly related activities.
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French insurance companies are subject to a number of requirements with
respect to the administration of their assets and liabilities. With respect to
liabilities, actuarial and claims reserves must be adequate to allow the insurer
to fulfill contractual commitments to pay claims upon receipt. French law also
prescribes a minimum solvency margin and requires the maintenance of a guarantee
fund. French insurance companies may invest assets that support actuarial and
claims reserves generally only in debt securities, equity securities and shares
of mutual funds, real estate, mortgage loans, certain government-guaranteed
loans and certain other loans and deposits. French law limits the proportion of
assets that French insurers may invest in certain categories of investments and
imposes restrictions with respect to particular investments.

French life insurers are obligated by law to allocate for the benefit of
policyholders (other than holders of contracts supported by separate accounts
and term policies) at least 85% of annual investment results on assets
attributable to such policyholders, plus at least 90% of other profits. Amounts
allocated must be credited to policyholders within eight years but otherwise can
be credited at the insurer's discretion. The allocation generally takes the form
of an increase in guaranteed benefits but may also take the form of a reduction
of future premiums.

New insurance products and policies may be offered in France by either a
French or foreign insurer without obtaining prior approval. However, the
Ministry of the Economy may require submission of contracts or advertising
materials relating to the insurance business. The Ministry of the Economy may
also require the withdrawal from the market or the modification of any contract
or advertising material which, in its judgment, does not comply with applicable
laws and regulations.
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ITALY

Italian insurance companies including our major subsidiaries RAS and Lloyd
Adriatico are subject to a comprehensive regulatory scheme contained in the
Supervision of Insurance Act and supplemented by numerous other regulations and
ordinances. These laws and regulations regulate access to insurance activities,
require the maintenance of certain solvency margins, in part through a guarantee
fund, determine the form of financial statements for insurance concerns and
regulate the activities of insurance intermediaries.

The activities of Italian insurance companies, insurance agents and brokers
are regulated by the Institute for the Supervision of Private and Public
Interest Insurance, known by its Italian acronym ISVAP. ISVAP is also
responsible for the supervision of the financial management of Italian insurance
companies. In addition, ISVAP grants authorization to companies to conduct
insurance activities and has the authority to propose disciplinary measures,
including the revocation of authorizations, which may ultimately be taken by the
Ministry of Industry. ISVAP has the power to request information from insurance
companies, conduct audits of their activities and question their legal
representatives, managing directors and statutory auditors and convene
shareholders, directors and statutory auditors meetings in order to propose
measures necessary to conform the management of insurance companies to legal
requirements. Insurance companies having their registered offices in Italy must
receive prior authorization by ISVAP in order to operate life or non-life
insurance activities.

All Italian insurance companies are required to maintain adequate technical
reserves in respect of each insurance contract. ISVAP determines the interest
rate for calculation of required life reserves. Italian law also establishes
maximum limits on the amount of reserves that may be invested in any particular
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category of investments. ISVAP may establish stricter limits under some
circumstances. In addition, ISVAP may prohibit companies that do not comply with
reserve requirements from disposing of their assets located in Italy and from
accepting new business.

Italian insurance companies are required to observe a solvency margin
calculated in accordance with a formula that varies depending on the types of
insurance that they underwrite. In cases where the solvency margin is less than
the guarantee fund, ISVAP may require a company to prepare and implement a
short-term financing plan in order to bring it into compliance with the
applicable requirements, or may prohibit a company from disposing of its assets.

In March 2000, the Italian government introduced a law to freeze rates for
third-party motor liability policies for a period of one year. The European
Commission considered this freezing of rates to be incompatible with the freedom
of the insurance product market and in July 2000 instituted a proceeding based
on European Community law against Italy as a member of the EU. In December 2000,
the European Commission also decided to challenge the Italian law before the
European Court of Justice. In addition, in May 2001, the Italian law was
challenged before the European Court of Justice by an Italian judge in
connection with a civil proceeding in Italy. Nevertheless, the law was put into
force and had a negative impact in 2001. The rate freeze expired in March 2001.

In July 2000, the Italian antitrust authority imposed fines totaling E361
million on several insurance companies because of alleged coordination of
activities through sharing of information in automobile liability insurance in
previous years. Our Italian subsidiaries have been assessed, and have paid, E83
million of this fine. In February 2002, the fine was upheld by the Italian State
Council, the highest administrative court in Italy.

SWITZERLAND

Swiss insurance companies including our Swiss Subsidiaries must be licensed
by the Swiss Federal Department of Justice and Police and are subject to the
supervision of the Swiss Federal
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Office of Private Insurance. A separate authorization is required for each
separate line of insurance business conducted in Switzerland. Although
Switzerland is not a member state of the EU and is not subject to the EU
insurance directives, Swiss insurance regulation is generally consistent with
regulation in the EU.

The Federal Office of Private Insurance monitors the compliance of Swiss
insurance companies with requirements relating to solvency, minimum capital,
reserve building and assets and may conduct audits at any time. The Federal
Office of Private Insurance also fixes the interest rate for calculation of
required life insurance company reserves. Swiss life and health insurance
companies are required to file tariffs and contract conditions with the Federal
Office of Private Insurance.

UNITED KINGDOM

Insurance companies in the United Kingdom are regulated under the Financial
Services and Market Act 2000 (or FSMA). The FSMA provides the framework for the
regulation of all business activities within the financial services sector in
the United Kingdom, including life insurance and general insurance companies
such as our subsidiary Cornhill. The FSMA took effect on December 1, 2001 and
provides that no firm may carry on a regulated activity in the United Kingdom in
the insurance, securities, banking or pension sectors, unless it has been
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authorized to do so under the FSMA or exempted from it. The Financial Services
Authority (or FSA) has been created as a single regulator for the insurance,
securities, banking and pension sectors in the United Kingdom. The FSA enforces
detailed requirements that firms have to meet in order to receive authorization,
including requirements relating to minimum capital, internal governance systems
and risk control, and the suitability of management and controlling
shareholders. A self-regulatory body known as the General Insurance Standards
Council (or GISC) has also been established to ensure compliance by general
insurance companies with applicable codes of business conduct. Allianz's UK
authorized insurance subsidiaries, which engage in general insurance activities,
are GISC members. The FSA also establishes the conditions on which the home
country principle is implemented with respect to insurance, securities and
banking, granting a European financial services "passport."

All insurance companies in the United Kingdom must submit to the FSA annual
and, in some cases, quarterly returns together with audited accounts. These
returns must include a certificate as to whether domestic assets are sufficient
to cover domestic liabilities, and are subject to examination by the FSA. An
annual assessment for the protection of UK policyholders is imposed on all
insurance companies underwriting life and general business.

Policyholder protection exists through two bodies, the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme (or FSCS) and the Motor Insurance Bureau (or MIB). The FSCS
provides policyholders with a level of protection against insurance company
insolvency. The protection covers all types of property and casualty insurance.
The scheme is funded by means of levies on insurance companies. The MIB provides
coverage for victims of automobile accidents where there is no (or inadequate)
insurance coverage. The MIB is funded by levies on all automobile insurers and
the levies are payable each year in proportion to the level of automobile
insurance premiums written each year.

Insurance companies in the United Kingdom may only market products in
conformity with classes authorized by the FSA. Failure by an insurer to write
business in an authorized class over a specified period of time may lead to
withdrawal of the authorization.

In some areas, UK regulations establish customer information rights that
exceed the disclosure standards mandated by the relevant EU directives. Revised
regulations that came into effect on October 1, 1999 enable policyholders who
are consumers to challenge the terms of policies which they claim are unfair or
unclear. The Office of Fair Trading and certain consumer
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groups are empowered to enforce these regulations by requiring revised contracts
when the terms of existing contracts appear to contravene the regulations.

UNITED STATES

Our insurance subsidiaries in the United States are subject to
comprehensive and detailed regulation of their activities under U.S. state and
federal laws.

U.S. property-casualty and life insurance companies are subject to
insurance regulation and supervision in the individual states in which they
transact business. Supervisory agencies in various states have broad powers to
grant or revoke licenses to transact business, regulate trade practices, license
agents, approve insurance policy terms and certain premium rates, set standards
of solvency and reserve requirements, determine the form and content of required
financial reports, examine insurance companies and prescribe the type,
concentration, and amount of investments permitted. Insurance companies are

150



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

subject to a mandatory audit every three to five years by state regulatory
authorities, depending on the state of domicile, and every year by independent
auditors.

U.S. property-casualty and life insurers are also subject to risk based
capital (or RBC) guidelines, which provide a method to measure the adjusted
capital (statutory capital and surplus plus other adjustments) that insurance
companies should have for regulatory purposes, taking into account the risk
characteristics of the company's investments and products. The RBC requirements
establish capital requirements for four categories of risk: asset risk,
insurance risk, interest rate risk and business risk. For each category, the
capital requirement is determined by applying factors to various asset, premium
and reserve items, with the factors being higher for those items with greater
underlying risk and lower for less risky items. An insurance company's RBC ratio
will vary over time depending upon many factors, including its earnings, the mix
of assets in its investment portfolio, the nature of the products it sells and
its rate of sales growth, as well as changes in the RBC formulas required by
regulators. The RBC guidelines are intended to be a regulatory tool only, and
are not intended as a means to rank insurers generally. Each of our U.S.
insurance subsidiaries met its statutory minimum RBC ratios at December 31,
2001.

Although the federal government generally does not directly regulate the
insurance business, many federal laws affect the insurance business in a variety
of ways. There are a number of existing or recently proposed federal laws which
may significantly affect the U.S. market, including establishment of an optional
federal charter for insurance and reinsurance companies, employee benefits
regulations, federal reinsurance for risks involving acts of terrorism,
establishment of a federal registry for asbestos claims subject to compensation
limits, and the taxation of insurance companies and their products. These
initiatives are mostly in a preliminary stage and, consequently, we cannot
assess their potential impact at this time. In addition, we cannot predict what
other proposals may be made (whether at the federal or state level), what
legislation, if any, may be introduced or enacted or what the effect of any such
legislation might be.

OTHER COUNTRIES

Our insurance operations in countries other than those discussed above are
also subject to detailed regulation and supervision by authorities in the
relevant jurisdictions, including with respect to such matters as policy forms
and rates, reserving, investment and financial practices, and marketing,
distribution and sales activities.
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BANKING, ASSET MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICES
EUROPEAN UNION

The supervision of banking, asset management and investment services in the
member states of the European Union is the exclusive responsibility of national
authorities within the individual member states. However, the rules governing
the regulation and supervision of these financial services have been harmonized
by a number of EU directives, which have been implemented in the member states.
These directives mostly focus on establishing an equal standard of financial
viability and deposit guarantee by setting forth minimum capital requirements
and providing for a common deposit guarantee fund that financial institutions
have to contribute to. As a result of this harmonization, banking licenses
granted in one EU member state are recognized in all other member states.

151



Edgar Filing: ALLIANZ AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT - Form 20-F

Under the EU securities directives, member states have to ensure that
financial institutions that are members of a securities exchange in one member
state are eligible for admission to trading on the exchanges of all other member
states. Moreover, the securities services directive provides for certain rules
of conduct regarding the solicitation of clients and business by financial
institutions.

Another field of harmonization which is of importance for financial
institutions is securities trading. The EU directive on offering prospectuses
provides for harmonized rules with respect to the contents and filing of
prospectuses for publicly traded securities. Another directive harmonizes the
rules for disclosure of financial and other information that publicly traded
companies have to provide. The insider trading directive sets forth certain
rules for securities trading by corporate insiders. There are also EU directives
harmonizing rules governing investments, fund management and investor
protection.

GERMANY

Our banking and other financial services activities in Germany are
extensively supervised and regulated by the BAFin.

BANKING

All banks and financial institutions in Germany, including Dresdner Bank,
are subject to comprehensive governmental supervision and regulation on a
consolidated basis by the BAFin in accordance with the German Banking Act
(Kreditwesengesetz, or the German Banking Act). The BAFin is authorized to issue
regulations and guidelines implementing the provisions of the German Banking Act
and other laws affecting German banks. The German Banking Act and the
regulations issued thereunder have been amended over time to implement the
recommendations on banking supervision issued by the Basle Committee on Banking
Supervision and the relevant European Council Directives.

Under the German Banking Act, all banking and financial service
institutions conducting business in Germany are required to have a license from
the BAFin. The BAFin supervises the operations of all banks, including Dresdner
Bank, to ensure that it conducts its business in accordance with the provisions
of the German Banking Act and other applicable German laws and regulations.
Reports by a bank's auditors have to be submitted to the BAFin and the Deutsche
Bundesbank (or the Bundesbank), the German central bank. The contents of the
reports are prescribed in a special regulation issued by the BAFin (the
Prufungsberichtsverordnung). Particular emphasis is placed on compliance with
capital adequacy and liquidity requirements, lending limits and restrictions on
certain activities imposed by the German Banking Act and the regulations
promulgated thereunder.
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REGULATION BY THE BUNDESBANK

The BAFin carries out its banking supervision role in close cooperation
with the Deutsche Bundesbank. Although the authority to issue administrative
orders that are binding on specific banks is vested solely with the BAFin, the
BAFin must c